
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8 NOVEMBER 2012 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 
 

You are advised of the following meeting: 
 

TUESDAY 13 NOVEMBER 2012. 
 
  

Meeting of Council Meeting No. 21/12 
 

Council Chambers, Level 6, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde - 7.30pm 
 
 



 

Continued over…… 
 

 
Council Meeting 

AGENDA NO. 21/12 
 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday 13 November 2012 
Location: Council Chambers, Level 6, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde 
Time:  7.30pm 
 

Council Meetings will be recorded on audio tape for minute-taking purposes  
as authorised by the Local Government Act 1993. 

 
NOTICE OF BUSINESS 

Item Page 

MAYORAL MINUTES 

14/12 MACQUARIE-RYDE FUTURES PARTNERSHIP………………………….1 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Council Meeting held on 23 

October 2012 ............................................................................................... 2 
2 REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

MEETING 12/12 held on 6 November 2012 ............................................... 46 
3 REPORT OF THE WORKS AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

MEETING 13/12 held on 6 November 2012 ............................................... 52 
4 STAFF CULTURE SURVEY - RESULTS................................................... 69 
5 2011/2012 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS...................................................... 76 
6 LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE RENEWAL SCHEME - ROUND TWO ......... 97 
7 SUBMISSION ON DRAFT LONG TERM TRANSPORT MASTER 

PLAN ........................................................................................................ 129 
8 ADOPTION OF THE SHRIMPTONS CREEK PARKLANDS PLAN OF 

MANAGEMENT ....................................................................................... 183 
9 PROPOSED VOLUNTARY PLANNING AGREEMENT FOR A 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT LOT 2  DP1163230 - 126-128 
HERRING ROAD, MACQUARIE PARK. LDA2012/314 ........................... 188 

10 PLANNING PROPOSAL - 461 - 495 VICTORIA ROAD, 
GLADESVILLE ......................................................................................... 214 

11 CIVIC PRECINCT COST ANALYSIS REPORT ....................................... 236 
12 REPORTS DUE TO COUNCIL ................................................................ 297 

PRECIS OF CORRESPONDENCE 
1 DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ON-SITE 

INFRASTRUCTURE AUDIT ..................................................................... 326 
2 DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TO COUNCIL'S 

REQUEST UNDER SECTION 416 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ACT 1993  FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME FOR SUBMISSION OF 
THE 2011/12 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................... 329



 

 

Council Meeting 
AGENDA NO. 21/12 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday 13 November 2012 
Location: Council Chambers, Level 6, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde 
Time:  7.30pm 
 

Council Meetings will be recorded on audio tape for minute-taking purposes  
as authorised by the Local Government Act 1993. 

 
NOTICE OF BUSINESS (continued) 

Item Page 

NOTICES OF MOTION 
1 FEEDBACK FROM COUNCILLORS FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ELECTION PROCESS - Councillor 
Roy Maggio .............................................................................................. 331 

2 STATE ELECTORAL COMMISSION - Councillor Roy Maggio ................ 331 
3 FEES AND CHARGES AT WESTMINSTER OVAL, GLADESVILLE - 

Councillor Roy Maggio ............................................................................. 331 
4 CITY OF RYDE PROCUREMENT PROCESSES - Councillor Jeff 

Salvestro-Martin ....................................................................................... 331 
5 DEVLIN STREET PEDESTRIAN BRIDGES - Councillor Denise 

Pendleton ................................................................................................. 332 
6 PEDESTRIAN SAFETY THROUGHOUT THE CITY OF RYDE - 

Councillor Jeff Salvestro-Martin ............................................................... 333 

NOTICES OF RESCISSION 
1 NOTICE OF RESCISSION: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND 

PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO THE MAYOR AND OTHER 
COUNCILLORS - Councillor Jeff Salvestro-Martin, Councillor Sarkis 
Yedelian OAM, Councillor Craig Chung ................................................... 334 

2 NOTICE OF RESCISSION: MATTER OF URGENCY - REMOVAL 
OF FIVE SHRUBS ON THE NATURE STRIP AT 163 MORRISON 
ROAD, PUTNEY - Councillor George Simon, Councillor Denise 
Pendleton, Councillor Terry Perram ......................................................... 334 

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
13 ALLENGROVE MAJOR PROJECT - LEGAL ADVICE RECEIVED ON 

OPTIONS TO APPEAL THE APPROVAL GRANTED ............................. 336 



 
 
 
 Mayoral Minutes  Page 1 
 

 

MAYORAL MINUTES 

 
MM14/12  MACQUARIE-RYDE FUTURES PARTNERSHIP – The Mayor, 

Councillor Ivan Petch 
        File Number:  GRP/09/7/2/2 – BP12/163 
 
At a Councillor workshop on Tuesday, 23 October 2012, Professor Richie Howitt 
provided information to Councillors regarding the strategic and beneficial partnership 
between Council and Macquarie University. 
 
Since its inception the partnership has proved that collaboration between “town and 
gown” can provide great benefit to both parties. 
 
As a result of the workshop, I seek Council’s endorsement to continue the 
partnership and to host a reception on 11 December 2012 to celebrate its first year. 
 
The Vice Chancellor, Professor Bruce Dowton and others will be invited to attend. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
(i) That Council endorse the continuation of the Macquarie Ryde Futures 

Partnership; and  
 
(ii) That Council host a reception on 11 December 2012 prior to the 

commencement of the Council meeting and that Professor Dowton and other 
members of the steering committee be invited to attend. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
There are no attachments for this report. 
 
Report Prepared By: 
 
 
 
Councillor Ivan Petch 
The Mayor 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Council Meeting held on 23 October 2012  

Report prepared by: Meeting Support Coordinator 
        File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1182  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
In accordance with Council’s Code of Meeting Practice, a motion or discussion with 
respect to such minutes shall not be in order except with regard to their accuracy as 
a true record of the proceedings. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting 20/12, held on 23 October 2012 be 
confirmed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Minutes - Ordinary Council Meeting - 23 October 2012  
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ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

   
Council Meeting 

MINUTES OF MEETING NO. 20/12 
 
 

 
Meeting Date: Tuesday 23 October 2012 
Location: Council Chambers, Level 6, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde 
Time:  7.30pm 
 
 
Councillors Present: The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Laxale, Li, Maggio, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin, 
Simon and Yedelian OAM. 
 
Councillor Pickering left the meeting at 11.35pm and was not present for 
consideration of Item 19. 
 
Apologies: Nil. 
 
Staff Present: General Manager, Group Manager – Community Life, Group Manager - 
Corporate Services, Group Manager – Environment & Planning, Group Manager - 
Public Works, Manager – Communications and Media, Service Unit Manager – 
Governance, Service Unit Manager – Urban Planning, Service Unit Manager – Human 
Resources, Service Unit Manager – Rangers and Parking Services and Acting Section 
Manager – Governance. 
 
 
PRAYER 
 
Pastor Josh Ling of the Macquarie Chapel Presbyterian Church was present and 
offered prayer prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
 
 
DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Chung disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in Item 5 
Part 5 – 59 Wharf Road, Gladesville for the reason that he is familiar with the 
objector. 
 
Councillor Chung disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in Item 14 – 
Planning Proposal – 108 Herring Road, Marsfield for the reason that he has an 
industry association with the applicant business. 
 
Councillor Maggio disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in Item 5 
Part 5 – 59 Wharf Road, Gladesville for the reason that he is familiar with the resident 
objecting to the development. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Councillor Pickering disclosed a significant non-pecuniary interest in Item 19 – 41-45 
Belmore Street Ryde Unauthorised Demolition for the reason that a contractor 
employed by his firm has also provided services to the party concerned. 
 
Councillor Simon disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in Item 18 – 
Macquarie University – Draft Development Agreement for the reason that he has 
been involved in employment negotiations with Cochlear Limited in his capacity as a 
union representative. 
 
 
TABLING OF PETITIONS 
 
No Petitions were tabled. 
 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 2012 ANIMAL MANAGEMENT PLAN OF THE YEAR 
AWARD 
 
Council’s Service Unit Manager – Rangers and Parking Services, Mr Leon Marskell 
presented the Mayor, Councillor Petch with the 2012 Animal Management Plan of the 
Year Award.  The Award was received from the Australian Institute of Australian 
Management (AIAM) and recognises the dedication of Council’s staff. 
 
 
PRESENTATION OF PRIDE OF WORKMANSHIP AWARD FROM GLADESVILLE 
ROTARY 
 
The Mayor, Councillor Petch presented Council with a Pride of Workmanship Award 
from Gladesville Rotary.  The Award was won by Council’s Revenue Officer, Ms Tien 
Cheng. 
 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON ITEMS LISTED ON THE AGENDA  
 
The following persons addressed the Council:- 
 
Name Topic 
Julie Worsley [representing 
Allengrove Against Inappropriate 
Development (A.A.I.D)] 

Precis of Correspondence 1 – Allengrove 
Major Project Concept Plan approved by Land 
and Environment Court 

Noel Plumb (representing Ryde 
Community Alliance) 

Precis of Correspondence 1 – Allengrove 
Major Project Concept Plan approved by Land 
and Environment Court 

Jennie Minifie (representing Ryde 
Environment Group) 

Precis of Correspondence 1 – Allengrove 
Major Project Concept Plan approved by Land 
and Environment Court 

Lisa Bella Esposito (representing 
ALH Group Pty Ltd) 

Item 14 – Planning Proposal – 108 Herring 
Road, Marsfield 
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ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That the late request to address Council on Items Listed on the Agenda be allowed to 
address the meeting, at this time. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON ITEMS LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
 
The following person addressed the Council:- 
 
Name Topic 
Andrew O’Neill 
(representing 
Friends of North 
Ryde 

Item 14 – Planning Proposal – 108 Herring Road, 
Marsfield and Precis of Correspondence 1 – Allengrove 
Major Project Concept Plan approved by Land and 
Environment Court 

 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and Etmekdjian) 
 
That members of the public who had requested to address Council on Items Not Listed 
on the Agenda be allowed to address the meeting, at this time. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
 
The following person addressed the Council:- 
 

Name Topic 
Darryl Fung Removal of shrubs on the nature strip at 163 Morrison 

Road, Putney 
 
 
MATTERS OF URGENCY:–  
 
ALLENGROVE CRESCENT DEVELOPMENT CHALLENGE – Councillor Laxale 
 
MEADOWBANK FINE ARTS COLLEGE AT MEADOWBANK TAFE – Councillor 
Simon 
 
FORMATION OF FREE MOBILE PLAYGROUP SERVICES IN THE RYDE AREA – 
Councillor Simon 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
REMOVAL OF FIVE SHRUBS ON THE NATURE STRIP AT 163 MORRISON 
ROAD, PUTNEY – Councillor Maggio 
 
The Mayor, Councillor Petch raised four Matters of Urgency received from 
Councillors Laxale, Simon and Maggio and deemed them as urgent. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Maggio and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That Council consider all four Matters of Urgency, the time being 8.03pm. 
 
Record of voting:  
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
MATTER OF URGENCY – ALLENGROVE CRESCENT DEVELOPMENT 
CHALLENGE 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Laxale and Yedelian OAM) 
 
(a) That Council lodge a Section 123 objection to the Allengrove Crescent 

Development Approval before the deadline. 
 
(b) That Council provide detailed legal advice to Councillors on a Section 123 

challenge, or any  other possible challenges and that the advice be included in 
the business papers for the Council meeting of 13 November 2012. 

 
(c) That Council seek an urgent meeting with the Minister for Planning and the local 

Member for Ryde in maintaining the residential zoning on the southern side of 
Epping Highway. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
MATTER OF URGENCY – MEADOWBANK FINE ARTS COLLEGE AT 
MEADOWBANK TAFE 
 
MOTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Yedelian OAM) 
 
(a) That Ryde Council notes the decision by the Department of Education to 

withdraw funding from the Meadowbank Fine Arts College at Meadowbank 
TAFE as part of the State Government $1.8billion reduction in the education 
budget.  Ryde Council has a proud history of working with students at the 
College to enrich the culture and the arts in the Ryde area, most notably through 
the Hungry for Art Festival.  The possible closure of the facility now poses a risk 
to the ongoing viability of the artistic events that Ryde Council holds. 
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ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
(b) That Council write to the Member for Ryde, the Honourable Victor Dominello MP 

and the NSW Minister for Education, the Honourable Adrian Piccoli MP 
requesting that they intervene to save the College in order to maintain Council’s 
proud artistic history and to support local students. 

 
 
AMENDMENT:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
(a) That Ryde Council notes the decision by the Department of Education to 

withdraw funding from the Meadowbank Fine Arts College at Meadowbank 
TAFE as part of the State Government $1.8billion reduction in the education 
budget.  Ryde Council has a proud history of working with students at the 
College to enrich the culture and the arts in the Ryde area, most notably through 
the Hungry for Art Festival.  The possible closure of the facility now poses a risk 
to the ongoing viability of the artistic events that Ryde Council holds. 

 
(b) That Council write to the Member for Ryde, the Honourable Victor Dominello MP 

and the NSW Minister for Education, the Honourable Adrian Piccoli MP 
requesting that they intervene to save the College in order to maintain Council’s 
proud artistic history and to support local students. 

 
(c) That Ryde Council write to the Federal Treasurer, Mr Wayne Swan to request 

that an appropriate level of federal funding be provided to NSW to prevent the 
necessity for cuts to education services and facilities such as the Meadowbank 
Fine Arts College. 

 
On being put to the Meeting, the voting on the Amendment was four (4) votes For 
and eight (8) votes Against.  The Amendment was LOST.  The Motion was then put 
and CARRIED. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Amendment:  Councillors Etmekdjian, Maggio, Pickering and Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Amendment:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Laxale, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Salvestro-Martin and Simon 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Yedelian OAM) 
 
(a) That Ryde Council notes the decision by the Department of Education to 

withdraw funding from the Meadowbank Fine Arts College at Meadowbank 
TAFE as part of the State Government $1.8billion reduction in the education 
budget.  Ryde Council has a proud history of working with students at the 
College to enrich the culture and the arts in the Ryde area, most notably through 
the Hungry for Art Festival.  The possible closure of the facility now poses a risk 
to the ongoing viability of the artistic events that Ryde Council holds. 

 
 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 8 
 
ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
(b) That Council write to the Member for Ryde, the Honourable Victor Dominello MP 

and the NSW Minister for Education, the Honourable Adrian Piccoli MP 
requesting that they intervene to save the College in order to maintain Council’s 
proud artistic history and to support local students. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, Etmekdjian, 
Laxale, Li, Maggio, Pendleton, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin, Simon and Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillor Perram 
 
 
RECOMMITTAL OF MATTER OF URGENCY – MEADOWBANK FINE ARTS 
COLLEGE AT MEADOWBANK TAFE 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and Yedelian OAM) 
 
That the Matter or Urgency – Meadowbank Fine Arts College at Meadowbank TAFE 
be recommitted. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Matter of Urgency – Meadowbank Fine Arts College at Meadowbank TAFE was then 
recommitted. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Yedelian OAM) 
 
(a) That Ryde Council notes the decision by the Department of Education to 

withdraw funding from the Meadowbank Fine Arts College at Meadowbank 
TAFE as part of the State Government $1.8billion reduction in the education 
budget.  Ryde Council has a proud history of working with students at the 
College to enrich the culture and the arts in the Ryde area, most notably through 
the Hungry for Art Festival.  The possible closure of the facility now poses a risk 
to the ongoing viability of the artistic events that Ryde Council holds. 

 
(b) That Council write to the Member for Ryde, the Honourable Victor Dominello MP 

and the NSW Minister for Education, the Honourable Adrian Piccoli MP 
requesting that they intervene to save the College in order to maintain Council’s 
proud artistic history and to support local students. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 9 
 
ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 
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MATTER OF URGENCY – FORMATION OF FREE MOBILE PLAYGROUP 
SERVICES IN THE RYDE AREA 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That Ryde Council undertake an investigation into opportunities for the formation of 
free mobile playgroup services in the Ryde area.  The investigation will result in a 
report to Council and will include the following: 
 
1. Sources of funding or partner for the provision of the service. 
 
2. Options for how the service is to be provided including the parts of Ryde where 

the service will best be utilised. 
 
3. Any regulatory or legislative obligations that need to be met for the provision of 

the service. 
 
The report to be presented to Council by no later than December 2012 with a target 
start date for the provision of the service of July 2013. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
MATTER OF URGENCY – REMOVAL OF FIVE SHRUBS ON THE NATURE STRIP 
AT 163 MORRISON ROAD, PUTNEY 
 
Note:  Darryl Fung addressed the meeting in relation to this Item. 
 
Note:  Correspondence and photographs were tabled in relation to this Item and 
copies are ON FILE. 
 
MOTION:  (Moved by Councillors Maggio and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That staff remove the five shrubs on the nature strip at 163 Morrison Road, Putney 
and replace them with low bearing shrubs, in consultation with the local residents. 
 
 
AMENDMENT:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Etmekdjian) 
 
That this matter be referred to the Works and Community Committee for inspection and 
consultation with the adjoining neighbours. 
 
On being put to the Meeting, the voting on the Amendment was five (5) votes For and 
seven (7) votes Against.  The Amendment was LOST.  The Motion was then put and 
CARRIED. 
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Record of Voting: 
 
For the Amendment:  Councillors Chung, Etmekdjian, Pendleton, Perram and Simon 
 
Against the Amendment:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Laxale, Li, 
Maggio, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin and Yedelian OAM 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Maggio and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That staff remove the five shrubs on the nature strip at 163 Morrison Road, Putney 
and replace them with low bearing shrubs, in consultation with the local residents. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, Etmekdjian, 
Laxale, Li, Maggio, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin and Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillors Pendleton, Perram and Simon 
 
 
TABLING OF STATEMENTS 
 
Identical statements dated 23 October 2012 from The Mayor, Councillor Petch, 
Councillor Li, Councillor Perram and Councillor Salvestro-Martin were tabled by the 
Mayor, Councillor Petch and copies are ON FILE. 
 
The Mayor, Councillor Petch read the statement out to the gallery. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That a copy of one of the statements received from The Mayor, Councillor Petch, 
Councillor Li, Councillor Perram and Councillor Salvestro-Martin be included in the 
Minutes of this meeting, noting that all four Councillors had lodged this statement. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 
 
 
 MAYORAL MINUTES  
 
There were no Mayoral Minutes. 
 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Council Meeting held on 14 August 2012 
 Note:  Councillor Laxale left the meeting at 9.00pm and was not present for 

consideration and voting on this Item. 
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RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Etmekdjian) 
 
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting 14/12, held on 14 August 2012 be 
confirmed. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 

  
 
2 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Council Meeting held on 28 August 2012 

 Note:  Councillor Laxale was not present for consideration and voting on this 
Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Etmekdjian) 
 
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting 16/12, held on 28 August 2012 be 
confirmed. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 

  
 
Note:  Councillor Laxale returned to the meeting at 9.02pm. 
 
 
3 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Council Meeting held on 9 October 2012 
 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Etmekdjian) 

 
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting 18/12, held on 9 October 2012 be 
confirmed. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 

  
 
4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Extraordinary Council Meeting held on 16 

October 2012 

 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Maggio) 
 
That the Minutes of the Extraordinary Council Meeting 19/12, held on 16 
October 2012 be confirmed. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 
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5 REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE MEETING 

11/12 held on 16 October 2012 
 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Salvestro-Martin) 

 
That Council determine Items 3, 4 and 5 of the Planning and Environment 
Committee report, noting that Items 1 and 2 were dealt with by the Committee 
within its delegated powers. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
3 958 VICTORIA ROAD, WEST RYDE. LOT 8 DP 819902. Local 

Development Application for alterations and additions to existing 
dwelling.  LDA2012/0047 

RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2012/47 at 958 Victoria Road, West 
Ryde being LOT 8 DP 819902 be deferred to enable a mediation to occur 
between the applicant and the Group Manager – Environment and Planning 
with an outcome in a timeframe that does not unduly delay the development 
application for the applicant and that the matter be returned to the Planning and 
Environment Committee for further determination within three months. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Laxale, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin, Simon 
and Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillor Maggio 
 
 
4 62 DARVALL ROAD, EASTWOOD. LOT 11 DP 6247. Local 

Development Application for demolition of existing dwelling and 
erection of a attached dual occupancy.  LDA2011/380 

 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Chung) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2011/380 at 62 Darvall Road, 
Eastwood being LOT 11 DP 6247 be deferred for a mediation to be undertaken 
between the applicant, objectors and the Group Manager – Environment and 
Planning with an outcome in a timeframe that does not unduly delay the 
development application for the applicant and that the matter be returned to the 
Planning and Environment Committee for further determination within three 
months. 
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Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
5 59 WHARF ROAD, GLADESVILLE. LOT D DP 342402. Local 

Development Application to erect a new two storey dwelling, in-
ground swimming pool and front fence.  LDA2012/0071 

 
Note:  Councillor Chung disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest 
in this Item for the reason that he is familiar with the objector. 
 
Note:  Councillor Maggio disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary 
interest in this Item for the reason that he is familiar with the resident objecting 
to the development. 
 
MOTION:  (Moved by Councillors Simon and Chung) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2012/71 at 59 Wharf Road, Gladesville 
being LOT D DP 342402 be deferred for a mediation to be undertaken between 
the applicant, objectors and the Group Manager – Environment and Planning 
with an outcome in a timeframe that does not unduly delay the development 
application for the applicant and that the matter be returned to the Planning and 
Environment Committee for further determination within three months. 
 
AMENDMENT:  (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and Laxale) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2012/71 at 59 Wharf Road, Gladesville 
being LOT D DP 342402 be approved subject to the conditions of consent as 
recommended by Council staff, and set out below:- 
 
GENERAL 
 
The following conditions of consent included in this Part identify the 
requirements, terms and limitations imposed on this development. 
 
1. Approved Plans/Documents. Except where otherwise provided in this 

consent, the development is to be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the following plans (stamped approved by Council) and support 
documents: 

 
Document Description Date Plan 

No/Reference 
Lower Ground Floor Plan Received 10/04/12 20122a 
Ground Floor Plan Received 17/09/12 20122b 
First Floor Plan Received 29/06/12  20122c 
Elevation from Wharf 
Road, 
West Elevation 

Received 29/06/12 20122d 

North Elevation, Received 29/06/12 20122e 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 14 
 
ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

South Elevation 
Sections Received 17/09/12 20122f 
Landscaping Plan and Site 
Plan 

Received 10/04/12 20122h 

Waste Management Plan, 
Swimming Pool Plan & 
Sections 

Received 10/04/12 20122i 

Demolition Plan Received 10/04/12 20122j 
Front Fence Elevation 
from Wharf Road 

Received 10/04/12 20122k 

Arborist Report and Tree 
Protection Plan prepared 
by Bluegum Tree Care 
and Consultancy 

April 2012 “Arboricultural 
Impact 
Assessment of 
Residential 
Development 
59 Wharf Road, 
Gladesville”  

 
Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, the following 
amendments shall be made (as marked in red on the approved plans): 
(a) The proposed planter box (shown on Dwg No. 20122h) located in 

the south-eastern corner of the site is to be deleted and replaced 
with soft landscaping at existing ground level. In accordance with 
the recommendations of the submitted Arborist Report, 
excavation, fill and other construction activity shall be limited or 
avoided in this location within the Tree Protection Zone of the 
existing Sydney Blue Gum tree on the adjoining site. 

(b) The retaining wall within the back garden of the site, and the rear 
private open space areas comprising of both lawn and tiles to the 
northern side of the wall (accessed from the dining room), are to 
have a maximum height of RL 20.45 so as to minimise privacy 
impacts to adjoining properties. 

(c) There is to be no fill (above existing ground levels) or new 
retaining walls within 1.25 metres of the rear (western) boundary 
of the site. 

 
(d) Tree Protection Fencing as recommended by Bluegum Tree Care 

and Consultancy (Arborist Report and Tree Protection Plan, dated 
April 2012) is to be shown on the architectural plans. 

(e) The two Magnolia grandiflora ‘Alta’ proposed to be planted in the 
front garden are to be replaced with a locally indigenous tree 
reaching a mature height of 10 metres and located within the front 
garden. The tree is to be setback a minimum of three metres from 
adjoining sites and is not to be located within the Structural Root 
Zone (SRZ) of the existing Sydney Blue Gum at No. 61 Wharf 
Road. 

(f) The Lilly Pilly selected cultivar for the proposed screen planting 
along the rear boundary of the site is to have a maximum mature 
height of 2.7 metres. 
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The Development must be carried out in accordance with the amended 
plans approved under this condition. 

 
2. Maximum height of planting. All planting along the northern side 

boundary within the rear setback of the site is to be maintained at a 
maximum height of 1.5 metres measured from ground level. 

 
3. Building Code of Australia. All building works approved by this consent 

must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building 
Code of Australia. 

 
4. BASIX. Compliance with all commitments listed in BASIX Certificate(s) 

numbered 417183S, dated 27 February 2012. 
 
5. Hours of work. Building activities (including demolition) may only be 

carried out between 7.00am and 7.00pm Monday to Friday (other than 
public holidays) and between 8.00am and 4.00pm on Saturday. No 
building activities are to be carried out at any time on a Sunday or a public 
holiday. 
 

6. Development to be within site boundaries. The development must be 
constructed wholly within the boundaries of the premises.  No portion of 
the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining properties.  
Gates must be installed so they do not open onto any footpath. 

 
7. Public space. The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, 

vehicles, refuse, skips or the like, under any circumstances, without prior 
approval from Council. 

 
8. Public Utilities. Compliance with the requirements (including financial 

costs) of any relevant utility provider (e.g. Energy Australia, Sydney Water, 
Telstra, RTA, Council etc) in relation to any connections, works, repairs, 
relocation, replacements and/or adjustments to public infrastructure or 
services affected by the development.  

 
9. Road Opening Permit.  To ensure all restoration works within the public 

road reserve will be completed and restored to Council satisfaction, the 
applicant shall apply for a Road Opening permit where excavation works 
are proposed within the road reserve.  No works shall be carried out on 
the road reserve without this permit being paid and a copy kept on the site. 

 
10. Roads Act. Any works performed in, on or over a public road pursuant to 

this consent must be carried out in accordance with this consent and with 
the Road Opening Permit issued by Council as required under section 139 
of the Roads Act 1993. 

 
11. Pool filter – noise. The pool/spa pump/filter must be enclosed in a 

suitable ventilated acoustic enclosure to ensure the noise emitted 
therefrom does not exceed 5dB(A) above the background noise level 
when measured at any affected residence.  
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12. Depth markers. Water depth markers are to be displayed at a prominent 

position within and at each end of the swimming pool. 
 
13. Wastewater discharge. The spa/pool shall be connected to the Sydney 

Water sewer for discharge of wastewater. 
 
14. Resuscitation Chart. A resuscitation chart containing warning “YOUNG 

CHILDREN SHOULD BE SUPERVISED WHEN USING THIS POOL” 
must be provided in the immediate vicinity of the pool area so as to be 
visible from all areas of the pool. 

 
15. Imported fill – type. All imported fill must be Virgin Excavated Natural 

Material as defined in the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 
1997. 

 
16. Design and Construction Standards.  All engineering plans and work 

shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements as outlined within 
Council’s publication Environmental Standards Development Criteria 1999 
and City of Ryde Development Control Plan 2010 Section 8  except as 
amended by other conditions. 

 
17. Service Alterations.  All mains, services, poles, etc., which require 

alteration to facilitate the development shall be altered at the applicant’s 
expense. Written approval and signed of at completion from the relevant 
Public Authority shall be submitted to Council. 

 
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE 
 
A Construction Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority 
to carry out the relevant building works approved under this consent. All 
conditions in this Section of the consent must be complied with before a 
Construction Certificate can be issued. 
 
Council Officers can provide these services and further information can be 
obtained from Council’s Customer Service Centre on 9952 8222. 
 
Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government 
agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining 
compliance with the conditions in this Section of the consent. 
 
Details of compliance with the conditions, including plans, supporting 
documents or other written evidence must be submitted to the Principal 
Certifying Authority. 
 
18. Sediment Control Fence. The proposed sediment control fence along the 

southern boundary of the site is to be installed only where it does not 
require trenching within the Structural Root Zone of the existing Sydney 
Blue Gum on the adjoining site. 
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19. Site Stormwater Drainage System. To ensure satisfactory stormwater 

disposal and minimise downstream stormwater impacts, stormwater runoff 
from the site shall be collected and piped by gravity flow to the public road 
in accordance with the requirements of DCP 2010: Part 8.2- Stormwater 
Management. Accordingly, detailed engineering plans with certification 
indicating compliance with this condition are to be submitted with the 
Construction Certificate application. 

 
20. Compliance with Australian Standards. The development is required to 

be carried out in accordance with all relevant Australian Standards. Details 
demonstrating compliance with the relevant Australian Standard are to be 
submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the 
Construction Certificate. 

 
21. Structural Certification. The applicant must engage a qualified practising 

structural engineer to provide structural certification in accordance with 
relevant BCA requirements prior to the release of the Construction 
Certificate. 

 
22. Security deposit. The Council must be provided with security for the 

purposes of section 80A(6) of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act 1979 in a sum determined by reference to Council’s 
Management Plan prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. 
(dwelling houses with delivery of bricks or concrete or machine 
excavation) 

 
23. Fees. The following fees must be paid to Council in accordance with 

Council’s Management Plan prior to the release of the Construction 
Certificate: 

 
(a) Infrastructure Restoration and Administration Fee 
(b) Enforcement Levy 

 
24. Alignment Levels. The applicant is to apply to Council, pay the required 

fee, and have issued site specific alignment levels by Council prior to the 
issue of the Construction Certificate. 

 
25. Long Service Levy. Documentary evidence of payment of the Long 

Service Levy under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry 
Long Service Payments Act 1986 is to be submitted to the Principal 
Certifying Authority prior to the issuing of the Construction Certificate. 

 
26. Sydney Water – quick check. The approved plans must be submitted to 

a Sydney Water Quick Check agent or Customer Centre, prior to the 
release of the Construction Certificate, to determine whether the 
development will affect any Sydney Water assets, sewer and water mains, 
stormwater drains and/or easements, and if further requirements need to 
be met.  Plans will be appropriately stamped.   
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Please refer to the website www.sydneywater.com.au for: 
 
 Quick Check agents details - see Building, Developing and Plumbing 

then Quick Check; and 
 Guidelines for Building Over/Adjacent to Sydney Water assets - see 

Building, Development and Plumbing then Building and Renovating. 
 

Or telephone 13 20 92.  
 

27. Reflectivity of materials. Roofing and other external materials must be of 
low glare and reflectivity.  Details of finished external surface materials, 
including colours and texture must be provided to the Principal Certifying 
Authority prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. 

 
28. Pool fencing. The pool fence is to be erected in accordance with the 

approved plans and conform with the provisions of the Swimming Pools 
Act 1992 and Swimming Pools Regulation 2008. Details of compliance are 
to be reflected on the plans submitted with the Construction Certificate. 

 
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION 
 
Prior to the commencement of any demolition, excavation, or building work the 
following conditions in this Part of the Consent must be satisfied, and all 
relevant requirements complied with at all times during the operation of this 
consent. 
 
29.  Site Sign 

(a) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on site, prior to the 
commencement of construction: 
(i) showing the name, address and telephone number of the 

Principal Certifying Authority for the work, 
(ii) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) or the 

person responsible for the works and a telephone number on 
which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and 

(iii) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited. 
 

(b) Any such sign must be maintained while the building work, 
subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be 
removed when the work has been completed. 

 
30. Residential building work – insurance. In the case of residential 

building work for which the Home Building Act 1989 requires there to be a 
contract of insurance in force in accordance with Part 6 of that Act, that 
such a contract of insurance is in force before any building work 
authorised to be carried out by the consent commences. 

 
31. Residential building work – provision of information. Residential 

building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not 
be carried out unless the PCA has given the Council written notice of the 
following information: 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 19 
 
ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
(a) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be 

appointed:  
(i) the name and licence number of the principal contractor; and 
(ii) the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 

6 of that Act. 
 

(b)  in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder: 
(i) the name of the owner-builder; and 
(ii) if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit 

under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit. 
 

If any of the above arrangements are changed while the work is in 
progress so that the information notified under this condition becomes out 
of date, further work must not be carried out unless the PCA for the 
development to which the work relates has given the Council written notice 
of the updated information (if Council is not the PCA).  

 
32. Safety fencing. The site must be fenced prior to the commencement of 

construction, and throughout demolition and/or excavation and must 
comply with WorkCover New South Wales requirements and be a 
minimum of 1.8m in height. 

 
DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Unless otherwise specified, the following conditions in this Part of the consent 
must be complied with at all times during the construction period. Where 
applicable, the requirements under previous Parts of the consent must be 
implemented and maintained at all times during the construction period. 
  
33. Incursion of stormwater drainage into the Structural Root Zone. 

Stormwater drainage pipes shown on the Ground Floor Plan (Drawing No. 
20122b) will result in an incursion into the Structural Root Zone (SRZ) of 
the existing Sydney Blue Gum tree on the adjoining site. The stormwater 
drainage pipes should be relocated outside the SRZ of the tree and 
installed under the supervision (and in accordance with the 
recommendations) of the Project Arborist. 

 
34. Critical stage inspections. The person having the benefit of this consent 

is required to notify the Principal Certifying Authority during construction to 
ensure that the critical stage inspections are undertaken, as required 
under clause 162A(4) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Regulation 2000. 

 
35. Survey of footings/walls. All footings and walls within 1 metre of a 

boundary must be set out by a registered surveyor.  On commencement of 
brickwork or wall construction a survey and report must be prepared 
indicating the position of external walls in relation to the boundaries of the 
allotment. 

 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 20 
 
ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
36. Sediment/dust control. No sediment, dust, soil or similar material shall 

leave the site during construction work. 
 
37. Use of fill/excavated material. Excavated material must not be reused on 

the property except as follows: 
(a) Fill is allowed under this consent; 
(b) The material constitutes Virgin Excavated Natural Material as defined 

in the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997; 
(c) the material is reused only to the extent that fill is allowed by the 

consent. 
 
38. Construction materials. All materials associated with construction must 

be retained within the site. 
 
39.  Site Facilities 

The following facilities must be provided on the site: 
(a) toilet facilities in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements, at 

a ratio of one toilet per every 20 employees, and 
(b) a garbage receptacle for food scraps and papers, with a tight fitting 

lid. 
 
40.  Site maintenance 

The applicant must ensure that: 
(a) approved sediment and erosion control measures are installed and 

maintained during the construction period; 
(b) building materials and equipment are stored wholly within the work 

site unless an approval to store them elsewhere is held; 
(c) the site is clear of waste and debris at the completion of the works. 

 
41. Work within public road. At all times work is being undertaken within a 

public road, adequate precautions shall be taken to warn, instruct and 
guide road users safely around the work site. Traffic control devices shall 
satisfy the minimum standards outlined in Australian Standard No. 
AS1742.3-1996 “Traffic Control Devices for Work on Roads”. 

 
42. Construction of front fence – Arborist supervision. A Consultant 

Arborist must be appointed to oversee all construction works for the 
proposed front masonry fence, and to ensure that construction is 
undertaken with minimal excavation within the Structural Root Zone (SRZ) 
of the Sydney Blue Gum on the adjoining site. If necessary to achieve 
minimal excavation within the SRZ, an alternative style of fencing in 
accordance with the Ryde DCP 2010 is to be erected. 

 
43. Tree protection – no unauthorised removal. This consent does not 

authorise the removal of trees unless specifically permitted by a condition 
of this consent or otherwise necessary as a result of construction works 
approved by this consent. 
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44. Tree protection – during construction. Trees that are shown on the 

approved plans as being retained must be protected against damage 
during construction. 

 
45. Tree works – Compliance with submitted Arborist Report and Tree 

Protection Plan. All construction on the site is to take place in accordance 
with the recommendations of the Arborist Report & Tree Protection Plan 
prepared by Bluegum Tree Care and Consultancy (April 2012). 

 
46. Tree works – Australian Standards. Any works approved by this consent 

to trees must be carried out in accordance with all relevant Australian 
Standards. 

 
47. Tree works – arborist supervision. A Consultant Arborist must be 

appointed to oversee all works, including demolition and construction, in 
relation to the trees identified for retention on the site. 

 
48. Tree works – provision of arborist details. Council is to be notified, in 

writing, of the name, contact details and qualifications of the Consultant 
Arborist appointed to the site. Should these details change during the 
course of works, or the appointed Consultant Arborist alter, Council is to 
be notified, in writing, within seven working days. 

 
PRIOR TO OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE 
 
An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority 
prior to commencement of occupation of any part of the development, or prior to 
the commencement of a change of use of a building. 
 
Prior to issue, the Principal Certifying Authority must ensure that all works are 
completed in compliance with the approved construction certificate plans and all 
conditions of this Development Consent. 
 
Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government 
agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining 
compliance with conditions in this Part of the consent. Details to demonstrate 
compliance with all conditions, including plans, documentation, or other written 
evidence must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority. 
 
49. BASIX. The submission of documentary evidence of compliance with all 

commitments listed in BASIX Certificate(s) numbered 417183S, dated 27 
February 2012. 

 
50. Landscaping. All landscaping works approved by condition 1 are to be 

completed prior to the issue of the final Occupation Certificate. 
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51. Engineering Certification.  To ensure stormwater drainage works are 

completed in accordance with approved plans, Certification shall also be 
obtained from a chartered civil engineer with NPER registration with 
Engineers Australia, indicating the constructed works complied with DCP 
2010. Part 8.2. 

 
On being put to the Meeting, the voting on the Amendment was nine (9) votes 
For and three (3) votes Against.  The Amendment was CARRIED.  The 
Amendment then became the Motion. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Amendment:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Etmekdjian, 
Laxale, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin, Simon and Yedelian 
OAM 
 
Against the Amendment:  Councillors Chung, Li and Maggio 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and Laxale) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2012/71 at 59 Wharf Road, Gladesville 
being LOT D DP 342402 be approved subject to the conditions of consent as 
recommended by Council staff, and set out below:- 
 
GENERAL 
 
The following conditions of consent included in this Part identify the 
requirements, terms and limitations imposed on this development. 
 
1. Approved Plans/Documents. Except where otherwise provided in this 

consent, the development is to be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the following plans (stamped approved by Council) and support 
documents: 

 
Document Description Date Plan 

No/Reference 
Lower Ground Floor Plan Received 10/04/12 20122a 
Ground Floor Plan Received 17/09/12 20122b 
First Floor Plan Received 29/06/12  20122c 
Elevation from Wharf 
Road, 
West Elevation 

Received 29/06/12 20122d 

North Elevation, 
South Elevation 

Received 29/06/12 20122e 

Sections Received 17/09/12 20122f 
Landscaping Plan and Site 
Plan 

Received 10/04/12 20122h 

Waste Management Plan, Received 10/04/12 20122i 
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Swimming Pool Plan & 
Sections 
Demolition Plan Received 10/04/12 20122j 
Front Fence Elevation 
from Wharf Road 

Received 10/04/12 20122k 

Arborist Report and Tree 
Protection Plan prepared 
by Bluegum Tree Care 
and Consultancy 

April 2012 “Arboricultural 
Impact 
Assessment of 
Residential 
Development 
59 Wharf Road, 
Gladesville”  

 
Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, the following 
amendments shall be made (as marked in red on the approved plans): 
(a) The proposed planter box (shown on Dwg No. 20122h) located in 

the south-eastern corner of the site is to be deleted and replaced 
with soft landscaping at existing ground level. In accordance with 
the recommendations of the submitted Arborist Report, 
excavation, fill and other construction activity shall be limited or 
avoided in this location within the Tree Protection Zone of the 
existing Sydney Blue Gum tree on the adjoining site. 

(b) The retaining wall within the back garden of the site, and the rear 
private open space areas comprising of both lawn and tiles to the 
northern side of the wall (accessed from the dining room), are to 
have a maximum height of RL 20.45 so as to minimise privacy 
impacts to adjoining properties. 

(c) There is to be no fill (above existing ground levels) or new 
retaining walls within 1.25 metres of the rear (western) boundary 
of the site. 

 
(d) Tree Protection Fencing as recommended by Bluegum Tree Care 

and Consultancy (Arborist Report and Tree Protection Plan, dated 
April 2012) is to be shown on the architectural plans. 

(e) The two Magnolia grandiflora ‘Alta’ proposed to be planted in the 
front garden are to be replaced with a locally indigenous tree 
reaching a mature height of 10 metres and located within the front 
garden. The tree is to be setback a minimum of three metres from 
adjoining sites and is not to be located within the Structural Root 
Zone (SRZ) of the existing Sydney Blue Gum at No. 61 Wharf 
Road. 

(f) The Lilly Pilly selected cultivar for the proposed screen planting 
along the rear boundary of the site is to have a maximum mature 
height of 2.7 metres. 

 
The Development must be carried out in accordance with the amended 
plans approved under this condition. 

 
2. Maximum height of planting. All planting along the northern side 

boundary within the rear setback of the site is to be maintained at a 
maximum height of 1.5 metres measured from ground level. 
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3. Building Code of Australia. All building works approved by this consent 

must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building 
Code of Australia. 

 
4. BASIX. Compliance with all commitments listed in BASIX Certificate(s) 

numbered 417183S, dated 27 February 2012. 
 
5. Hours of work. Building activities (including demolition) may only be 

carried out between 7.00am and 7.00pm Monday to Friday (other than 
public holidays) and between 8.00am and 4.00pm on Saturday. No 
building activities are to be carried out at any time on a Sunday or a public 
holiday. 
 

6. Development to be within site boundaries. The development must be 
constructed wholly within the boundaries of the premises.  No portion of 
the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining properties.  
Gates must be installed so they do not open onto any footpath. 

 
7. Public space. The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, 

vehicles, refuse, skips or the like, under any circumstances, without prior 
approval from Council. 

 
8. Public Utilities. Compliance with the requirements (including financial 

costs) of any relevant utility provider (e.g. Energy Australia, Sydney Water, 
Telstra, RTA, Council etc) in relation to any connections, works, repairs, 
relocation, replacements and/or adjustments to public infrastructure or 
services affected by the development.  

 
9. Road Opening Permit.  To ensure all restoration works within the public 

road reserve will be completed and restored to Council satisfaction, the 
applicant shall apply for a Road Opening permit where excavation works 
are proposed within the road reserve.  No works shall be carried out on 
the road reserve without this permit being paid and a copy kept on the site. 

 
10. Roads Act. Any works performed in, on or over a public road pursuant to 

this consent must be carried out in accordance with this consent and with 
the Road Opening Permit issued by Council as required under section 139 
of the Roads Act 1993. 

 
11. Pool filter – noise. The pool/spa pump/filter must be enclosed in a 

suitable ventilated acoustic enclosure to ensure the noise emitted 
therefrom does not exceed 5dB(A) above the background noise level 
when measured at any affected residence.  

 
12. Depth markers. Water depth markers are to be displayed at a prominent 

position within and at each end of the swimming pool. 
 
13. Wastewater discharge. The spa/pool shall be connected to the Sydney 

Water sewer for discharge of wastewater. 
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14. Resuscitation Chart. A resuscitation chart containing warning “YOUNG 

CHILDREN SHOULD BE SUPERVISED WHEN USING THIS POOL” 
must be provided in the immediate vicinity of the pool area so as to be 
visible from all areas of the pool. 

 
15. Imported fill – type. All imported fill must be Virgin Excavated Natural 

Material as defined in the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 
1997. 

 
16. Design and Construction Standards.  All engineering plans and work 

shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements as outlined within 
Council’s publication Environmental Standards Development Criteria 1999 
and City of Ryde Development Control Plan 2010 Section 8  except as 
amended by other conditions. 

 
17. Service Alterations.  All mains, services, poles, etc., which require 

alteration to facilitate the development shall be altered at the applicant’s 
expense. Written approval and signed of at completion from the relevant 
Public Authority shall be submitted to Council. 

 
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE 
 
A Construction Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority 
to carry out the relevant building works approved under this consent. All 
conditions in this Section of the consent must be complied with before a 
Construction Certificate can be issued. 
 
Council Officers can provide these services and further information can be 
obtained from Council’s Customer Service Centre on 9952 8222. 
 
Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government 
agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining 
compliance with the conditions in this Section of the consent. 
 
Details of compliance with the conditions, including plans, supporting 
documents or other written evidence must be submitted to the Principal 
Certifying Authority. 
 
18. Sediment Control Fence. The proposed sediment control fence along the 

southern boundary of the site is to be installed only where it does not 
require trenching within the Structural Root Zone of the existing Sydney 
Blue Gum on the adjoining site. 

 
19. Site Stormwater Drainage System. To ensure satisfactory stormwater 

disposal and minimise downstream stormwater impacts, stormwater runoff 
from the site shall be collected and piped by gravity flow to the public road 
in accordance with the requirements of DCP 2010: Part 8.2- Stormwater 
Management. Accordingly, detailed engineering plans with certification 
indicating compliance with this condition are to be submitted with the 
Construction Certificate application. 
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20. Compliance with Australian Standards. The development is required to 

be carried out in accordance with all relevant Australian Standards. Details 
demonstrating compliance with the relevant Australian Standard are to be 
submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the 
Construction Certificate. 

 
21. Structural Certification. The applicant must engage a qualified practising 

structural engineer to provide structural certification in accordance with 
relevant BCA requirements prior to the release of the Construction 
Certificate. 

 
22. Security deposit. The Council must be provided with security for the 

purposes of section 80A(6) of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act 1979 in a sum determined by reference to Council’s 
Management Plan prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. 
(dwelling houses with delivery of bricks or concrete or machine 
excavation) 

 
23. Fees. The following fees must be paid to Council in accordance with 

Council’s Management Plan prior to the release of the Construction 
Certificate: 

 
(a) Infrastructure Restoration and Administration Fee 
(b) Enforcement Levy 

 
24. Alignment Levels. The applicant is to apply to Council, pay the required 

fee, and have issued site specific alignment levels by Council prior to the 
issue of the Construction Certificate. 

 
25. Long Service Levy. Documentary evidence of payment of the Long 

Service Levy under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry 
Long Service Payments Act 1986 is to be submitted to the Principal 
Certifying Authority prior to the issuing of the Construction Certificate. 

 
26. Sydney Water – quick check. The approved plans must be submitted to 

a Sydney Water Quick Check agent or Customer Centre, prior to the 
release of the Construction Certificate, to determine whether the 
development will affect any Sydney Water assets, sewer and water mains, 
stormwater drains and/or easements, and if further requirements need to 
be met.  Plans will be appropriately stamped.   
 
Please refer to the website www.sydneywater.com.au for: 
 
 Quick Check agents details - see Building, Developing and Plumbing 

then Quick Check; and 
 Guidelines for Building Over/Adjacent to Sydney Water assets - see 

Building, Development and Plumbing then Building and Renovating. 
 

Or telephone 13 20 92.  
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27. Reflectivity of materials. Roofing and other external materials must be of 

low glare and reflectivity.  Details of finished external surface materials, 
including colours and texture must be provided to the Principal Certifying 
Authority prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. 

 
28. Pool fencing. The pool fence is to be erected in accordance with the 

approved plans and conform with the provisions of the Swimming Pools 
Act 1992 and Swimming Pools Regulation 2008. Details of compliance are 
to be reflected on the plans submitted with the Construction Certificate. 

 
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION 
 
Prior to the commencement of any demolition, excavation, or building work the 
following conditions in this Part of the Consent must be satisfied, and all 
relevant requirements complied with at all times during the operation of this 
consent. 
 
29.  Site Sign 

(a) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on site, prior to the 
commencement of construction: 
(i) showing the name, address and telephone number of the 

Principal Certifying Authority for the work, 
(ii) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) or the 

person responsible for the works and a telephone number on 
which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and 

(iii) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited. 
 

(b) Any such sign must be maintained while the building work, 
subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be 
removed when the work has been completed. 

 
30. Residential building work – insurance. In the case of residential 

building work for which the Home Building Act 1989 requires there to be a 
contract of insurance in force in accordance with Part 6 of that Act, that 
such a contract of insurance is in force before any building work 
authorised to be carried out by the consent commences. 

 
31. Residential building work – provision of information. Residential 

building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not 
be carried out unless the PCA has given the Council written notice of the 
following information: 

 
(a) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be 

appointed:  
(i) the name and licence number of the principal contractor; and 
 
(ii) the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 

6 of that Act. 
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(b)  in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder: 

(i) the name of the owner-builder; and 
(ii) if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit 

under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit. 
 

If any of the above arrangements are changed while the work is in 
progress so that the information notified under this condition becomes out 
of date, further work must not be carried out unless the PCA for the 
development to which the work relates has given the Council written notice 
of the updated information (if Council is not the PCA).  

 
32. Safety fencing. The site must be fenced prior to the commencement of 

construction, and throughout demolition and/or excavation and must 
comply with WorkCover New South Wales requirements and be a 
minimum of 1.8m in height. 

 
DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Unless otherwise specified, the following conditions in this Part of the consent 
must be complied with at all times during the construction period. Where 
applicable, the requirements under previous Parts of the consent must be 
implemented and maintained at all times during the construction period. 
  
33. Incursion of stormwater drainage into the Structural Root Zone. 

Stormwater drainage pipes shown on the Ground Floor Plan (Drawing No. 
20122b) will result in an incursion into the Structural Root Zone (SRZ) of 
the existing Sydney Blue Gum tree on the adjoining site. The stormwater 
drainage pipes should be relocated outside the SRZ of the tree and 
installed under the supervision (and in accordance with the 
recommendations) of the Project Arborist. 

 
34. Critical stage inspections. The person having the benefit of this consent 

is required to notify the Principal Certifying Authority during construction to 
ensure that the critical stage inspections are undertaken, as required 
under clause 162A(4) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Regulation 2000. 

 
35. Survey of footings/walls. All footings and walls within 1 metre of a 

boundary must be set out by a registered surveyor.  On commencement of 
brickwork or wall construction a survey and report must be prepared 
indicating the position of external walls in relation to the boundaries of the 
allotment. 

 
36. Sediment/dust control. No sediment, dust, soil or similar material shall 

leave the site during construction work. 
 
37. Use of fill/excavated material. Excavated material must not be reused on 

the property except as follows: 
(a) Fill is allowed under this consent; 
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(b) The material constitutes Virgin Excavated Natural Material as defined 

in the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997; 
(c) the material is reused only to the extent that fill is allowed by the 

consent. 
 
38. Construction materials. All materials associated with construction must 

be retained within the site. 
 
39.  Site Facilities 

The following facilities must be provided on the site: 
(a) toilet facilities in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements, at 

a ratio of one toilet per every 20 employees, and 
(b) a garbage receptacle for food scraps and papers, with a tight fitting 

lid. 
 
40.  Site maintenance 

The applicant must ensure that: 
(a) approved sediment and erosion control measures are installed and 

maintained during the construction period; 
(b) building materials and equipment are stored wholly within the work 

site unless an approval to store them elsewhere is held; 
(c) the site is clear of waste and debris at the completion of the works. 

 
41. Work within public road. At all times work is being undertaken within a 

public road, adequate precautions shall be taken to warn, instruct and 
guide road users safely around the work site. Traffic control devices shall 
satisfy the minimum standards outlined in Australian Standard No. 
AS1742.3-1996 “Traffic Control Devices for Work on Roads”. 

 
42. Construction of front fence – Arborist supervision. A Consultant 

Arborist must be appointed to oversee all construction works for the 
proposed front masonry fence, and to ensure that construction is 
undertaken with minimal excavation within the Structural Root Zone (SRZ) 
of the Sydney Blue Gum on the adjoining site. If necessary to achieve 
minimal excavation within the SRZ, an alternative style of fencing in 
accordance with the Ryde DCP 2010 is to be erected. 

 
43. Tree protection – no unauthorised removal. This consent does not 

authorise the removal of trees unless specifically permitted by a condition 
of this consent or otherwise necessary as a result of construction works 
approved by this consent. 

 
44. Tree protection – during construction. Trees that are shown on the 

approved plans as being retained must be protected against damage 
during construction. 

 
45. Tree works – Compliance with submitted Arborist Report and Tree 

Protection Plan. All construction on the site is to take place in accordance 
with the recommendations of the Arborist Report & Tree Protection Plan 
prepared by Bluegum Tree Care and Consultancy (April 2012). 
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46. Tree works – Australian Standards. Any works approved by this consent 

to trees must be carried out in accordance with all relevant Australian 
Standards. 

 
47. Tree works – arborist supervision. A Consultant Arborist must be 

appointed to oversee all works, including demolition and construction, in 
relation to the trees identified for retention on the site. 

 
48. Tree works – provision of arborist details. Council is to be notified, in 

writing, of the name, contact details and qualifications of the Consultant 
Arborist appointed to the site. Should these details change during the 
course of works, or the appointed Consultant Arborist alter, Council is to 
be notified, in writing, within seven working days. 

 
PRIOR TO OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE 
 
An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority 
prior to commencement of occupation of any part of the development, or prior to 
the commencement of a change of use of a building. 
 
Prior to issue, the Principal Certifying Authority must ensure that all works are 
completed in compliance with the approved construction certificate plans and all 
conditions of this Development Consent. 
 
Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government 
agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining 
compliance with conditions in this Part of the consent. Details to demonstrate 
compliance with all conditions, including plans, documentation, or other written 
evidence must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority. 
 
49. BASIX. The submission of documentary evidence of compliance with all 

commitments listed in BASIX Certificate(s) numbered 417183S, dated 27 
February 2012. 

 
50. Landscaping. All landscaping works approved by condition 1 are to be 

completed prior to the issue of the final Occupation Certificate. 
 
51. Engineering Certification.  To ensure stormwater drainage works are 

completed in accordance with approved plans, Certification shall also be 
obtained from a chartered civil engineer with NPER registration with 
Engineers Australia, indicating the constructed works complied with DCP 
2010. Part 8.2. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Etmekdjian, 
Laxale, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin, Simon and Yedelian 
OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillors Chung, Li and Maggio 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 31 
 
ITEM 1 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
6 REPORT OF THE WORKS AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE MEETING 12/12 

held on 16 October 2012 
 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Etmekdjian) 

 
That Council determine Items 3 and 4 of the Works and Community Committee 
report, noting that Items 1 and 2 were dealt with by the Committee within its 
delegated powers. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
3 BUS PRIORITY LANE AND IMPROVEMENT WORKS BY RMS - 

Balaclava Road, Epping Road and Agincourt Road - UPDATE 
Note:  Councillor Pickering left the meeting at 9.32pm and was not present for 
consideration or voting on this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
(a) That Council accept the funding provided by the Roads and Maritime 

Services (RMS) of $690,441 which is subject to change upon mutual 
agreement between Council and RMS and that the expenditure of this 
amount be approved. 

 
(b) That the budget adjustment be included in the next Quarterly Review for 

information. 
 
(c) That Council approves the removal of up to five (5) trees to facilitate 

intersection widening and that these trees be replaced in accordance with 
the DCP. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:   Unanimous 
 
 
4 LIVVI’S PLACE AT YAMBLE RESERVE – PROGRESS REPORT 
 
Note:  Councillor Pickering was not present for consideration or voting on this 
Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Etmekdjian) 
 
That an adjustment of $232,066 be included in the next quarterly review for the 
purpose of paying for the asbestos removal and site remediation. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 
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Note:  Councillor Pickering returned to the meeting at 9.39pm. 
 
 
7 CODE OF MEETING PRACTICE 
 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Etmekdjian) 

 
That the report be noted and deferred for a workshop and specific inputs from 
Councillors. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 

  
 
8 COUNCIL WORKSHOPS AND INDUCTION SESSIONS 

 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
(a) That Council endorse the Workshop, Induction and site visit schedule as 

set out in this report, subject to the half day site visits and the weekend of 
1 and 2 December 2012 being deferred to 2013, in addition to the 
following amendments:- 

 
 The inclusion of a workshop regarding Local Government Reforms to 

be held at 9.30pm on 6 November 2012; 
 
 The inclusion of a workshop regarding the Code of Meeting Practice 

to be held at 7.30pm on 20 November 2012; and 
 
 The workshop regarding Macquarie Park Amendment 1 being moved 

to 8.30pm on 20 November 2012. 
 
(b) That Council confirm that should more than three Councillors indicate their 

inability to attend a Workshop, Induction Session or site visit that it will not 
be held or rescheduled. 

 
(c) That a full program of workshops for 2013 be provided to Council for 

endorsement. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Maggio, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin, Simon 
and Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion: Councillor Laxale 
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9 CODE OF CONDUCT ANNUAL REPORT 

 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
That Council note the General Manager’s report on Code of Conduct 
complaints received for the period October 2011 to September 2012. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Laxale, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Salvestro-Martin and 
Simon 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillors Maggio and Yedelian OAM 

  
 
10 PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO THE 

MAYOR AND OTHER COUNCILLORS 

 MOTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Pendleton) 
 
(a) That Council endorse the public exhibition of the revised Payment of 

Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy for a period of at least 28 days. 

 
(b) That after the exhibition period of the draft policy, a further report be 

provided to Council seeking the adoption of the draft Payment of 
Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy and detailing any submissions received. 

 
(c) That Council approve the appropriate disposal of the Mayoral vehicle. 
 
(d) That Clause 28 be amended to include access for meeting rooms at the 

library, as available, for the purposes of Councillors meeting with the public 
during operating hours and free of charge. 

 
 
AMENDMENT:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Maggio) 
 
(a) That Council endorse the public exhibition of the revised Payment of 

Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy for a period of at least 28 days. 

 
(b) That after the exhibition period of the draft policy, a further report be 

provided to Council seeking the adoption of the draft Payment of 
Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy and detailing any submissions received. 

 
(c) That Council approve the appropriate disposal of the Mayoral vehicle. 
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(d) That Clause 28 be amended to include access for meeting rooms at the 

library, as available, for the purposes of Councillors meeting with the public 
during operating hours and free of charge. 

 
(e) That Clause 24 be amended to offer Councillors the option of an amount 

up to $2,000 in lieu of receiving a Council personal computer. 
 
On being put to the Meeting, the voting on the Amendment was five (5) votes 
For and seven (7) votes Against.  The Amendment was LOST.  The Motion was 
then put and CARRIED. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Amendment:  Councillors Chung, Etmekdjian, Salvestro-Martin, Simon 
and Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Amendment:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Laxale, 
Li, Maggio, Pendleton, Perram and Pickering 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Pendleton) 
 
(a) That Council endorse the public exhibition of the revised Payment of 

Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy for a period of at least 28 days. 

 
(b) That after the exhibition period of the draft policy, a further report be 

provided to Council seeking the adoption of the draft Payment of 
Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy and detailing any submissions received. 

 
(c) That Council approve the appropriate disposal of the Mayoral vehicle. 
 
(d) That Clause 28 be amended to include access for meeting rooms at the 

library, as available, for the purposes of Councillors meeting with the public 
during operating hours and free of charge. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, Laxale, 
Li, Pendleton, Perram and Simon 
 
Against the Motion: Councillors Etmekdjian,  Maggio, Pickering, Salvestro-
Martin and Yedelian OAM 
 
Note: A Notice of Rescission signed by Councillors Salvestro-Martin, Yedelian 
OAM and Chung was received in relation to this Item at 11.45am on 24 October 
2012 and will be considered by Council at its meeting to be held on 13 
November 2012. 
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11 DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST RETURNS - 2011-12 

 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Pickering) 
 
(a) That the Register of Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest Returns, as required 

under Section 450A of the Local Government Act, is tabled. 
 
(b) That the Division of Local Government, within the NSW Department of 

Premier and Cabinet, is provided with a copy of this report. 
 
(c) That Councillor Maggio’s Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest Return be tabled 

at this time. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 

  
 
12 DELEGATION - GENERAL MANAGER  
 Note:  Councillor Chung left the meeting 10.57pm and was not present for 

consideration or voting on this Item. 
 
Note:  Councillor Salvestro-Martin left the meeting 10.57pm and was not 
present for consideration or voting on this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
That in accordance with Section 380 of the Local Government Act 1993, 
Council reviews and confirms that the existing delegations and the standard 
instrument for delegation as ATTACHED be granted to the General Manager 
for the next term of office for the Council. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 

 
 
13 INVESTMENT REPORT - August and September 2012 
 Note:  Councillor Chung was not present for consideration or voting on this 

Item. 
 
Note:  Councillor Salvestro-Martin was not present for consideration or voting 
on this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Pickering) 
 
That Council endorse the report of the Chief Financial Officer dated 10 October 
2012 on Investment Report – August and September 2012. 
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Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 

  
 
Note:  Councillors Chung returned to the meeting at 11.00pm. 
 
 
Note:  Councillors Salvestro-Martin returned to the meeting at 11.00pm. 
 
 
14 PLANNING PROPOSAL - 108 HERRING ROAD MARSFIELD 
 Note:  Lisa Bella Esposito (representing ALH Group Pty Ltd) and Andrew 

O’Neill (representing Friends of North Ryde) addressed the meeting in relation 
to this Item. 
 
Note:  Councillor Chung disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest 
in this Item for the reason that he has an industry association with the applicant 
business. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
a) That Council note the planning proposal to rezone the land at 108 Herring 

Road Marsfield from R2 Low Density Residential to B1 Neighbourhood 
Business under Ryde LEP 2010 and the proposal be forwarded to the 
Minister for Planning to receive a gateway determination in accordance 
with Section 56 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

 
(b) That Council include in the submission to the Department of Planning and 

Infrastructure that the planning proposal include hotel or motel 
accommodation at 108 Herring Road Marsfield in Schedule 1 – Additional 
Permitted Uses Ryde LEP 2010. 

 
(c) That in the event of a gateway determination being issued pursuant to 

section 56 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, the 
proposal be placed on public exhibition and a further report be presented 
to Council as soon as practicable after the close of the community 
consultation period advising of the outcomes. 

 
(d) That the applicant, should it lodge a development application with Council 

which would have any effect on traffic flows into the site, make favourable 
consideration for ingress and egress of traffic through Epping Road. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
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COMPLETION OF BUSINESS – EXTENSION OF TIME 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Maggio) 
 
That the meeting time be extended to allow Council to complete all Items of business 
on the Agenda, the time being 11.20pm. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
15 ESTABLISHMENT OF A PANEL OF PREFERRED PROVIDERS TO 

PROVIDE LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TO THE CITY OF 
RYDE 

 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Perram) 
 
That the panel of preferred providers for the provision of Learning and 
Development services be endorsed for up to three (3) years, that being two (2) 
years plus the option of a further one (1) year at Council’s discretion. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Maggio, Laxale, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Simon and 
Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillor Salvestro-Martin 

  
 
16 TENDER - SUPPLY, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF A CO-

GENERATION PLANT AND EQUIPMENT FOR RALC 
 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Pickering) 

 
(a) That Council accept the tender from Total Energy Solutions Pty Ltd for the 

sum of $540,632 (ex GST) as recommended in the Tender Evaluation 
report. 
 

(b) That Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to enter into a 
contract with Total Energy Solutions Pty Ltd for the sum of $540,632 (ex 
GST) on the terms contained within the tender and for minor amendments 
to be made to the contract documents that are not of a material nature. 

 
(c)   That Council advise all the respondents of Council’s decision. 
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Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Laxale, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Simon and Yedelian 
OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillors Maggio and Salvestro-Martin 

  
 
17 ANNUAL TENDERS - Request for Tender - Provision of Minor Works & 

Services and Pre-Qualification for Large Civil Works 2012-2013 and 2013-
2014 

 RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Pickering) 
 
(a) That Council accept tenders for Provision of Minor Works & Services and 

Pre-qualification for Large Civil Works up until 30 November 2014, from 
the tenderers outlined in Appendices 1 and 2 of this report on an “as 
required” basis for the items outlined. 

 
(b) That the preferred contractors be advised that work will be allocated to 

them on an “as required” basis, following consideration at the time of the 
type of work, price, availability, previous workmanship, relevant 
expertise, previous service provided to the residents and previous 
compliance to safety requirements. 

 
(c) That the preferred contractors provide details of the required insurance 

(i.e. Public Liability and Workers’ Compensation), and other conforming 
documents for approval within 14 days from the date of acceptance of 
the Tender. 

 
(d) That Council advise all the respondents of Council’s decision. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Maggio, Laxale, Li, Pendleton, Perram, Pickering, Simon and 
Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillor Salvestro-Martin 

  
  
PRECIS OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
1 ALLENGROVE MAJOR PROJECT CONCEPT PLAN APPROVED BY LAND 

& ENVIRONMENT COURT 
 Note:  Julie Worsley [representing Allengrove Against Inappropriate 

Development (A.A.I.D)], Noel Plumb (representing Ryde Community Alliance), 
Jennie Minifie (representing Ryde Environment Group) and Andrew O’Neill 
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(representing Friends of North Ryde) addressed the meeting in relation to this 
Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Yedelian OAM) 
 
That the correspondence be received and noted. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 

  
  
NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
There were no Notices of Motion. 
 
NOTICES OF RESCISSION  
 
There were no Notices of Rescission. 
 
QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS AS PER POLICY  
 
There were no Questions by Councillors as per Policy. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
 
Darryl Fung addressed the meeting in relation to Items not Listed on the Agenda 
earlier in the Meeting as detailed in these Minutes. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
  
ITEM 18 - MACQUARIE UNIVERSITY - DRAFT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
Confidential 
This item is classified CONFIDENTIAL under Section 10A(2) of the Local 
Government Act, 1993, which permits the meeting to be closed to the public for 
business relating to the following: (d) (i) commercial information of a confidential 
nature that would, if disclosed prejudice the commercial position of the person who 
supplied it. 
 
ITEM 19 - 41 - 45 BELMORE STREET RYDE UNAUTHORISED DEMOLITION 
 
Confidential 
This item is classified CONFIDENTIAL under Section 10A(2) of the Local 
Government Act, 1993, which permits the meeting to be closed to the public for 
business relating to the following: (g) advice concerning litigation, or advice as 
comprises a discussion of this matter, that would otherwise be privileged from 
production in legal proceedings on the ground of legal professional privilege. 
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RESOLUTION: (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Yedelian OAM 
 
That the Council resolve into Closed Session to consider the above matters. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
Note: The Council closed the meeting at 11.27pm. The public and media left the 
chamber. 
 
 
18 MACQUARIE UNIVERSITY - DRAFT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 Note:  Councillor Simon disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest 

in this Item for the reason that he has been involved in employment 
negotiations with Cochlear Limited in his capacity as a union representative. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Salvestro-
Martin) 
 
(a) That Council support the draft development agreement and agree to place 

the draft Agreement on public exhibition for a minimum of 28 days. 
 
(b) That Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to make minor 

amendments to the draft Agreement and to execute the final Agreement. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 

  
 
19 41 - 45 BELMORE STREET RYDE UNAUTHORISED DEMOLITION 

 Note:  Councillor Pickering disclosed a significant non-pecuniary interest in this 
Item for the reason that a contractor employed by his firm has also provided 
services to the party concerned.  Councillor Pickering left the meeting at 
11.35pm and did not return.  Councillor Pickering was not present for 
consideration or voting on this Item. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Laxale) 
 
That Council resolve to issue Bayone Projects P/L with a $3000 Penalty 
Infringement Notice for the unauthorised demolition of a portion of the building 
contrary to development consent LDA 1244/2002.  
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Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  The Mayor, Councillor Petch and Councillors Chung, 
Etmekdjian, Laxale, Li, Maggio, Pendleton, Perram, Salvestro-Martin and 
Yedelian OAM 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillor Simon 

  
  
OPEN SESSION 
 
Note:  Councillor Pickering was not present for consideration or voting on this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION: (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Perram) 
 
That Council resolve itself into open Council. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
Note: Open Council resumed at 11.50pm. 
 
 
Note:  Councillor Pickering was not present for consideration or voting on this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION: (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Perram) 
 
That the recommendations of Items considered in Closed Session be received and 
adopted as resolutions of Council without any alteration or amendment thereto. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
NATIONAL ANTHEM 
 
The National Anthem was sung at the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

The meeting closed at 11.53pm. 
 
 

CONFIRMED THIS 13TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2012 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
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ATTACHMENT 
 
Statements from Councillor Ivan Petch, Mayor, Councillor Justin Li, Councillor Terry 
Perram and Councillor Jeff Salvestro-Martin pursuant to Clause 2.18 of the Code of 
Conduct were tabled at this meeting.  As all statements were identical, the statement 
from Councillor Ivan Petch, Mayor has been attached in accordance with Council’s 
resolution. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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2 REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE MEETING 
12/12 held on 6 November 2012  

Report prepared by: Meeting Support Coordinator 
        File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1293  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
Attached are the Minutes of the Planning and Environment Committee Meeting 12/12 
held on 6 November 2012.  The Minutes will be listed for confirmation at the next 
Planning and Environment Committee Meeting. 
 
Items 1, 2, 4 and 5 were dealt with by the Committee within its delegated powers. 
 
The following Committee recommendation for Item 3 is submitted to Council for 
determination in accordance with the delegations set out in Council’s Code of 
Meeting Practice relating to Charters, functions and powers of Committees: 
 
 
3 16 PUNT ROAD, GLADESVILLE. LOT 502 DP 732745. Local Development 

Application for alterations and additions to seniors housing (residential 
care facility): additional facilities including new office, meeting room, 
change room, and laundry.  LDA2012/0015 

Report:  The Committee inspected the property at 16 Punt Road, Gladesville. 
 
Note:  A document from Geraldine Killalea, dated 6 November 2012 was tabled in 
relation to this item and a copy is ON FILE.  
 
Note:  A document from Brian Hurley, dated 6 November 2012 was tabled in relation 
to this item and a copy is ON FILE.  
 
Note:  Brian Hurley, Warren Bell and Geraldine Killalea (objectors), Margaret Merlin 
(on behalf of the owner) and Rob Puflett (applicant) addressed the Committee in 
relation to this Item. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2012/0015 for 16 Punt Road be deferred for 
mediation with the Group Manager – Environment & Planning, applicant and 
objectors in regard to reducing the overshadowing impacts on the adjoining residents 
to achieve closer compliance with Council’s Development Control Plan 2010. That a 
further report be provided to the Planning & Environment committee within three 
months.  
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous  
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ITEM 2 (continued) 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation. 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Minutes - Planning and Environment Committee - 6 November 2012  
  
 
 
  
 
 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 48 
 
ITEM 2 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

   
Planning and Environment Committee 

MINUTES OF MEETING NO. 12/12 
 
 

 
Meeting Date: Tuesday 6 November 2012 
Location: Committee Room 2, Level 5, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde 
Time:  4.05pm 
 
 
Councillors Present: Councillors Simon (Chairperson), Pendleton, Salvestro-Martin 
and Yedelian OAM. 
 
Councillor Salvestro-Martin arrived at 5.27pm and was not present for consideration 
of Item 1. 
 
 
Apologies:  Councillor Chung. 
 
 
Absent:  Councillor Maggio. 
 
 
Staff Present: Group Manager – Environment & Planning, Service Unit Manager – 
Assessment, Service Unit Manager – Environmental Health & Building, Service Unit 
Manager – Governance, Team Leader – Drainage Engineers, Senior Town Planner, 
Team Leader – Fast Track Team, Consultant Town Planners – Architectus Group, 
Business Support Coordinator – Environment & Planning and Councillor Support 
Coordinator. 
 
 
DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST  
 
There were no disclosures of interest. 
  
 
1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Meeting held on 16 October 2012 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Pendleton) 
 
That the Minutes of the Planning and Environment Committee 11/12, held on 
Tuesday 16 October 2012, be confirmed. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous  
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
2 29 DEVLIN STREET, RYDE. LOTS 5 & 6 DP 83504. Application under 

Section 82A of the EP&A Act 1979, to review Council's determination of 
LDA2011/0521 for construction of a Residential Flat Building 
(APL2012/0001) 

Report:  The Committee inspected the property at 29 Devlin Street, Ryde. 
 
Note:  A Memorandum from Council’s Team Leader – Major Developments, dated 2 
November 2012 was tabled in relation to this item and a copy is ON FILE.  
 
Note:  Robert Del Pizzo (on behalf of the applicant) addressed the Committee in 
relation to this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and Simon) 
 
(a) That Section 82A Review No. APL 2012/0001 at 29 Devlin Street, Ryde being 

Lots 5 & 6 Section E in DP 83504 be approved subject to ‘deferred 
commencement’ in accordance with Section 80(3) of the EP&A Act and subject 
to the ATTACHED conditions (Attachment 3) and the memorandum from 
Council’s Team Leader – Major Developments, dated 2 November 2012. 

 
‘Deferred commencement’ means the consent will not become operative until 
the Applicant has satisfied the requirements listed in Schedule ‘A’ of the 
consent. All issues shall be satisfactorily resolved within a period of six (6) 
months from the ‘Determination Date’, that is shown on the consent. Upon 
compliance with the issues under Schedule ‘A’, and written confirmation from 
Council to that effect, then the consent shall become operative from a “Date of 
Endorsement’ (to be included on the written notification) subject to the 
conditions listed in Schedule ‘B’ and any additional conditions arising from the 
requirement of Schedule ‘A’. 

 
(b) The following deferred commencement conditions will be imposed on the DA: 
  

Part 1 
1. The Applicant is to seek new BASIX and ABSA Certificates. The BASIX 

and ABSA Certificates must satisfy the requirements of these Certificates 
and Council.   

 
2. A Demolition Plan must be provided for the demolition of the existing 

building and structures on site to the satisfaction of Council in accordance 
with:  

a. Australian Standard  AS 2601 – 1991 – The Demolition of 
Structures; and 

b. “Demolition Report for an existing Two and Three-Storey building 
located at 29 Devlin Street, Ryde” (prepared by Architex dated 
15th August 2011) submitted as part of Development Application 
APL 2012/0001. 

Part 2 
3. A detailed site investigation report is prepared and submitted for Council’s 

consideration. The detailed site investigation report must comply with the 
Guidelines for Consultants reporting on Contaminated Sites (EPA, 1997) 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 50 
 
ITEM 2 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

and demonstrate that the site is suitable for the proposed use, or that the 
site can be remediated to the extent necessary for the proposed use. If 
remediation is required, the report should also set out the remediation 
options available for the site and whether the work is considered to be 
category 1 or category 2 remediation works.  
Council may require a site audit of the detailed investigation report. If 
requested by Council, the proponent must submit a site audit summary 
report from an accredited site auditor under the Contaminated Land 
Management Act 1997 verifying the information contained in the detailed 
site investigation.  
 

(c) That the persons who made submissions be advised of Council's decision.  
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous  
 
This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
3 16 PUNT ROAD, GLADESVILLE. LOT 502 DP 732745. Local Development 

Application for alterations and additions to seniors housing (residential 
care facility): additional facilities including new office, meeting room, 
change room, and laundry.  LDA2012/0015 

Report:  The Committee inspected the property at 16 Punt Road, Gladesville. 
 
Note:  A document from Geraldine Killalea, dated 6 November 2012 was tabled in 
relation to this item and a copy is ON FILE.  
 
Note:  A document from Brian Hurley, dated 6 November 2012 was tabled in relation 
to this item and a copy is ON FILE.  
 
Note:  Brian Hurley, Warren Bell and Geraldine Killalea (objectors), Margaret Merlin 
(on behalf of the owner) and Rob Puflett (applicant) addressed the Committee in 
relation to this Item. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That Local Development Application No. 2012/0015 for 16 Punt Road be deferred for 
mediation with the Group Manager – Environment & Planning, applicant and 
objectors in regard to reducing the overshadowing impacts on the adjoining residents 
to achieve closer compliance with Council’s Development Control Plan 2010. That a 
further report be provided to the Planning & Environment committee within three 
months.  
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous  
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation. 
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4 2 OXFORD STREET GLADESVILLE. LOT B DP 359817. Local Development 

Application for construction of a carport / storeroom at the rear of the 
property. LDA2012/0200 

Report:  The Committee inspected the property at 2 Oxford Street, Gladesville. 
 
Note:  John Russell (owner and applicant) addressed the Committee in relation to 
this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and Yedelian OAM) 
 
That Local Development Application No. LDA2012/0200 at 2 Oxford Street, 
Gladesville be approved as a Deferred Commencement Consent subject to the 
ATTACHED conditions (Attachment 2). 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 
 
This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
5 33 DICKSON AVENUE WEST RYDE. LOT 215 DP 13292. Local 

Development Application for construction of a double garage at the rear 
of the site. LDA2012/0235 

Report:  The Committee inspected the property at 33 Dickson Avenue, West Ryde. 
 
Note:  Peter Hall (on behalf of the applicant) addressed the Committee in relation to 
this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Yedelian OAM and Salvestro-Martin) 
 
That Local Development Application No. LDA2012/0235 at 33 Dickson Avenue West 
Ryde be approved as a Deferred Commencement Consent subject to the 
ATTACHED conditions (Attachment 2). 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous  
 
This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
   

The meeting closed at 6.44 pm. 
 
 

CONFIRMED THIS 20TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2012. 
 
 

Chairperson 
 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 52 
 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

3 REPORT OF THE WORKS AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE MEETING 
13/12 held on 6 November 2012  

Report prepared by: Meeting Support Coordinator 
        File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1294  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
Attached are the Minutes of the Works and Community Committee Meeting 13/12 
held on 6 November 2012.  The Minutes will be listed for confirmation at the next 
Works and Community Committee Meeting. 
 
Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9(a), 9(b), 9(c), 9(d), 9(e), 9(f), 9(g), 9(h), 9(i), 9(j), 9(k), 9(l), 
9(m), 9(o), 9(q), 9(r), 9(s), 9(t), 9(u), 9(v) and 9(w) were dealt with by the Committee 
within its delegated powers. 
 
The following Committee recommendations for Items 5, 9(n) and 9(p) are submitted 
to Council for determination in accordance with the delegations set out in Council’s 
Code of Meeting Practice relating to Charters, functions and powers of Committees: 
 
 
5 AUSTRALIAN BADMINTON ASSOCIATION REQUEST FOR SUPPORT 

Note:  Councillor Li disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in this 
Item for the reason that he knows the founder of the Australian Badminton Academy, 
Anna Lao, a Ryde resident. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(a) That Council waive the $508 hire fee for the Australian Badminton Academy for 

the 10 year anniversary celebration at the Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre. 
 
(b)  That the following resolution of Council from 23 August 2011 be extended to 

include any fees and charges levied at all facilities (RALC, ELS Hall etc): 
  
 That Council does not provide fee reductions or fee waivers for sporting groups 

or community organisations except in keeping with the adopted Schedule of 
Fees and Charges in the Delivery Plan 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation 
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9 TRAFFIC AND PARKING MATTERS PRESENTED TO RYDE LOCAL 
TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING held on 27 September 2012 

RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(n) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“OSGATHORPE ROAD AND EVAN STREET,GLADESVILLE” - Request for 
Local Area Traffic Management as follows:   

 
 i. That Council take no action to introduce traffic calming measures in 

Osgathorpe Road, Evan Street and Brereton Street. 
 
 ii That ‘3T’ load limit be installed along Osgathorpe Road, Evan Street and 

Brereton Street subject to RMS concurrence of a suitable Traffic 
Management Plan (TMP). 

 
 iii  That Council investigate the behaviour of vehicles traversing the bend 

along Osgathorpe Road as cars have been known to straddle the road. 
 
 iv  That suitable measures be provided to restrict this type of driving 

behaviour. 
 

Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(p) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“CULLODEN ROAD AND WATERLOO ROAD, MARSFIELD” - Request for 
review of marked pedestrian crossing as follows:  

 
 (i) That Council not approve the request for marked pedestrian crossings 

along Waterloo Road and Culloden Road respectively. 
 
 (ii) That Council redefine the problem and staff speak to Councillors Perram 

and Laxale before bringing a further report back to the Traffic Committee 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Minutes - Works and Community Committee - 6 November 2012  
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Works and Community Committee 

MINUTES OF MEETING NO. 13/12 
 
 

 
Meeting Date: Tuesday 6 November 2012 
Location: Committee Room 1, Level 5, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde 
Time:  4.30pm 
 
 
Councillors Present:  Councillors Perram (Chairperson), Laxale, Li, Etmekdjian and 
Pickering. 
 
Councillor Laxale arrived at 4.50pm and was not present for consideration of Item 1. 
 
Councillor Pickering arrived at 5.00pm and was not present for consideration of Item 1. 
 
 
Apologies:  Nil. 
 
 
Staff Present: Group Manager – Community Life, Group Manager - Public Works, 
Service Unit Manager – Open Space, Service Unit Manager – Ryde Aquatic Leisure 
Centre, Section Manager – Natural Areas and Urban Forest and Executive Assistant to 
the Mayor and Councillors. 
 
 
DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Li disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in Item 5 – 
Australian Badminton Association Request for Support, for the reason that he knows 
the founder of the Australian Badminton Academy, Anna Lao, a Ryde resident. 
 
 
1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Meeting held on 16 October 2012 

Note:  Councillors Laxale and Pickering were not present for consideration of this 
Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Li and Etmekdjian) 
 
That the Minutes of the Works and Community Committee 12/12, held on Tuesday 
16 October 2012, be confirmed. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
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ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
Note:  Councillors Laxale and Pickering were not present for consideration of this 
Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Etmekdjian and Perram) 
 
That as numerous speakers had expressed an interest in addressing the Committee 
on Items 2 and 6, that the Committee now consider those Items. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
 
2 FLOODING AT FIRST AVENUE, EASTWOOD 
Note:  Jackie Slaviero addressed the Committee in relation to this Item. 
 
Note:  Photographs, correspondence and a map were tabled by Ms Slaviero in 
relation to this Item and copies are ON FILE. 
 
Note:  Councillors Laxale arrived at 4.50pm during discussion of this Item. 
 
Note:  Councillor Pickering arrived at 5.00pm during discussion of this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Li) 
 
(a) That Council staff, consult with the residents of No 11 First Avenue of the result 

of the investigation. 
 
(b) That a further report be brought to Council on the results of the consultation 

with the residents of 11 First Avenue to take into account their preferences. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
6 UPDATE ON WOLFE ROAD RESERVE  
Note:  Noel Plumb, Julie Lee and Leonie Dean addressed the Committee in relation 
to this Item. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
(a) That Council note the findings of the property boundary survey. 
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(b) That Council commence an education and awareness process in relation to the 

encroachment issues relating to the Wolfe Road Reserve. 
 
(c) Should this approach fail within 6 months, that Council seek legal advice on the 

issue of encroachment and report the matter back to the Works and Community 
Committee. 

 
(d) That Council endorse option 1 of the Environmental report and this be 

undertaken as follows: 
 that Council request the resident immediately cease mowing of the lower 

part of the Reserve. That Council engage with the affected resident 
 signage be placed on the upper part of the Reserve advising of the 

management strategy for active and natural bushland area of the Reserve 
 continue removal of environmental weeds by Council with exception of the 

Jacaranda 
 placement of logs by Council to clearly define the boundary between open 

bushland and open space, approximately 30 metres from the road gutter 
(option 1) 

 a row of mat rush be planted adjacent to and downslope of the logs 
 on the lower part of the Reserve, Council remove the exotic garden 

plantings and place large logs and rocks to define the property boundary 
and bushland area 

 Council continue with ongoing bush regeneration works  
 
(e) Following the completion of the above actions, Council recommence efforts to 

engage the community in the formation of a Bushcare group. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
3 REPORT ON EXTENSION OF ELIGIBLE PENSIONER SUBSIDY AT THE 

RYDE AQUATIC LEISURE CENTRE 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Etmekdjian) 
 
(a) That Council note that an un-time-limited extension would cost Council 
 $120,000 and on that basis Council extend the Eligible Resident Pensioner 
 subsidy for free swim entry at the RALC to include OFF PEAK time access to 
 the spa, sauna and steam room facilities effective immediately. 
 
(b) That Council make an adjustment to the Governance budget to reflect the 

estimated additional $9,000 per year impact at the next quarterly review at a pro 
rata amount of $6,750. 
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Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
4 CHILDREN'S PLAY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR THE CITY OF RYDE 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(a) That Council place on public exhibition the draft Children’s Play Implementation 

Plan for a period of four weeks. During notification period residents likely to be 
impacted during first two years be notified.  

 
(b) Following the public exhibition process, a further report be submitted to Council 

on the feedback received during the process and any proposed changes to the 
draft Children’s Play Implementation Plan. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
5 AUSTRALIAN BADMINTON ASSOCIATION REQUEST FOR SUPPORT 

Note:  Councillor Li disclosed a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in this 
Item for the reason that he knows the founder of the Australian Badminton Academy, 
Anna Lao, a Ryde resident. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(a) That Council waive the $508 hire fee for the Australian Badminton Academy for 

the 10 year anniversary celebration at the Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre. 
 
(b)  That the following resolution of Council from 23 August 2011 be extended to 

include any fees and charges levied at all facilities (RALC, ELS Hall etc): 
  
 That Council does not provide fee reductions or fee waivers for sporting groups 

or community organisations except in keeping with the adopted Schedule of 
Fees and Charges in the Delivery Plan 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation 
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6 UPDATE ON WOLFE ROAD RESERVE 
 
Note:  This Item was considered earlier in the meeting as detailed in these Minutes. 
 
 
7 CONCORD & RYDE SAILING CLUB REQUEST 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Laxale and Li) 
 
That Council write to the Concord and Ryde Sailing Club advising that whilst Council 
is not able to provide funds at this time for their grant application, it is appreciative of 
their efforts and that Council will further consider the matter prior to the 2013/14 
round of the Sharing Sydney Harbour program. 

Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
8 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING -  NORTH SYDNEY RABBIT 

MANAGEMENT PLAN &ACTION PLAN FOR CITY OF RYDE 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Li and Laxale) 
 
(a) That the Council adopt the North Sydney Rabbit Management Plan and City of 

Ryde’s Action Plan. 
 
(b) That all relevant documents be signed in line with the Council resolution. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
9 TRAFFIC AND PARKING MATTERS PRESENTED TO RYDE LOCAL 

TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING held on 27 September 2012 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Perram and Etmekdjian) 
 
That the traffic and parking measures resulting from the Ryde Traffic Committee at its 
meeting on 27 September 2012 be dealt with in seriatim. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion: Unanimous 
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RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(a) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“PLASSEY ROAD, NORTH RYDE” - Request for “No Parking” restrictions as 
follows:   

 
 That Council approve the installation of “No Parking” restrictions on the western 

side of Plassey Road between Cemetery Gate and the bend approximately 150 
metres to provide safe environment for pedestrians and cars with caravans and 
trailers. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(b) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“DAVID AVENUE, NORTH RYDE” - Request for “No Parking” on one side as 
follows:   

 
 i. That Council take no action to introduce additional parking controls  
  along David Avenue between McGregor Street and bend at the   
  present time. 

 
ii  That Council consider small section of rumble bars at the bend along David 

Avenue outside, No. 66. 
 

Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(c) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“PORTER STREET, RYDE” - Request for No Parking as follows:   
 
  That Council approve the installation of “No Parking” restriction on the  

 north western side of Porter Street, in front of No. 2 to No. 4 Porter Street  for 
40 metres covering the property frontage. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
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RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(d) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“SPOONER PLACE, NORTH RYDE” - Request for amendments to Parking 
Restrictions as follows:  

 
 i. That Council take no action on parking changes fronting the  residential 

properties along Spooner Place and change of existing 2P parking on south 
eastern end of Spooner Place to unrestricted parking.  

 
 ii. That Council install “DO NOT QUEUE ACROSS INTERSECTION” signpost 

on Wicks Road at the Spooner Place intersection. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(e) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“RESERVE STREET, WEST RYDE” - Request for short term parking 
restrictions as follows:  

   
 That Council approve the conversion of one (1) 1P parking space to “P10 

MINUTE” (8am-6pm, Mon - Sun) parking space closer to Anthony Road to 
enable a  “pick up / drop off” point for equipment and supplies for community 
events in front of West Ryde Community Centre along Reserve Street. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(f) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“CHARLES STREET,PUTNEY” - Request for disabled parking space as follows:  
 
 That Council approve the conversion of one (1) 1/2P parking space to a 

“DISABLED” parking space closer to Council car park access along Charles 
Street. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
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RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(g) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“GERARD LANE (NORTH OF GERARD STREET), GLADESVILLE – Difficulty 
in garbage collection as follows:   

 
 That Council install “No Parking” (5am -11am), restrictions on Tuesday on the 

western side (50 metre in length) of Gerard Lane which is north of Gerard 
Street. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(h) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“KEATS AVENUE, RYDE" - Difficulty in garbage collection as follows:  
  
 That Council install ‘No Parking’ (5am-11am), restrictions on Thursdays within 

the kerbside of cul-de-sac (inclusive of a 6 metre “lead-in”) at Keats  Avenue, 
Ryde. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(i) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“REGENT STREET, PUTNEY” - Request for Traffic Calming devices as follows:  
 

i That council install a broken centre line in Regent Street between Morrison 
Road and Wade Street. 

 
ii That NSW Police be requested to undertake surveillance in the area to 

encourage compliance with the posted speed limit for local roads. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 62 
 
ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(j) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“WATERVIEW STREET,PUTNEY” - Request for Traffic Calming devices as 
follows:   

 
 That Council install a broken centre line in Waterview Street between Charles 

and Osborne Streets. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(k) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“HARVARD STREET, GLADESVILLE - Request for review of traffic flows as 
follows:   

 
 That Council take no action to introduce traffic calming measures (speed 

humps) in Harvard Street as the traffic survey data does not support its 
implementation at the present time. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(l) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“JULIUS AVENUE, NORTH RYDE’ - Request for pedestrian refuge as follows: 
  

 That due to sight constraints, no action be taken with regard to the request for a 
pedestrian refuge. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
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RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(m) That Council adopt the following recommendation in relation to the report titled 

“WINBOURNE STREET’ WEST RYDE” - Request for raised Wombat crossing 
as follows:   

 
 That Council list for future budget consideration the conversion of the two (2) 

existing marked pedestrian crossings into a raised pedestrian crossing on 
Winbourne Street (including zig-zag linemarking). 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(n) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“OSGATHORPE ROAD AND EVAN STREET,GLADESVILLE” - Request for 
Local Area Traffic Management as follows:   

 
 i. That Council take no action to introduce traffic calming measures in 

Osgathorpe Road, Evan Street and Brereton Street. 
 
 ii That ‘3T’ load limit be installed along Osgathorpe Road, Evan Street and 

Brereton Street subject to RMS concurrence of a suitable Traffic 
Management Plan (TMP). 

 
 iii  That Council investigate the behaviour of vehicles traversing the bend 

along Osgathorpe Road as cars have been known to straddle the road. 
 
 iv  That suitable measures be provided to restrict this type of driving 

behaviour. 
 

Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation 
 

 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 

 
(o) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“MILROY STREET, NORTH RYDE’ - Request for review of traffic flow as 
follows:   
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 i. That Council not approve traffic calming measures along Milroy Street at 

the present. 
 
 ii. That Council monitor the traffic conditions along Milroy Street and further 

report be tabled at the, Traffic Committee in six (6) months  time. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(p) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“CULLODEN ROAD AND WATERLOO ROAD, MARSFIELD” - Request for 
review of marked pedestrian crossing as follows:  

 
 (i) That Council not approve the request for marked pedestrian crossings 

along Waterloo Road and Culloden Road respectively. 
 
 (ii) That Council redefine the problem and staff speak to Councillors Perram 

and Laxale before bringing a further report back to the Traffic Committee 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on 13 NOVEMBER 2012 as 

substantive changes were made to the published recommendation 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(q) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report titled 

“KENT ROAD, NORTH RYDE’ - Request for review of pedestrian safety as 
follows:   

 
i. That Council approve the installation of a 30 metres bus zone and 30 

metre “No Stopping” zone along the northern side of Kent Road between 
Herring Road and pedestrian crossing. 

 
ii. That existing “No Stopping” signs be extended on both sides of Kent Road 

east of crossing up to the existing barrier lines 
 
iii. That Council approve the installation of Zig-Zag lines along Kent Road 

prior to the crossing. 
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iv. That Council write to Kent Road Public School and suggest that the school 

 make application to the RMS with regard to: 
 

1. The provision of a school crossing supervisor to oversee the Kent 
Road crossing. 

2.  That the school be encouraged to apply for flashing school zone 
signage along Kent Road and Herring Road. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 

 
(r) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report  titled 

“GANNET STREET, GLADESVILLE” - Request traffic flow and  parking as 
follows:   
 
i.  As an interim measure subject to TMP approval that a ‘No Right Hand 

Turn sign’ be erected on Pittwater Road into Gannet Street. 
 
ii. That this matter be further investigated. A set of questions will be framed 

for review by residents to ensure a holistic approach is undertaken prior to 
referral to the (technical) investigator/entity.  

 
iii. A further report to be submitted to this committee with the results of the 

investigation. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(s) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report  
 titled “COX’S ROAD, NORTH RYDE’ - Request for speed hump or similar  
 as follows:   
 
 That this matter be referred back to the Traffic Committee with a report on  
 traffic calming devices (kerb blisters) which could be implemented at the  
 intersections at Hartford and Jopling Streets with Coxs Road. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
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RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(t) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report  
 titled “GIFFNOCK AVENUE, MACQUARIE PARK” - Request for Work  
 Zone as follows:   

 
 i. That approval for the Work Zone along the frontage of No.22 Giffnock 

 Avenue property for 36.5 metres in length be granted for the period 1 
 September 2012 to 31 March 2013, subject to the following: 

 
1. Payment of Work Zone Permit Fee in full accordance with Council’s 

approved Fees and Charges 2012/13. 
2. Payment of Parking Meter Fees in full accordance with Council’s 

approved Fees and Charges 2012/13 due to the resumption of 
metered parking spaces for the duration of the Work Zone period 

 
ii. That the Work Zone operates between the hours of 7am to 5pm, Monday 

to Friday, and 8am to 1pm on Saturday. 
 
iii. That 12P parking restrictions be re-instated upon expiry of the Work Zone 

 period (31 March 2013) or prior to Council’s satisfaction by the builder. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 
 
(u) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report  
 titled “GRANNY SMITH FESTIVAL” - Request for temporary road closures 
 as follows:   

 
i. That the following road closures and traffic management protocols be 

 recommended to the RMS for approval as part of operation of the 2012 
 Granny Smith Festival. 

 
ii. That subject to approval of the temporary closure from the RMS, the 

following conditions apply: 
1. That approval be given for the procession route and necessary 

temporary road are closed at the Granny Smith Festival half an hour 
prior to the Parade starting on Saturday 20 October 2012. The 
Procession route and temporary road closures are along Lakeside 
Road, Glen Street, Shaftsbury Road, Rowe Street, The Avenue 
returning to Eastwood Oval via Lakeside Road. 

2. That approval be given for the temporary closure of Rowe Street 
(Shaftsbury Road to Eastwood Plaza) and The Avenue (Rowe Street 
to Hillview Lane) and Progress Avenue (The Avenue to Hillview Road) 
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and Trelawney Street (Rowe Street and Rutledge Street) from 6.00pm 
on Friday 19 October 2012 to 9.00pm (or until stalls have been 
collected) on Saturday 20 October 2012. 

3. That approval be given for the temporary closure of Hillview Lane 
(between Shaftsbury Road and The Avenue) from 6.00am to 9.00pn 
on Saturday 20 October 2012 and Hillview Road between Lakeside 
Road and West Parade from 8.30am to 5.00pm on Saturday 20 
October 2012. 

4. That temporary “No Stopping” signs be erected on the eastern side of 
Shaftsbury Road between Rowe Street and Rutledge Street between 
6.00am and 9.00pm Saturday 20 October 2012. 

5. That temporary “No Stopping” signs be erected on Lakeside Road, 
between Hillview Road and Glen Street, between 6.00am and 9.00pm 
Saturday 20 October 2012. 

6. That the stall hire company be permitted to commence set up from 
12.00 noon on Friday 19 October 2012 on the Plaza and from 6.00pm 
on Rowe Street, The Avenue and Progress Avenue. 

7. That large sized warning signs be erected notifying the public of the 
activities related to the Festival set up, the temporary road closures 
and alterations to bus routes. 

8. That temporary bus stops be located in Wingate Avenue from 6.00am 
on Saturday 20 October 2012 to 6.00am Sunday 21 October 2012 
and at the eastern side of the Plaza at West Parade, from 5.00pm on 
Friday 19 October 2012 to 6.00am Sunday 21 October 2012 and the 
affected bus stops be signposted to redirect patrons to the temporary 
location. 

9. That temporary “No stopping” signs be erected in Rutledge Street on 
both sides between Trelawney Street and Shaftsbury Road. 

10. That the Eastwood Chamber of Commerce be advised of the 
proposals. 

11. That the Traffic Officer stationed in Eastwood Police Station be 
notified in writing. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 

 
(v) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report  titled 

“TWIN ROAD, NORTH RYDE” – Forthcoming Special Events as follows:   
 
i. That temporary “No Parking” signs be installed on both sides of Twin Road 

 between Badajoz Road and Wicks Road and “No Stopping” signs be 
installed 10 metres from the corners of side streets on Sunday, 16 
December 2012 and on Saturday, 26 January 2013, for the respective 
 special events Carols by Candlelight (December 2012) and Australia Day 
(January 2013). 
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ii. That disabled parking be allowed in a designated area on the Common near 

 the western end of Twin Road, with the area controlled on the day by SES 
personnel. 

 
iii. That necessary signposting be installed in advance of the event and 

affected residents in Twin Road and intersecting streets be advised of 
arrangements. 

 
iv. That step be taken to ensure that only existing vehicle entry/exit points are 

used by vehicles and, other than disabled parking, no additional entry/exit 
points are used. 

 
v. That the cost for installation and removal of the necessary traffic signs is to 

be borne by the organiser. 
 
vi. That the approval is subject to a submission to Council and verification 

from the insurers that the event is covered by an appropriate Public 
Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $20 million. 

 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
RESOLUTION:  (Moved by Councillors Pickering and Laxale) 

 
(w) That Council adopt the following recommendations in relation to the report  titled 

“GOULDING ROAD, RYDE” – Restricted No Right turn from Goulding Road into 
Bruce Street as follows:  

 
 That this item be referred back to the Traffic Committee after further 

consideration of upstream access conditions along Goulding Road. 
 
Record of Voting: 
 
For the Motion:  Unanimous 
 
Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers. 
 
   

The meeting closed at 6.10pm. 
 
 

CONFIRMED THIS 20TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2012. 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
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4 STAFF CULTURE SURVEY - RESULTS  

Report prepared by: Manager - Strategy and Organisational Development 
       File No.: GRP/09/7/2/2 - BP12/1152  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
Following a Councillor workshop on 13 November, this report provides Council with 
the results of the Staff Culture Survey that was conducted in August 2012 by the 
Voice Project of Macquarie University.  It was the second time that the survey has 
been conducted at the City of Ryde, the first being in August 2010. The 2010 survey 
created a baseline against which progress can be measured. Improvements in the 
staff culture survey were an expectation of the General Managers Performance 
Assessment for 2010/11. 
 
The report provides a view of the health of our workforce culture and workplace as 
well as our organisational strengths and areas for further development.  The 
methodology compares our data with other Councils and the private sector. 
 
The comparison between results, identifies where change management 
improvements can bring the greatest increase in productivity/performance and 
commitment to the workplace, which will ultimately enhance customer service as we 
move forward.   
 
The largest improvement identified by staff was their opinions of leadership which 
showed a significant improvement of 32% over two years. Whilst many improvements 
have already been made as a result of our management of change program, further 
improvements are required in some areas to take us to the forefront of benchmarks in 
the local government and the private sector. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council notes the significant improvements in the past two years in the Staff 
Culture Survey as independently assessed by the Voice Project and receives the 
report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
There are no attachments for this report. 
 
Report Prepared By: 
 
Beki Boulet 
Manager - Strategy and Organisational Development  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
John Neish 
General Manager 
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Discussion 
 
Leading organisations are able to maximise customer service productivity, 
performance and commitment, when they address the culture or their organisations.  
Outstanding Customer service levels are a result of a range of complex issues of 
which a constructive staff culture is one. Areas that impact on our organisational 
culture are defined as Cultural Management Practices as described in our City of 
Ryde Business Model. At the City of Ryde we have 570 full time, part time and casual 
staff who work across a wide range of service areas and in doing so, create a 
workplace culture that can be defined, measured and compared to others. 
 
In 2010 we undertook an independently conducted culture survey using a 
methodology developed by the Voice Project to help us understand how our staff feel 
about their workplace and their level of commitment to working here.  The Voice 
Project, is a division of Macquarie University. They were selected to conduct the 
survey due to their extensive experience and available research in both private 
enterprise and across a growing number of metropolitan councils.  This meant that in 
addition to their expertise, knowledge and research they were positioned to provide 
us with appropriate benchmarking and also provided us with an analysis of the areas 
on which we should focus our improvement efforts. 
 
All staff were surveyed in August 2010 using hand held technology and this resulted 
in high participation rates across all sectors of our workforce. The results of the 
survey were widely circulated and acted upon during the course of the next two 
years. The results formed a basis of discussion at team meetings, communication 
from the executive team and a plethora of localised and corporate wide initiatives 
focussed on improving workplace issues both big and small.  
 
In August 2012, the same survey was conducted and comparisons between the 
results have been made. The General Managers Performance Objective 9 for 
2011/12 sought to further enhance the leadership style of the organisation and 
improve the overall Council wide results of the Voice Project survey against the 2010 
baseline. As can be seen this was achieved. 
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High Level Results 
The predominant overarching indicators produced by Voice Project are the Passion 
and Progress categories: 
 

  Changes over 
the past two 
years 

Counc
ils 

Private 
Sector 

Progress 
   

 Customer satisfaction 
 Change and Innovation 
 Organisation objectives 
 

66%  4% 52% 68% 

Passion 
   

 Job Satisfaction 
 Intention to stay  
 Organisational 

Commitment 

67%  4% 70% 64% 

Overall 
Happiness   
  

Happy to be working at City of 
Ryde 

75%  5%   

 
Under the Progress and Passion categories there are 29 categories, all of which 
contribute to an organisation’s culture. As can be seen the City of Ryde’s Progress 
indicators which measures delivery are 14% ahead of other local government 
benchmarks but are 2% behind the private sector. The Passion indicator which 
measures commitment to the organisation is 3% higher than the private sector 
comparators and 3% lower than local government benchmarks. 
 
Overall the results showed an increase in 26 of the 29 categories measured by the 
survey with the greatest improvement being in Leadership showing a 32% increase 
on the 2010 results. 
  
Both the highest and lowest scoring results are summarised below. 
 
Highest Scoring Results 
The highest scoring categories were: 
 

  2012 
Results 

Changes over 
the past two 
years 

Other 
Councils 

Private 
Sector 

Role Clarity  86% (   1%) 85% 79% 
Team work   85% (   1%) 83% 81% 
Mission and Values  82% (   5%) 74% 73% 
Organisation Direction   79% ( 21%) 54% 63% 
Customer Satisfaction  77% (   1%) 61% 74% 
Work/Life balance  77% (   3%) 81% 76% 
Results Focus  77% (   8%) 67% 76% 
Ethics  77% ( 10%) 70% 70% 
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As can be seen the City of Ryde is highest in these categories against other Councils 
and the private sector comparators. The development of the new Community  
 
Strategic Plan, Four year delivery plan and one year operational plan, greater clarity 
of  accountability and significant efforts to improve leadership styles and internal 
communications contributed to the increase of 21% in the Organisation Direction 
result.  
 
Lowest Scoring Results 
At the other end of the scale the lowest scoring categories are: 
 

  2012 
Results 

Changes over 
the past two 
years 

Other 
Councils 

Private 
sector 

Facilities  26% (   1%) 42% 61% 
Cross Unit Cooperation  35% ( 10%) 30% 50% 
Career Opportunities  35%  (   7%) 34% 44% 
Technology   38% (   7%) 51% 60% 
Involvement  43% ( 13%) 46% 49% 

   
Satisfaction with facilities is the overall lowest scoring category and is 16% lower than 
other Council benchmarks and 35% lower than private sector comparators. It refers 
specifically to staff satisfaction with their workplace conditions and was the lowest 
scoring category in 2010. It continues to be a low scoring category sliding down a 
further 1%. Council has recently conducted a workshop to discuss the best way to 
address the staff facilities at the Civic Precinct site. Overcrowding also exists in the 
Constitution Road workplace and this will also need to be addressed over time. The 
recent relocation of Community Life staff from the condemned Argyle building to new 
premises above the library in Top Ryde should also help to address this issue over 
time.  
 
Although cross unit cooperation is the second lowest scoring category it has 
improved by 10% from 2010 and is now higher than local government benchmarks 
but lower than the private sector comparators.  This improvement is as a result of the 
effort put into internal communications, defining asset management roles between 
Business Managers and Delivery Managers and a focus on our value of teamwork. 
The introduction of cross unit project disciplines including staff training, the 
development of team based process manuals etc has further improved cross unit 
cooperation. Overtime it is hoped to see this area improve further to be better than 
private sector benchmarks. 
 
Career Opportunities has improved by 10% from 2010 reflecting the improvements in 
internal promotions. Gender equity in managerial positions has also contributed to 
the improvement of this indicator. Further work is required to provide staff with career 
opportunities if we are to attract and keep good talent and maintain low attrition which 
is now under 10%. 
 
 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 73 
 
ITEM 4 (continued) 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Availability and relevance of technology continues to be a problem. This indicator 
refers to currency of software and its efficiency.  It was scored low in 2010 and it has 
dropped a further 7%, more than any other indicator.  Our score is 23% lower than 
comparative Council’s and 32% lower than private sector comparators indicating an 
underinvestment and focus on this area over time.  
 
To address the technology backlog at the City of Ryde will take several years. To 
begin we have upgraded the Technology One platform on which many of our core 
modules are built. This will now enable upgraded modules to be implemented. We 
have also recently completed a forward development plan for our technological 
needs for both hardware and software and this will be subject of future bids in our 
budget process. This also includes the transition to off site hosting and an improved 
telecommunications contract which will deliver better mobile technologies. 
 
Getting our technology to a point where we can match private sector provision will be 
critical in driving service improvement and efficiency in our business. The workforce 
of today demand the latest in communication technology, hand held devices and web 
enabled software. These areas are all covered in our technology development plan. 
 
Involvement includes the empowerment of our workforce in decision making. Whilst 
one of our lowest scoring areas, our results have improved by 13%, we are still 3% 
lower than other Council benchmarks and 6% behind private sector benchmarks. 
  
Whilst work has been carried out to create a workplace culture where people feel 
more involvement further work in this area is required. 
  
Least Improved results 
It is important to note that of the 29 categories only three categories actually scored 
lower than in the 2010 results, these are Facilities, Technology and Resources. 
 

  2012 
Results 

Changes over 
the past two 
years 

Other Councils Private sector 

Technology     38% ( 7%) 51% 60% 
Facilities     26% ( 1%) 42% 61% 
Resources    44% ( 0.9%) 61% 67% 

 
Technology and Facilities are mentioned in the paragraph above. 
 
Resources refers to equipment and access to resources.  It is the third indicator that 
declined 1% although the overall score was 43% but is still well below local 
government and private sector benchmarks. 
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Most Improved Results 
Of the 28 categories the three most improved results which showed significant 
movement were as follows:- 
 

  2012 
Results 

Changes over 
the past two 
years 

Other Councils Private sector 

Leadership  63% ( 32%) 44% 61% 
Organisation Direction  79% ( 21%) 54% 63% 
Supervision  72% ( 20%) 69% 74% 

 
Leadership has the most effective impact on the organisation and the change of 32% 
in the past two years places the City of Ryde at the forefront of both the local 
government and private sectors (19% and 2% respectively). This improvement 
follows a deliberate campaign to address one of the lowest ranked results in the 2010 
survey.  The Leadership category is specifically referring to Senior Management: - 
the General Manager and Group Managers.  The Business Model for the City of 
Ryde Council identifies an approach to leadership which has formed the basis of 
executive coaching, mentoring and the use of 360% feedback. It is pleasing to see 
that these efforts have demonstrated significant improvements. 
 
Organisational direction has also significantly improved exceeding Council and 
private sector comparators by significant levels (24% and 16% respectively). This 
was as a direct result of the development of our strategic plan, four year delivery plan 
and their alignment to business plans and personal performance plans. It also relates 
to a large effort to reinforce our values of Safety, Teamwork, Ethics and 
Professionalism. 
 
Supervision was also most improved and refers to the way that all other management 
levels are perceived. With an improvement of 20% the City of Ryde is 3% higher than 
local government comparators and 5% lower than private sector comparators. These 
improvements are also as a result of targeted training, mentoring and coaching. 
 
In conclusion, it is pleasing to see that as a result of our management of change 
process, the workforce culture is improving across a range of fronts. Utilising the 
Voice Project survey methodology we are able to better understand our workplace 
culture strengths and weaknesses.   
 
Research demonstrates that organisations which develop constructive workplace 
cultures maximise customer service productivity, performance and commitment. The 
results of this survey provide us with the knowledge to help us further improve all 
areas of Councils operations. We can analyse the results at a Group, Service Unit or 
Section level to focus on areas of weakness. Like the General Managers 
performance indicators, all Group, Service and Section Managers are appraised 
using the results of their particular teams results every two years. 
 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 75 
 
ITEM 4 (continued) 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
To be productive, staff have many needs not the least of which are clarity of direction, 
strong leadership, the right equipment, appropriate resources and a healthy well 
designed work environment.  This report provides us with the ability to identify the 
areas that will most positively impact on our workplace culture and therefore improve 
our business. 
 
The focus on improved work place culture, coupled with other areas of strategy 
development, process and systems improvements will further create an organisation 
focussed on continuous improvement in customer service, innovation and efficiency.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
Adoption of the recommendation will have no financial impact. 
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5 2011/2012 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Report prepared by: Chief Financial Officer 
       File No.: FIM/07/6/4/2/3 - BP12/1266  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
To present Council’s 2011/2012 Annual Financial Statements (including General and 
Special Purpose Financial Statements) to the public following the public exhibition 
period and to allow Council’s Chief Financial Officer, Council’s External Auditor, Hill 
Rogers Spencer Steer and members of the Audit Committee to make a presentation 
to Council and answer questions in respect of the 2011/2012 Financial Statements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
(a) That in accordance with Section 419 of the Local Government Act, Council 

receive and note the Auditors Reports on the 2011/2012 Annual Financial 
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 

 
(b) That any public submissions on the 2011/2012 Financial Reports be referred to 

Council’s Auditors, Hill Rogers Spencer Steer, Chartered Accountants. 
 
(c) That Council suspend standing orders to allow a presentation by Council’s staff 

and any comments by or questions of the external auditor, Hill Rogers Spencer 
Steer or members of the Audit Committee, in respect of the 2011/2012 Financial 
Statements including the Auditor’s Reports. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Income Statement  
2  Statement of Comprehensive Income  
3  Balance Sheet  
4  Statement of Changes in Equity  
5  Statement of Cash Flows  
6  Auditors Reports on Statements  
7  2011-2012 Audited Financial Statements - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE 

COVER 
 

 
Report Prepared By: 
 
John Todd 
Chief Financial Officer  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
Roy Newsome 
Group Manager - Corporate Services 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 77 
 
ITEM 5 (continued) 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Discussion 
 
Council at its meeting of 9 October 2012 resolved to refer the draft Annual Financial 
Reports for the year ended 30 June 2012 to Audit. 
 
The Council’s Audit Committee had previously met, via teleconference on 27 August 
2012 to review the 2011/2012 Annual Financial Statements and had recommended 
to Council that the reports be referred for Audit. 
 
The Council’s Auditors, Hill Rogers Spencer Steer, Chartered Accountants, have 
completed the audit and copies of the Auditor’s Reports are included in the Annual 
Financial Statements, which were received on 15 October 2012. 
 
The Annual Financial Statements were sent to the Division of Local Government 
(DLG) on the 16 October 2012, ahead of the statutory 7 November 2012 timeframe.  
It should be noted that an application was made to the DLG seeking an extension of 
time, as the original time for referral had been deferred, and staff were not sure we 
would be able to make the deadline if further delays occurred.   
 
The DLG’s Chief Executive advised Council on 22 October 2012, that Council’s 
application was declined, for the reason that “I do not believe that the inability of 
Council to achieve a quorum at that meeting represents an extraordinary 
circumstance.” 
 
The Annual Financial Statements together with the Auditor’s Reports were placed on 
public exhibition from 17 October 2012 to 20 November 2012, inviting public 
submissions with the Annual Financial Statements to be presented to Council at its 
meeting of 13 November 2012.  Submissions in accordance with Section 420 of the 
Local Government Act 1993, from members of the public regarding any aspect of the 
Financial Reports or Auditor’s Reports will be received up to 20 November 2012, 
being seven days after the date of this meeting. 
 
All submissions will be considered by Council and referred to its Auditor in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1993. 
 
Report 
 
Council's Financial Statements, which includes the Auditor’s Reports for 2011/2012 
have been completed and are CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER 
(Attachment 7).  The statements are now formally presented to the public as required 
by Section 419 of the Local Government Act 1993. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
The Financial Statements consist of the following General Purpose Financial 
Statements: 
 
i. Income Statement (ATTACHED) 
ii. Statement of Comprehensive Income (ATTACHED) 
iii. Balance Sheet (ATTACHED) 
iv. Statement of Changes in Equity (ATTACHED) 
v. Statement of Cash Flows (ATTACHED) 
vi. Notes to the Financial Statements 1 to 26 
vii. Auditors Reports on the Statements (ATTACHED) 
 
The Financial Statements also include Special Purpose Financial Statements.  These 
relate to the following designated business activities of Council: 
 
 Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre  
 Commercial Waste Removal  
 
No public submissions have been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer will make a presentation to the Council meeting on 13 
November 2012 on Council’s financial performance for the year. Council’s External 
Auditors and members of the Audit Committee will also be present at the Council 
meeting to provide additional comments and to answer any questions on the 
Financial Reports and the Auditors Reports. 
 
The Auditor has issued an unqualified opinion in the Audit Report, noting Council’s 
investment portfolio has been sufficiently addressed in previous years and the 
remaining CDO investments will be monitored until maturity. 
 
The following summary of the City of Ryde’s financial results and key financial 
performance measures for 2011/2012, demonstrates Council’s sound financial 
position: 
 
Financial Results 2009 2010(1) 2011 2012 
  000's 000's 000's 000's 
          
Operating Result $58,843 $8,073 $15,987 $23,246 
Operating Result Before Capital ($5,497) ($4,215) $448 $460 
Total Cash & Investments $66,366 $63,051 $69,064 $63,051 
Internal Reserves $48,582 $49,684 $51,676 $50,889 
Working Capital $4,331 $4,549 $4,205 $5,360 
       
Assets under Management $2.51B $2.54B $2.53B $2.56B 

(1) Adjusted for Contributed Assets that were derecognised, as a prior year error. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Performance Indicators 
 
The following key performance indicators provide further information on Council’s 
financial performance:  
 
Note 13 Performance Indicators 2009 2010(1) 2011 2011 
       
Unrestricted Current Ratio 3.45 4.67 4.79 3.72 
Debt Service Ratio 1.40% 0.85% 0.83% 0.75% 
Rate Coverage Ratio 36.50% 61.16% 56.29% 51.48% 
Rates & Annual Charges Outstanding 3.90% 4.10% 3.99% 4.19% 
Building & Infrastructure Renewal Ratio 122.50% 49.24% 47.87% 80.19% 

(1) Adjusted for Contributed Assets that were derecognised, as a prior year error. 
 
The result for 2011/2012 is a sound result for the City of Ryde that reflects the efforts 
of Council, all stakeholders and staff in maintaining Council’s financial position. 
 
Working Capital 
 
Council’s 2011/2015 Four Year Delivery Plan including One Year Operational Plan 
was adopted on a projected Working Capital position of $3.09 million as at 30 June 
2012.  The 2011/2012 actual result is a Working Capital position of $5.36 million, an 
improvement of $2.27 million on that forecast.  Council’s Working Capital was $4.21 
million as at 30 June 2011. 
 
The budget for 2012/2013 projected a Working Capital position as at 30 June 2013 of 
$2.40 million in utilising $1.64 million from Working Capital.  The actual Working 
Capital result of $5.36 million will therefore be reduced to $3.72 million as at 30 June 
2013. 
 
The minimum level of Working Capital that Council should operate on is $3.00 
million, with the current level of Internal Restrictions. 
 
Investments 
 
Council had $63.05 million in cash and investments at 30 June 2012, of which $7.25 
million was unrestricted and is part of the calculation of Working Capital.  The 
remainder is either Internally Restricted, $50.89 million, which has been earmarked 
specifically by Council for a particular purpose or Externally Restricted by legislation, 
$20.94 million, which can only be used for the purpose for which it has been 
provided. 
 
Council has the ability to change the Internal Restrictions that it has placed over its 
Cash Reserves, but would need to take into account the reasons that the Reserve 
was created in the first place, to ensure that it does not reduce its ability to meet the 
need for which it was established. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Assets under Management 
 
In 2011/2012 Council delivered a $24.07 million Capital Works Program, excluding 
contributed assets, ($22.89 million in 2010/2011) with major projects including: 
 

 Civic Centre Redevelopment $ 2.63 million 
 Strategy & Org Dev $ 0.10 million 
 Technology Systems $ 0.71 million 
 Urban Planning $ 0.37 million 
 Asset Renewals/Expansion $ 9.28 million 
 Stormwater $ 2.07 million 
 Parks $ 2.49 million 
 Buildings & Property $ 1.73 million 
 Waste & Fleet $ 2.98 million 
 Libraries $ 0.71 million 
 Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre $ 0.93 million 
 Other minor capital $ 0.07 million 

 
Council brought $12.50 million in “contributed assets” to account this year ($8.34 
million in 2010/2011) which increased Council’s Assets under Management to $2.56 
billion.  The only contributed asset that was brought to account during 2011/2012 was 
the West Ryde Community Centre. 
 
Council has revalued all its infrastructure assets to fair value and has depreciated 
them using the decay model based on the Asset Management Guidelines prepared 
and endorsed by the seven member Councils of NSROC.  This is also now under a 
further review to ensure that the new Asset Management Plans reflect the true value 
of works required to be done for asset renewal. 
 
This is the fourth year since Council adopted Fair Value, with the full impact of 
depreciation being brought to account in Council’s Financial Statements resulting in 
Council’s depreciation expense decreasing by $0.68 million in 2011/2012 to $18.46 
million. 
 
Asset Management - Condition of Public Infrastructure 
 
Council has undertaken a comprehensive asset management programme in order to 
improve asset management practices across the vast infrastructure assets within the 
City.  
 
As stated earlier in the report, the City of Ryde owns and maintains over $2.56 billion 
worth of infrastructure including roads, parks, buildings, stormwater drainage, 
bridges, footpaths, lighting, seawalls and wharves with a current written down value, 
after depreciation, of over $0.93 billion, plus $1.24 billion in land. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Special Schedule 7 which reports on the condition of infrastructure assets included in 
the Financial Statements shows that Council would need to spend approximately 
$85.94 million ($78.94 million in 2010/2011) to bring its infrastructure assets to a 
satisfactory standard.  It also shows that we need to spend $15.60 million per annum 
to maintain the current standard of the asset; which is approximately the level of 
maintenance undertaken during the year.   
 
The figures in Special Schedule 7 do not fully reflect the values for Community 
Buildings or the Civic Centre; as these are both still subject to confirmation of the 
appropriate amounts to bring them back to an appropriate level.  It is estimated that 
when these are fully revised and included that the level of spend will be in the vicinity 
of $120 million. 
 
While the 2011/2012 results demonstrate Council is in a sound financial position in 
the short term, there are funding shortfalls to maintain its existing assets in a 
satisfactory condition as projected in Council’s Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP).  
The plan provides critical information that fully informs Council of its forecasted 
financial position and commitments for the City of Ryde. 
 
Council revised its LTFP in 2011/2012 to obtain a financial projection that quantifies 
the operation of Council services for the next 10 years. The plan forecasts a cash 
shortfall, and that Council will only be able to expend $15 million on asset renewal 
each year, which is short of what is required to bring its infrastructure up to a 
satisfactory standard.   
 
As part of the Community Strategic Plan, a revised Asset Management Plan for the 
period of that plan has been developed.  Information from this revised plan has been 
utilised in updating Council’s LTFP. 
 
Investment Portfolio 
 
Council was pro-active in establishing an $8.00 million Financial Security Reserve in 
October 2008 to protect Council against any future fallout from the global financial 
crisis. 
 
The impact of the global financial crisis on Council’s investment portfolio has been 
fully reported to Council in both the monthly Investment Reports and additional 
reports to Council.  As resolved by Council, proceeds and interest on written down 
investments received since the reserve was established have been transferred to the 
reserve, resulting in a balance in the Financial Security Reserve as at the 30 June 
2012 of $2.06 million. 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 82 
 
ITEM 5 (continued) 
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Consultation 
 
Internal Council business units consulted included:- 
 Finance Unit  
 All Service Units, especially Service Units in the Public Works Group relating to 

Council’s assets and the condition assessment of all infrastructure 
 
Internal Workshops held:- 
 Not Applicable 
 
City of Ryde Advisory Committees consulted included:- 
 Audit Committee 
 
External public consultation included:- 
 Council’s Auditors, Hill Rogers Spencer Steer, Chartered Accountants 
 Division of Local Government 
 
Critical Dates 
 
Council’s audited Financial Statements (including General and Special Purpose 
Financial Statements) are required to be submitted to the Division of Local 
Government by 7 November 2012. Council has met this requirement. 
 
Council is required to hold a Council meeting to present the Audited Financial 
Statements and the Auditors Reports by no later than 6  December 2011 after the 
end of the financial year.  With the presentation of the Annual Financial Statements to 
the public at its meeting of 13 November 2012, Council will meet this requirement. 
 
Financial Impact 
 
The Council’s financial results as attested to by its auditors, Hill Rogers Spencer 
Steer, reflect that Council is in a sound financial position. 
 
The Working Capital result of $5.36 million as at the 30 June 2012 is one of Council’s 
key financial indicators.  This result is an improvement on the forecast of $3.09 
million as detailed in the original Council’s 2011/2015 Four Year Delivery Plan 
including One Year Operational Plan. 
 
Council’s Delivery Plan 2012/2016 and Operational Plan 2012/2013 have been 
adopted utilising $1.64 million of Working Capital and forecasted to have a balance of 
$2.40 million as at 30 June 2013. 
 
Based on the actual result of $5.36 million as at 30 June 2012, the forecast Working 
Capital is $3.72 million as at 30 June 2013. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 95 
 
ITEM 5 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 96 
 
ITEM 5 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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6 LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE RENEWAL SCHEME - ROUND TWO  

Report prepared by: Chief Financial Officer 
       File No.: COR2012/26 - BP12/1289  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The NSW Government has released its guidelines in relation to the NSW Local 
Infrastructure Renewal Scheme (LIRS) for Round Two (2013/2014 year projects) and 
this report recommends to Council that it makes an application under the LIRS and 
seek a subsidy for a new $1.5 million loan for the purposes of addressing the renewal 
of Council’s Play areas and equipment, in accordance with Council’s Children’s Play 
Implementation Plan. Council needs to determine this matter, in order for an 
application to be made under the scheme, prior to the deadline for applications, being 
31 December 2012. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
(a) That Council make an application under the NSW Local Infrastructure Renewal 

Scheme – Round Two for Children’s Play areas and equipment, in accordance 
with the Children’s Play Implementation Plan, at an estimated cost of $1.5 
million. 

 
(b) That Council endorse a new loan of $1.5 million to support Council’s application 

as detailed in part (a) and delegate to the General Manager, the authority to 
commence the procurement of this loan. 

 
(c) That the General Manager be requested to provide options to Councillors for the 

upcoming Budget workshops in 2013, in how Council will meet the debt 
servicing costs of this new loan. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Circular to Councils 12/37 - Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme - Round Two  
2  NSW Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme Guidelines - Round Two  
 
Report Prepared By: 
 
John Todd 
Chief Financial Officer  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
Roy Newsome 
Group Manager - Corporate Services  
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
Discussion 
 
The Division of Local Government (DLG) has issued a circular and guidelines in 
relation to the Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme (LIRS) – Round Two, for works 
in the 2012/2013 financial year. Copies of the documents are ATTACHED 
(Attachments 1 and 2). 
 
The second round of the scheme will provide a 3% interest subsidy on loans taken 
out to undertake “eligible” projects.  These include projects that make up Council’s 
backlog of infrastructure projects as well as projects providing enabling infrastructure 
for new housing development. All nominated projects need to be supported by Asset 
Management plans and asset condition assessments. 
 
Apart from these broad categories, more specific criteria are spelt out in the attached 
guidelines, but the main points of interest are: 
 
 Applications are to be for upgrades or renewal of infrastructure of the Council 

that meets a core purpose of local government and intended for community use. 
 
 Projects nominated cannot be already included in Council’s current 4 Year 

Delivery Plan. 
 
 Minimum cost of at least $1 million (group of projects). 
 
 Acceptance of the LIRS conditions within the agreement: 

o Financial assessment and benchmarking by TCorp 
o Loan to be obtained from a third party 
o No NSW Government guarantee 
o DLG legislative requirements 
o One LIRS contribution only 
o Allowable purpose and allowable expenses 
o Deadline for council and lender to agree on loan terms (i.e. 

commencement date) 
o Loan duration to be no longer than 10 years 
o LIRS subsidy to be fixed at commencement of agreement 
o Council accepts all risk apart from LIRS subsidy in LIRS agreement 
o LIRS subsidy will be paid on a reimbursement basis 
o Submission of final approved Loan Agreement and Bank Term Sheet (by 1 

March 2013) 
 

 The timeframe for an application is prior to applications closing on 31 December 
2012. 
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The Executive Team have assessed the most appropriate project under this Scheme 
to be the renewal of Children Playgrounds in accordance with the recent Children’s 
Play Implementation Plan. It should be noted that this project is not currently included 
in Council’s Four Year Delivery Plan, which is one of the key criteria for this scheme. 
This application, for a new loan of $1.5 million, will be able to address one year of the 
High Priority Actions that are detailed in the Plan which is being considered at 
Council’s Works and Community Committee’s meeting on 6 November 2012. 
 
The estimated debt servicing costs (excluding the subsidy) for this loan is $52,000 
per quarter, $210,000 per annum. The net debt servicing costs, allowing for the 
subsidy are $45,700 per quarter or $183,000 per annum. This cost will need to be 
deducted from one or all of the Outcomes for the duration of the loan, as Council 
does not currently have any capacity within the budget to fund the repayments 
without making budget reductions. 
 
It is suggested that Council request the General Manager to provide options for 
Councillors’ consideration in the upcoming Budget workshops, on how the debt 
servicing costs can be met. Council will also need to delegate to the General 
Manager the authority to commence the procurement of the new loan. 
 
Therefore, if Council proceeds with an application, the following matters would need 
to be noted and taken into consideration: 
 
 Council’s capacity to repay the loan. Council will require to provide the Division 

of Local Government a separate scenario in Council’s Long Term Financial Plan 
(LTFP) that includes a provision for this project and the new loan.  

 
 The timing of the procurement for the new loan in gaining agreement from the 

bank. Council should note that if it supports this application this project will be 
included in the draft budget. The General Manager will require approval from 
Council to commence the loan procurement process. Council should note that 
the intention is to have the loan ready to be accepted, once a determination on 
Council’s application has been made. 

 
 The need for Council to reduce the current capital works program or base 

budget to fund the loan for a period of ten years, at a estimated maximum 
additional cost extra cost of $210,000 per annum. It is proposed to provide 
Councillors with options on how this cost can be met at the budget workshops 
with Councillors in 2013. 

 
 The cost/benefit and economies of scale by bringing forward capital works. By 

receiving the interest subsidy from the loan, it is believed advantageous to 
Council to make this application. 

 
 Council should note applications close on 31 December 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 Projects under the scheme are required to be completed in 12 months from the 
signed agreement. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
If Council approves this application and if successful, this would then be required to 
be reflected in the draft 2013/2017 Delivery Plan and an additional scenario within 
Council’s LTFP. It is believed that this application would be advantageous to Council, 
noting that Council will have to adjust its capital/base budgets to accommodate the 
costs of repaying the proposed loan.  
 
The estimated debt servicing costs for a $1.5 million loan is estimated to be $52,000 
per quarter, $210,000 per annum or $183,000 per annum, if Council is successful 
with its application under the LIRS. It is proposed that Council will hold the formal 
acceptance of the loan, pending the outcome of its application. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 116 
 
ITEM 6 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 124 
 
ITEM 6 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

7 SUBMISSION ON DRAFT LONG TERM TRANSPORT MASTER PLAN  

Report prepared by: Senior Sustainability Coordinator, Transport and Environment 
       File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1228  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
An executive summary of the Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan 
accompanies this report (ATTACHMENT 1 ) and the full 368 page bound document 
is available on www.transportmasterplan.nsw.gov.au 
 
A draft submission outlining issues for Ryde has been prepared and is provided. 
(ATTACHMENT 3).  
 
Key issues for Ryde relate to how the Macquarie Park Specialised Employment 
Centre and its role as the northern anchor of the global economic arc is reflected in 
the Masterplan and how transport corridors through Ryde are being planned.  
 
Other travel demand management aspects and planning to encourage integrated 
transport and land use planning to reduce traffic congestion, improve accessibility 
and mobility are also of importance to Ryde and covered in the draft submission.    
 
This report seeks Council’s endorsement of the draft submission to be made to 
Transport for NSW. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council endorses the submission on the Draft Long Term Transport Master Plan 
and that this be sent to Transport for NSW. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan Executive Summary  
2  NSROC Transport Masterplan response dated 26 October 2012  
3  Draft City of Ryde Submission regarding the Transport Masterplan  
 
Report Prepared By: 
 
Jenai Davies 
Senior Sustainability Coordinator, Transport and Environment  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
Sam Cappelli 
Manager The Environment 
 
Dominic Johnson 
Group Manager - Environment & Planning  
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Context 
 
The Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan will guide transport planning and 
projects within NSW and Sydney over the next 20 years and will assist with the 
delivery of transport goals outlined in NSW 2021 and links with other NSW 
Government Long Term Delivery Plans such as the Metropolitan Strategy and State 
Infrastructure Strategy.   
 
The Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan includes efforts to integrate 
transport and land use planning and has been developed with consideration of the 
land use implications of the Metropolitan Strategy.   
 
Several of the corridors and projects proposed within the Masterplan are relevant to 
the City of Ryde area, as referred to in the discussion below. 
 
Comments for the Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan were due on 28 
October 2012 however it is planned to make a late submission as soon as practically 
possible after Council considers this report.  
 
Discussion 
 
The Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan impacts upon the City of Ryde as a 
number of actions, projects and proposed transport corridors would be relevant to the 
City of Ryde area. 
 
From a regional perspective, the comments included in NSROC’s submission 
provided (ATTACHMENT 2) to the Draft NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan 
made separately are supported, in particular comments relating to: 
 

- Contestability and sustainability of community transport.  This is a particular 
issue for Ryde as we operate and maintain the Top Ryder community bus, 
which provides an invaluable service to our aged/vulnerable/transport 
disadvantaged populations. 

- NSROC’s support for a Metropolitan Parking policy which addresses the 
distortions in the current parking policy. 

- The transport masterplan failing to mention local government’s land planning 
and local traffic expertise and how this should inform land planning and 
interchange management. 

 
From a local perspective, Council officers have reviewed the Draft NSW Long Term 
Transport Masterplan and identified a range of issues which are relevant to Ryde.   
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A draft local submission has been prepared (ATTACHMENT 3) and addresses these 
issues under the following headings. 
 
1. Macquarie Park Specialised Centre 
A greater emphasis needs to be made in the Transport Masterplan on the importance 
of the Macquarie Park as a Specialised Employment Centre, given its role as the 
northern anchor of the global economic arc.  Macquarie Park has significant potential 
development growth within the next 20 years positioning it to become the 4th largest 
business centre in NSW.  Macquarie Park currently has a floorspace of 800,000 sq 
m, 40,000 employees and 30,000 students.   
This is anticipated to grow to a floorspace of >2 million sqm, 80,000 employees and 
50,000 students over next 20 years.   
 
Given the importance of the role which Macquarie Park Specialised Centre plays, it is 
suggested that a separate section be created for Specialised Precincts/Centres 
within the Sustaining Growth in Greater Sydney chapter of the Transport Masterplan 
(similar to the approach used for other employment centres such as Parramatta).   
 
This separate section should include: 

a) Acknowledgement of the importance of Macquarie Park and its role in the 
metropolitan economy (being responsible for 4% of state GDP). 

b) Acknowledge the newly established Macquarie Park Transport Management 
Association as a governance mechanism which enables partnerships 
between local and state government and local businesses in order to develop 
appropriate transport solutions for the area via Community Travel Plans and 
the implementation of travel demand measures. 

c) Acknowledge the unique transport challenges facing Macquarie Park as it 
evolves from a business park to an urban centre and the implications of 
meeting a 40% public transport mode split target by 2031 (as agreed by a 
steering committee comprised of various transport agencies).  

d) Acknowledgement of the critical importance of the Herring Road Interchange 
to support the required significant increase in public transport modal shift as 
well as increased vehicular access from the upgrade to the M2 Motorway. To 
support this interchange and the continued functioning of Macquarie Park, 
Ryde Council should seek a grade separated intersection at Herring Rd and 
Epping Rd (Herring Rd South) and other improvements to Herring Rd and 
Talavera Rd intersection (Herring Rd North). 

e) Acknowledgement of the importance of developing alternative methods of 
transport that are not fully dependent on the use of the motor car for single 
occupancy vehicle trips (SOV's), including: 

o Travel demand management measures (such as carpooling, 
telecommuting and active transport such as cycling and walking). 

o The development of parallel transport technologies that fill the 800 
metre to 5000 metres transport void needs to be considered and 
developed within an appropriate governance framework in 
collaboration with Infrastructure Australia, AustRoads, Roads 
Authorities in South Australia, Queensland, Victoria and Transport for 
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NSW to form National Transport Policy to deliver best practice through 
innovation. The Council in partnership with Macquarie University is 
currently undertaking Stage 1 analysis "trial of the application of 
Personal Mobility Devices (PMDs) within a prescribed testing 
framework" (Refer to ATTACHMENT 3 for Letter of support from 
Transport for NSW). 

 
It should be expected that the future acceptance of the above technologies and 
initiatives will assist with the development of incentive based Work Place Travel 
Plans (WPTP's) that will become the future fabric for "effective" transport planning for 
local businesses and other trip generators. 
 
2. Transport Corridors 
Victoria Rd Corridor- the identification of the Victoria Rd corridor as one of Sydney’s 
“Big 6” most constrained transport corridors (pg 148 Fig 4.5.2) is supported. 
 
Council should seek to collaborate with the State Government via the inclusion of the 
Victoria Rd corridor (at least the area within the Ryde local government area) as a 
“long term corridor for investigation to support transport and urban renewal 
outcomes” (pg 299). Ryde’s Local Planning Study 2009 is supportive of growth in the 
Corridor.   
 
As part of Ryde’s Local Planning Study, a future project is identified to “investigate 
sites fronting Victoria Road between Ryde and West Ryde to explore options for 
more intensive economic and commercial development that will promote 
development of an economic corridor”.  
 
It is recommended that the Transport Masterplan should recognise the importance of 
Ryde Major Centre as a future sub-regional intermodal interchange along this 
corridor. 
  
The proposal to improve bus priority and efficiency in the short term (pg 151) and to 
deploy higher capacity light rail in the longer term (pg 151) should be generally 
supported by the Council. In the longer term, Council should also support a metro-
style rail line beneath Victoria Road from West Ryde to Ryde, Gladesville and the 
Sydney CBD (as per our submission to the Draft Inner North Sub Regional Strategy) 
and therefore ask that this option be included in the Transport Masterplan.   
 
Whilst acknowledging Council’s preference for longer term options of either a metro-
style rail line or light rail, Council should also acknowledge that bus rapid transit is 
another longer term option being considered in the Transport Masterplan for the 
Victoria Rd Corridor (pg 151).  This being the case, Council should make clear that 
the potential for any road based transit solution along the Victoria Rd corridor is 
limited by the need to address significant capacity constraints, particularly from 
Drummoyne towards the City.  
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In developing any transport proposals for the Victoria Rd corridor, adequate 
consideration would need to be given to the implications for local businesses and 
residents.  Adequate opportunities would also need to be provided for Council and 
the community to provide input into the future design of any route and stop options. 
 
Fig 4.5.2 (pg 148) should be updated to include the potential long term options of 
light rail or a metro-style rail line along this corridor.    
 
Macquarie Park-Olympic Park or Burwood–Hurstville corridor – the identification of 
the “Macquarie Park-Olympic Park or Burwood –Hurstville” corridor as a “Long term 
corridor for investigation– transport and urban renewal” (pg 299) is generally 
supported, although an outline of the process to be followed for further investigation 
is needed.  
 
Given that this corridor is identified as a “Long term corridor for investigation” and the 
current levels of traffic congestion experienced along Lane Cove Rd, it is 
recommended that the “Macquarie Park-Olympic Park or Burwood-Hurstville” corridor 
be identified on the constrained strategic corridor map (pg 84).  
 
In addition, further details are sought regarding the process for further investigation of 
“Protected Corridor 5 Macquarie Park to Sydney Olympic Park: Potential Corridor for 
Investigation” (pg 197) and confirmation of the preferred modal options being 
considered. 
 
Along this corridor, the Council should seek the identification of Top Ryde City as a 
potential major centre, West Ryde as a town centre and Meadowbank as a small 
centre (as per Ryde’s submission to the Draft Inner North Sub-Regional Strategy).  
Ryde’s Local Planning Study 2009 also includes a future project to investigate an 
“Enterprise Corridor land use zone for sites adjoining Church Street Meadowbank 
between Victoria Road and the Parramatta River”.  
 
Potential linkages between the M2 and M4 - further details are sought regarding the 
statement on page 151, “Beyond the timeframe of the draft Long Term Transport 
Master Plan, we will investigate opportunities to further expand the motorway network 
including potential linkages between the M2 and M4 via Gladesville.”   
 
Whilst the need for long term further investigation of a connection between the M2 
and M4 is generally supported, further detail is sought regarding proposed modal and 
route options.     
 
If potential expansion of the motorway network between the M2 to M4 is being 
considered then this should also be identified as a potential “Corridor for 
Investigation” in the Motorway Strategy Map on pg 140.  Further detail should also be 
provided of the design options being considered to enable proper consideration of 
various options in more detail.   
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Any new motorway proposals should not be considered until after the construction of 
the north-west rail link and that cycleway and bus lanes should be provided as part of 
any new motorway developments.  
 
It is also suggested that this option may be more appropriately discussed in relation 
to another corridor, rather than in the current Parramatta to the CBD via Ryde 
corridor section (pg 151).  For example, this option may be more appropriately placed 
in a new section discussing options for the Macquarie Park-Olympic Park or 
Burwood-Hurstville long term transport corridor or Protected Corridor 7 (Macquarie 
Park to Sydney Olympic Park. However, Council should note that Macquarie Park is 
already a major traffic thoroughfare with high levels of traffic congestion.  Council 
would not want to see this burden added to by a new motorway through Macquarie 
Park.   
 
Protected Corridor 17: Potential Corridor for further investigation- Inner West Bypass 
and Enhanced North South Links - further details are to be sought regarding the 
process, timing and options being considered for further investigation of “Protected 
Corridor 17: Potential Corridor for further investigation- Inner West Bypass and 
Enhanced North South Links.”  This protected corridor appears to approximate a 
route from Macquarie Park to Sydney Airport.  This protected corridor also appears to 
correspond to a new motorway “corridor for investigation” being considered for 
“Enhanced North South Links” as per the Motorway Strategy Map on pg 140.   
 
Strategic transport corridor with medium constraint (approximately Macquarie Park-
East Ryde-Hunters Hill) – further detail is sought regarding the process for further 
investigation of the “Strategic transport corridor with medium constraint” which 
appears to link Macquarie Park- East Ryde-Hunters Hill (pg 84).  Given that 
Transport for NSW has identified this is a strategic transport corridor with medium 
constraint, it should be strongly recommended to the accelerate provision of 
improved public transport for East Ryde as per our previous letter to the Ministry of 
Transport (dated 23 April 2012) and Transport for NSW’s response (reference 
SE12/06781) which indicated that bus services were due to be reviewed in 2012 
(Refer to ATTACHMENT 3).  It is also suggested that any future investigations along 
this corridor include consideration of how to effectively link centres. 
 
Epping Rd – More clarity should be sought regarding any transport initiatives being 
planned for Epping Rd.  
 
3. Centres Hierachy 
The Council should request the State to support City of Ryde’s proposed centres 
hierarchy as previously provided as part of the Draft Inner North Sub-Regional 
Strategy. Specifically, in this regard, it is important that the Transport Masterplan 
recognises Top Ryde City as a major centre, West Ryde as a town centre, and 
Meadowbank as a small centre. 
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4. Transport funding 
Council should express its view that the Government needs to fully commit fully to the 
final NSW Long Term Transport Masterplan, by entrenching specific projects and 
required funding into legislation.   
 
5. Rail proposals 
Parramatta to Epping rail link – The Council should express its disappointment that 
the Parramatta to Epping link is not included in the Plan.  A similar route is identified 
for “Protected Corridor 7: Protected Corridor- Parramatta to Macquarie Park” (pg 197) 
and the “2031 Sydney Strategic Transit Network” (pg 93) supports identification of 
transit network potential extension from Parramatta to Epping.  
 
Further detail regarding the process and timing for further investigation of “Protected 
Corridor 7” should be sought and what intermediate transit options are being 
considered for the “Parramatta-Epping potential extension” identified in the 2031 
Sydney Strategic Transit Network”. 
 
North West Rail Link – The Council should strongly support the completion of the 
North West Rail Link as identified in the medium term within the Transport 
Masterplan.  The State Government should fully commit to this project by entrenching 
required funding for project into legislation. This project is particularly important for 
Ryde Local Government Area as 40% of the passengers on the North West Rail Link 
are anticipated to exit within Macquarie Park. 
 
6. Park and Ride  
The Council should strongly support the need identified in the Transport Masterplan 
for increased park and ride facilities, including as part of the North West Rail Link 
(p.59) and at railway stations (pg 64).  In particular, the Council should request that 
Transport for NSW explore the potential for additional park and ride facilities within 
the Macquarie Park area at North Ryde Station. 
 
7. Electric Vehicles 
The Council should support the development of an Electric Vehicles Roadmap 
identified as part of the Transport Masterplan (pg 303).  The City of Ryde Council is 
currently undertaking an Electric Vehicles Study which will inform its future planning 
and parking controls. 
 
8. Travel Demand Management Measures 
The Council should strongly recommend that the State Government further support 
carpooling initiatives to assist with reducing travel demand. Whilst it is noted that 
Transport for NSW has supported the development of the wscarpool initiative, 
Council should suggest that Transport for NSW could do more to financially support 
and promote a carpooling program across the entire Sydney metropolitan area.  For 
example, free or discounted subscriptions could be offered for organisations joining 
within the Sydney metropolitan area.  Wscarpool and other carpooling initiatives 
could be addressed in the “Transport ICT and Innovation Strategy” (pg 309) and 
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“Managing demand and making better travel choices” (pg 306) sections of the 
Transport Masterplan. 
 
State Government support for Travel Access Guides. Greater clarity on workplace 
travel plans - The Council should commend Transport for NSW for supporting the 
development of Travel Access Guides for large trip generators (pg 143).  It is 
suggested that this action be expanded to include State Government support for the 
development of Workplace Travel Plans (WTPs), with funding for either project 
officers to be employed at either the state or local government level to assist 
businesses with the development of WTPs (similar to the TravelSmart program in 
other states).  It is noted that the Macquarie Park TMA will assist businesses within 
the Macquarie Park to develop WTPs, however more clarity is sought on what level 
of support for the development of WTPs may be available for trip generators outside 
Macquarie Park. 
 
9. Bicycle and Pedestrian Infrastructure 
Greater clarity regarding cycle infrastructure for urban centres - The Council should 
seek greater clarity regarding short term proposals for “connected cycling networks 
on streets that feed into Sydney’s urban centres” (pg 144) and whether this would be 
applicable to Ryde’s centres such as the Macquarie Park Specialised Centre. In 
addition, the Council should also seek more detail on what cycle parking initiatives 
outside railway stations in urban centres are proposed.  The point should be made 
that in any Masterplan process, cycleways should be constructed as a standard part 
of any new motorway developments or transit corridors. 
 
Greater clarity regarding pedestrian infrastructure for urban centres - The Council 
should seek greater clarity regarding the walking investment program and short-long 
term proposals for improving pedestrian improvements for access and amenity at 
locations apart from the CBD (pg 143).  More clarity and specific detail should be 
sought regarding improved pedestrian connections in major urban centres (pg 316) 
and whether this would apply to Ryde’s centres such as the Macquarie Park 
Specialised Centre.  
 
10. Ferry Transport 
The Council should be supportive of the role which ferries play in a viable transport 
system and should express its support for an expanded and enhanced ferry system 
that is integrated into the overall transport solution.  In this regard, the Council should 
highlight the importance that the ferry system plays for Ryde residents and 
commuters from Meadowbank and Kissing Point Ferry wharves and that these 
wharves are well utilised.  Council should ask that any changes to ferry timetables 
and routes at these wharves maintains or improves service levels and does not 
remove or reduce ferry services.   
 
The Council should seek more detail on the “Sydney Harbour wharf upgrade 
program” (pg 314) regarding specific proposals to replace and upgrade ferry wharves 
and create attractive ferry terminal precincts. In addition, more detail should be 
sought regarding the actions “Improving and growing the ferry network through new 
wharves, new timetables and new and extended routes” and “Changing ferry 
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operations to focus services around customer needs and demand” (pg 314) as they 
relate to the Ryde Local Government Area.   
 
11. Freight 
The Council should express its view that, whilst it generally supports the principle of 
the Northern Freight Line (pg 245), it has concerns regarding the amenity (eg noise) 
impacts of this project. Such concerns need to be properly addressed. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
Adoption of the recommendation will have no financial impact. 
 
Consultation with relevant external bodies 
 
Internal consultation has been undertaken with Planning Team and Traffic and 
Governance section.  
 
Ryde has also consulted with NSROC to ensure consistency with the NSROC 
submission.   
 
 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 138 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 139 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 140 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 141 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 142 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 1 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 143 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 144 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 145 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 146 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 147 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 148 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 149 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 150 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 151 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 152 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 153 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 154 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 155 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 156 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 157 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 158 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 159 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 160 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 161 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 162 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 163 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 164 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 165 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 166 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 167 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 168 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 169 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 2 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 170 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 171 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 172 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 173 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 174 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 175 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 176 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 177 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 178 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 179 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 180 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 181 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 



  
 

Council Reports  Page 182 
 
ITEM 7 (continued) ATTACHMENT 3 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 183 
 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

8 ADOPTION OF THE SHRIMPTONS CREEK PARKLANDS PLAN OF 
MANAGEMENT  

Report prepared by: Section Manager, Open Space Planning and Assets 
       File No.: GRP/09/4/6 - BP12/1268  
 

REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The draft Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management was recently on public 
exhibition (5 September – 19 October 2012) with the local community and users of 
the Park invited to review the Plan and provide comments and suggestions on the 
future management and use of the Park. The Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of 
Management provides a strategic planning and sustainable management framework 
to enhance the recreation opportunities for the community and to promote public 
recreation and leisure. Management actions are recommended to meet current and 
future demands of Parklands users and the local community. 
 
Council received five submissions during the exhibition period ATTACHED – 
CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER – CONFIDENTIAL (Attachment 1) and 
the revised Plan of Management has been modified to include, where appropriate, 
the suggestions contained in these submissions.  
 
It is recommended that the Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management 
ATTACHED – CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER (Attachment 2) be 
adopted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
(a) That the Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management (dated October 

2012) be adopted. 
 
(b) That all community members who made a submission be thanked and advised 

of the outcome. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Combined Submissions on the draft Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of 

Management - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER - CONFIDENTIAL 
 

2  Draft 2012 Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management - CIRCULATED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

 

 
Report Prepared By: 
Fiona Morrison 
Section Manager, Open Space Planning and Assets  
 
Report Approved By: 
Tatjana Domazet 
Service Unit Manager - Open Space 
 
Danielle Dickson 
Group Manager - Community Life 
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Discussion 
 
Shrimptons Creek Parklands is a corridor of open space that is comprised of seven 
parks that lie adjacent to Shrimptons Creek in the suburbs of Ryde, North Ryde and 
Marsfield. The parks along Shrimptons Creek are Council owned and managed 
under the Local Government Act 1993 and other NSW government agencies. 
 
The seven parks that are located along Shrimptons Creek include: 

• Santa Rosa Park, 
• Flinders Park, 
• Tindarra Reserve, 
• Greenwood Park, 
• ELS Hall Park, 
• Booth Reserve and 
• Wilga Park. 

 
A Plan of Management has been prepared to guide the future development and 
management of the Parklands in response to the needs and values of the local 
community and the users of the Parks within the corridor. When adopted by Council, 
this Plan of Management will replace the current Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of 
Management. 
 
Public Exhibition 
 
The draft Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management was placed on public 
exhibition from 5 September 2012 to 19 October 2012. 
 
During the public exhibition of the draft Plan of Management, Council received 5 
submissions from the community. All submissions received are ATTACHED – 
CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER – CONFIDENTIAL (Attachment 1). The 
summary of each submission is provided over the page with an analysis indicating 
whether changes were required to be made to the draft Plan of Management. 
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SUBMISSION DETAIL DISCUSSION CHANGES TO PLAN OF 
MANAGEMENT 

Submission 1 – TRIM D12/81743 

There are also no public toilets 
(the closest being Midway 
Shopping Centre and Yamble 
Reserve), and nowhere to fill a 
water bottle. 

The Masterplan for Santa Rosa 
Park includes a public toilet. 
Council is currently in the design 
phase for the construction of 
toilet facilitates in the Park as 
approved in the 12/13 Capital 
Budget.  
Note – A report will be presented 
to Council on trialling water bottle 
refill stations in Council open 
spaces. 

Change of priority for construction 
of toilet facilities in Santa Rosa 
Park from Medium to Short (page 
108). 

Recommendations for Santa Rosa 
Park 

 Public Toilets 
 Water bottle filling  
 Weeding and watering 
 Graffiti removal 
 Encouragement of people 

to use the park 
 Car Parking at the bridge 

road end 

The Masterplan for Santa Rosa 
Park includes: 

 Public Toilets 
 Encouragement of 

people to use the park 
 Car Parking at the bridge 

road end 
This Masterplan will be 
implemented as a component of 
the plan of management 
implementation.  
The following will be flagged as 
maintenance priories with 
Council’s Operational Teams: 

 Weeding and watering 
 Graffiti removal 

No change to the Plan of 
Management 

Provision of water bottle fountains 
and drinking fountains throughout 
the corridor. 

Additional commentary in the 
Plan provided to support the 
installation of additional watering 
stations. 

Discussion included on installation 
of watering stations in Section 2.5 
and 5.2.2 

Submission 2 – TRIM D12/77723 
Support of the Plan of 
Management. 
 

Comments noted. No change to the Plan of 
Management 

Submission 3 – TRIM D12/78517 
Throughout the document I can 
find no mention of providing 
drinking bubblers. 

Additional commentary in the 
Plan provided to support the 
installation of additional watering 
stations through the Parklands. 

Discussion included on installation 
of watering stations in Section 2.5 
and 5.2.2 

The plan also has a worryingly 
mixed commitment to providing 
toilets in Santa Rosa Park. 

The Masterplan for Santa Rosa 
Park includes a public toilet. 
Council is currently in the design 
phase for the construction of 
toilet facilitates in the Park as 
approved in the 12/13 Capital 
Budget.  
 
 
 

Clarification of priority for 
construction of toilet facilities in 
Santa Rosa Park from Medium to 
Short (page 108) provided. 
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SUBMISSION DETAIL DISCUSSION CHANGES TO PLAN OF 
MANAGEMENT 

Submission 4 and 5  – TRIM D12/82543 and D12/82343 
Whilst we generally support the 
POM, we are very concerned at 
the lack of additional parking 
proposed for the southern end of 
Santa Rosa Park at the Quarry 
Road entry. 

There is limited space at the 
Quarry Road and of Santa Rosa 
Park to provide additional off 
street car parking. The Santa 
Rosa Park illustrates additional 
formal car parking to constructed 
at the Bridge Street end of the 
Park.  
 
Photos provided with the 
submission of illegal car parking 
have been referred to the 
Council’s Regulatory team for 
action and with a request to 
increase patrols on weekends to 
enforce local parking regulations. 

Change of priority for construction 
of the additional car parking at the 
Bridge Street end of Santa Rosa 
Park from medium to short term 
priority for (page 113). 

 
The following noteworthy changes have been made to the Plan of Management. 
(Please note, all changes to the Plan have been highlighted in blue text in the Plan 
distributed under separate cover). 
 
• Page 108 – Change of priority rating for the construction of public toilets in Santa 

Rosa Park from medium to short term 
• Additional discussion on the installation of water stations along the length of the 

Parklands (Section 2.5 and 5.2.2) 
• Page 113 – Change of priority rating for the construction of additional car parking 

in Santa Rosa Park from medium to short term 
 
Consultation 
 
Under Council’s ‘Your City, Your Voice’ Engagement Policy and Framework, the 
Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management is a Level 2 (High – Local) project 
and in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 the 
consultation process has been thorough and has encompassed both internal and 
external stakeholders and the local community. 
 
The public exhibition of the draft Plan of Management and the preparation of the draft 
Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management included the following 
consultation:  
 
 All residents living within 200m of the Park were issued with an Information Fact 

Sheet, 
 “Have your Say” notification was placed in the Ryde City View on 5 September 

and 3 October 2012, 
 Copies of the draft Plan of Management were placed at the Customer Service 

Centre and all libraries, and 
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 Draft Plan of Management was placed on Council’s webpage inviting the 

community to comment. 
 
Financial Impact 
 
The Plan of Management will inform the allocation, prioritisation and forward planning 
of capital renewal projects for these Parklands. 
 
Adoption of the Shrimptons Creek Parklands Plan of Management provides guidance 
for Council in the management of the Park for the next 10 years. The adoption of the 
Plan of Management does not have a financial impact, however there are many 
actions within the Plan of Management that will have financial impact over the next 
10 years. Funding for these actions will be subject to Council’s annual budget 
process. 
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9 PROPOSED VOLUNTARY PLANNING AGREEMENT FOR A RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AT LOT 2  DP1163230 - 126-128 HERRING ROAD, 
MACQUARIE PARK. LDA2012/314  

Report prepared by: Client Manager 
       File No.: MIN2010/3 - BP12/1309  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
Council is currently assessing a Local Development Application LDA2012/314 at 126-
128 Herring Road, Macquarie Park for construction of a part 12 and part 13 storey 
residential building with two levels of basement car parking.  The proposed building 
(known as ‘Building E’) is one of five buildings in the “Macquarie Central” 
development approved as a Concept Plan under the State Government’s former 
Major Projects legislation (also known as Part 3A of the Environmental planning and 
Assessment Act).  The Concept Plan (MP09_0195) was approved by the Department 
of Planning on January 20 2011.  The development is currently under construction by 
Toga Macquarie Developments P/L (Toga) with Buildings A, B, C and D already 
approved during 2011 and 2012. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
(a) That Council enter into the Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA) made by Toga 

Macquarie Developments P/L as part of Development Application 
LDA2012/314. 

 
(b) That Council’s agreement to enter into the VPA be communicated to the Sydney 

East Joint Regional Planning Panel when LDA2012/314 is presented to it for 
determination. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Confidential Report - Proposed Voluntary Planning Agreement for a Residential 

Development at LOT 2 DP1163230 - 126-128 Herring Road, Macquarie Park - 
LDA2012/314 - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER - CONFIDENTIAL  

 

2  Proponent's Submission and Quantity Surveyor's Report - CIRCULATED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER - CONFIDENTIAL 

 

3  Draft Voluntary Planning Agreement  
 
Report Prepared By: 
 
Glenn Ford 
Client Manager  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
Dominic Johnson 
Group Manager - Environment & Planning  
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10 PLANNING PROPOSAL - 461 - 495 VICTORIA ROAD, GLADESVILLE  

Report prepared by: Heritage / Strategic Planner 
       File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1264  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
A planning proposal to rezone 461 – 495 Victoria Road, Gladesville was submitted by 
Bunnings Group Limited to Council, March 2012. The proposal is to include additional 
land uses in Schedule 1 Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2010 and to amend the 
Height of Building Map Ryde Local Environmental Plan 210. The planning proposal is 
considered appropriate to proceed for a gateway determination to the Minister for 
Planning, to determine whether the planning proposal should proceed to the 
community consultation. The proposed amendments and achievable development is 
considered appropriate for the site given its size, context and location. A site specific 
addition to the Ryde Development Control Plan 2010 will be prepared prior to 
undertaking community consultation and exhibited together with the LEP 
amendment.  
 
This report outlines the planning proposal and provides a preliminary assessment in 
relation to the requirements under the gateway plan-making process.  The proposal 
is congruous with the objectives of the IN2 Light Industrial Zone and there is 
justification on planning grounds to proceed. This report recommends that Council 
refer the proposed rezoning to the Minister for Planning to request a Gateway 
Determination pursuant to section 56 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Act 1979. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
(a) That Council note the Planning Proposal for 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville 

to amend Clause 4 ‘Use of certain land at 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville’ of 
Schedule 1 under Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2010 to include the following 
land uses, bulky goods premises, hardware and building supplies and garden 
centre, and to amend the Height of Building Map (06) under Ryde Local 
Environmental Plan. 

 
(b) That Council forward the planning proposal to 461-495 Victoria Road, 

Gladesville to receive a gateway determination in accordance with Section 56 of 
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.  

 
(c) That, in the event of a gateway determination being issued pursuant to Section 

56 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, the proposed be 
placed on public exhibition and a further report be presented to Council 
following the completion of the consultation period advising of the outcomes and 
next steps.       

 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 215 
 
ITEM 10 (continued) 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

 
(d) That Council support a site specific addition to the Ryde Development Control 

Plan 2010 be prepared for 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville and public 
exhibited together with the planning proposal.  

  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville - Planning Proposal - Submitted Report 

Documentation - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER 
 

 
Report Prepared By: 
 
Renee Walmsley 
Heritage / Strategic Planner  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
Meryl Bishop 
Manager - Urban Planning 
 
Dominic Johnson 
Group Manager - Environment & Planning  
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Background 
 
This section of the report provides a brief description of the “gateway plan-making 
process”, including an explanation of the legislative requirements relating to a 
planning proposal. This section also includes a summary of the steps leading to the 
submission of the subject planning proposal.   
 
Gateway Plan-Making Process 
In July 2009 the NSW Government enacted changes to the Environmental Planning 
and Assessment Act 1979 with respect to the making of environmental planning 
instruments, in particular Local Environmental Plans, under a new process known as 
the “gateway plan-making process”.  
 
The gateway process has a number of steps.  The preparation and submission of a 
Planning Proposal is the first of five main steps, summarised as follows: 
 
1. Planning proposal - this is an explanation of the effect of and justification for 

the proposed plan to change the planning provisions of a site or area which is 
prepared by a proponent or the relevant planning authority such as Council.  
The relevant planning authority decides whether or not to proceed at this stage.  

2. Gateway –determination by the Minister for Planning or delegate if the planning 
proposal should proceed, and under what conditions it will proceed.  This step is 
made prior to, and informs the community consultation process. 

3. Community Consultation - the proposal is publicly exhibited (generally low 
impact proposals for 14 days, others for 28 days). 

4. Assessment — the relevant planning authority considers public submissions. 
The relevant planning authority may decide to vary the proposal or not to 
proceed.  Where proposals are to proceed, it is Parliamentary Counsel which 
prepares a draft local environmental plan — the legal instrument. 

5. Decision — the making of the plan by the Minister (or delegate). 
 
According to section 55 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, a 
Planning Proposal must include: 
 

o A statement of objectives and intended outcomes of the proposal 
o An explanation of the provisions of the proposal; 
o A justification of the objectives, outcomes and provisions including the 

process for implementation; 
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o Maps where relevant, containing the appropriate detail are to submitted, 

including land use zones; and 
o Details of the community consultation that will be undertaken. 

 
Council is the relevant planning authority for this proposal which has been prepared 
by a consultant planner on behalf of the proponent.  The proposal has been 
preliminary assessed by Council staff in respect of the information required to be 
included in a Planning Proposal.   
 
Submission of Planning Proposal – 461- 495 Victoria Road, Gladesville  
A ‘bulky good premises’ is not a permitted land use on the site in the IN Light 
Industrial Land use zone. During 2010 the City of Ryde prepared the Local Planning 
Study in response to the State Government’s Metropolitan Regional Plan and the 
draft Inner North Subregional Strategy. The study comprised a comprehensive review 
of the Ryde Local Government Area (‘LGA’), including all centres and corridors in the 
LGA. The site was included and reviewed in the centres and corridors study.  
 
A key finding of the centres and corridors study is that bulky goods premises should 
be adopted as a permitted use on the site as the site is located in a section of Victoria 
Road identified as a potential enterprise corridor and suitable for bulky goods 
premises land use. This was subsequently included as a recommendation of the 
study and set out in the Local Planing Study report to Council on 2 November 2010 to 
be considered by the Committee of the Whole. The resolution of Council was to 
adopt all recommendations in the Local Planning Study, inclusive of the 
recommendation that bulky goods premises should be adopted as a permitted land 
use with consent on 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville. The recommendations of the 
Local Planning Study were incorporated into Council’s draft RLEP 2011 and Clause 4 
Schedule 1 was subsequently amended to include bulky goods as a permitted use 
with development consent (Clause 4 is referred to as Clause 6 in draft RLEP 2011). 
 
On 1 November 2011, a workshop presentation was held by Bunnings Group 
Limited, to brief Councillors and senior Council Staff of proposed future development 
plans to the subject site, 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville and amendments to the 
planning controls pursuant to Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2010 (‘RLEP 2010’) 
and consideration of the draft Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2011 (‘draft RLEP 
2011’).   
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On 14 February 2012 a further meeting was held between Council Staff and the 
proponents regarding a planning proposal at 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville. The 
meeting was principally held to discuss the proposal to amend Schedule 1 of RLEP 
2010 to include the additional land uses for the site under the current zone IN2 Light 
Industrial, including the proposal for bulky goods premises land use on the site, and 
to discuss amendments to the Height of Building Map under RLEP 2010.  
 
A planning proposal was lodged with Council on 20 March 2012. That planning 
proposal submission is the subject of this report.   
 
Report 
 
This section of the report contains the main report on the planning proposal which 
includes the description of the site, description of the proposed LEP amendment and 
an appraisal of the subject planning proposal forms the basis of a recommendation to 
forward the proposal to the Minister for Planning for a gateway determination. 
 
Planning Proposal – 461- 495 Victoria Road, Gladesville 
Council received a Planning Proposal for 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville (‘the 
subject site’) on 20 March 2012. The LEP amendment will permit the development of 
a separate Bunnings retail outlet centre and bulky goods warehouse on the subject 
site. A site specific addition or part to the Ryde Development Control Plan 2010 will 
be prepared to ensure that the future development of the subject site provides a 
reasonable built form outcome   
 
The proponent is requesting rezoning of the land to amend Clause 4 Schedule 1 of 
RLEP 2010 to include the additional uses bulky goods premises, garden centre and 
hardware and building supplies. The current IN2 Light Industrial land use zoning 
under RLEP 2010 will be retained as part of the planning proposal. The planning 
proposal also seeks to retain the land uses already permitted by Clause 4 in 
Schedule 1 RLEP 2010, which allows the existing building premises and office 
development at 495 Victoria Road, Gladesville known as ‘Building H’ currently 
occupied by Fernwood Gymnasium.  
 
There is no maximum building height on industrially zoned land under RLEP 2010. 
The planning proposal also seeks to amend the Height of Building Map under RLEP 
2010 to indicate maximum RLs over the subject site because under draft RLEP 2011 
a 10 metre maximum building height will apply to industrially zoned land.   
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A site specific amendment for the Ryde Development Control Plan 2010 (‘RDCP 
2010’) will be prepared prior to public consultation of the LEP amendment. The 
preparation of a site specific addition to RDCP 2010 would occur once the planning 
proposal has been supported by Council for exhibition and achieves a gateway 
determination from the Department of Planning. The site specific RDCP 2010 
amendment will be publicly exhibited with the LEP amendment so that the public may 
understand the built form and function of the development. 
 
The site 
The subject site (‘the site’), 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville, is legally known as 
Lot 1 DP 739556 and is currently zoned IN2 - Light Industrial.  
 
The site is a former quarry now known as Enterprise Park, forming part of the 
Gladesville Industrial Area. The site is bounded by College Street to the north, low 
density residential and commercial development to the east, Victoria Road to the 
south and Frank Street to the west. However due to the topography of the site, the 
principal site frontage is defined by College Street. Vehicular access is principally 
gained from College Street and the corner of Frank and College Street. A map 
showing the location of the site and the surrounding area following. 
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Given the site was a quarry development the natural topography has been 
extensively altered and much of the site is below ground level. The site falls steeply 
from its highest point at Victoria Road (RL49) to the lowest point at in the centre of 
the site (RL35) (a 14 metre change across the site). The series of photos below 
depict the fall of the site and it’s location below the level of College Street.  
 

 
View over the site - 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville - Upper car park deck viewed 
from Frank Street  
 

 
On site looking to the north boundary, with College Street located behind the plane 
trees and beyond the two storey light industrial warehouse buildings. Note retaining 
wall and step back up to ground level at College Street 
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On site looking to the east boundary defined by a vertical wall with the car wash 
located behind. Note car wash roof is just visible behind the tree line in the centre of 
the photograph.  

 
On site looking to the south boundary defined by a vertical embankment with Victoria 
Road behind at ground level. 
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The site is occupied by a number of warehouse buildings generally used for a variety 
of light industrial purposes (as shown in the images above) and a three storey 
building at the corner of Frank Street and Victoria Road (shown below), known as 
495 Victoria Road, which is occupied by Fernwood Gymnasium. 
  

 
View of 495 Victoria Road – Building H 
 
The existing warehouse buildings and 495 Victoria Road has an estimated gross floor 
area of 22,000 square metres. The warehouse buildings are serviced by an internal 
road on the site which is accessed from College and Frank Streets. The building at 
495 Victoria Road is accessed from Frank Street. Car parking is provided on site, 
with parking spaces provided around the warehouse buildings at ground level and on 
a large roof top car parking area accessed from the corner of College and Frank 
Streets.  The building at 495 Victoria Road has a small number of on-site parking 
spaces accessed from Frank Street. There are two discussed driveway crossing from 
Victoria Road.   
 
Site Context 
The surrounding development consists of a variety of light industrial uses, detached 
single dwellings, recreational and educational uses. The map following shows the 
zoning under Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2010 of the site and the surrounding 
sites. 
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North of the subject site – College Street 
The site is bounded to the north by light industrial land uses comprising the 
Gladesville Industrial area. Industrial buildings are generally two storeys in scale 
comprising self storage and small industrial units. Access to the Industrial area is 
provided off College Street and some through sites are also accessed from Buffalo 
Road.  
 
East of the subject site – Residential and Commercial land uses 
The site is adjoined to the east by residential and light industrial land uses. The 
adjoining residential development fronts College Street with a shared western 
boundary to the site. The development comprises single and two storey detached 
dwellings and a villa development. Access to these dwellings is provided from 
College Street. The adjoining light industrial development fronting Victoria Road and 
comprises a car wash and care business. There is a substantial level change along 
the western boundary between the site and Victoria Road.  
 
South of the subject site – Victoria Road  
The site is bounded to the south by Victoria Road and a mix of uses; the Ryde 
Aquatic Leisure Centre, residential and commercial development. To the south-west 
of the subject site is the Ryde Aquatic Centre. The Aquatic Centre is accessed from 
Margaret Street and Weaver Street. East of the Aquatic Centre, is residential land 
uses bounded by Weaver Street to the west and Tennyson Road to the east.  
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Residential development comprises single and two storey dwellings, with some three 
and four storey residential flat building. To the east of the residential land uses is the 
Gladesville Business Centre. Industrial zoned land comprising a range of light 
industrial and warehouse uses are located along Tennyson Road.   
 
West of the subject site – Frank Street  
The site is bounded to the west by light industrial land uses, such as Kennards 
storage facility and further west the education establishment, Holy Cross College. 
Access to Kennards Self Storage is provided off Frank Street. Access to Holy Cross 
College is provided off Victoria Road, with a secondary entry point off Cressy Road.       
 
Proposed Amendment to Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2010 
The object of this planning proposal is to include additional permitted uses on the site 
by amending Schedule 1 ‘Additional Uses’ pursuant to RLEP 2010 and to amend the 
Building Height Map pursuant to RLEP 2010 to permit a maximum building height 
across the site. The current IN2 Light Industrial land use zoning will be retained as 
part of the planning proposal.  
 
Clause 4 in Schedule 1 ‘Additional Uses’ pursuant to RLEP 2010 permits 
development for the purpose of existing building premises or office at 495 Victoria 
Road, known as ‘Building H’. This use will be retained on the site.  
 
The planning proposal seeks to amend Clause 4 Schedule 1 Ryde Local 
Environmental Plan to include additional land uses permitted with consent. The 
additional land uses include, bulky goods premises, garden centre and hardware and 
building supplies. The planning proposal also seeks to amend the following Height of 
Building Map RLEP 2010 (Sheet HOB-106) to apply maximum building heights to the 
site. The proposed heights are outlined as followed (note: the range in meters is due 
to the significant variation in topography): RL 63 (12 to 15 metres); RL52 (6 to 14 
metres across the site); and RL42 (0 to 4 metres.  
Justification and Net Community Benefit 
The planning proposal provides information about the need for a major hardware 
store in the Ryde Local Government Area (‘RLGA’) and to vary the maximum building 
height limits to facilitate a suitable urban design outcome on a topographically 
constrained site. The proponent submits that the planning proposal would promote 
the orderly and economic use and development of the subject site, and that the 
planning proposal is expected to result in a net community benefit, which included: 

 Increase employment generating capacity including opportunities for part 
time, casual and younger employees and key workers;  
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 The ability to satisfy latent demand for a large hardware store and bulky 

goods premises in the Ryde LGA; 
 A considered approach to building heights across the site having regard for 

the various streetscape outcomes and residential interfaces; and  
 Reducing permissible height to the sensitive College Street frontage and 

also minimising potential building height to the adjoining residential property 
at 18 College Street.  

 
Documentation covering the justification and the need for the proposal is provided at 
ATTACHMENT 1 titled ‘461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville - Planning Proposal- 
Submitted Report Documentation’. The relevant sections are found at ‘Part 3 – 
Justification’ on page 24 of the planning report prepared by Don Fox Planning and 
the ‘Economic Assessment’ report prepared by Leyshon Consulting Pty Ltd.    
 
City of Ryde Appraisal of the Planning Proposal 
Pursuant to RLEP 2010, the subject site is zoned IN2 – Light Industrial, the purpose 
being to enable land to be used for light industrial and associated purposes. The 
principal development standards applying to the IN2 Light Industrial zone under 
RLEP 2010, including the provision of Clause 4 Schedule 1 are provided in the table 
below.  

 
Additional Land Uses 
The planning proposal seeks to amend Clause 4 Schedule 1 RLEP 2010 to include 
additional uses with consent. A comparison of the provisions included under Ryde 
Local Environment Plan 2010, Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2011 and the planning 
proposed is provided below.  
 

Provision Ryde Local Environmental Plan 2010 
Zoning IN2 – Light Industrial  

 
SP2 – Infrastructure (classified road)  
 

Height No height limit  
Floor Space Ratio 1:1 
Clause 4 
Schedule 1 – 
Additional Land 
Uses  

(1) This clause applies to land at 461-495 Victoria Road, 
Gladesville, being part Lot 1, DP 739556 (Building H) 
(2) Development for the purposes of business premises and office 
premises Building H (known as 495 Victoria Road) that include 48 
car parking spaces is permitted with consent 
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Provision RLEP 2010 Draft RLEP 2011 Proposed Provisions 

under the Planning 
Proposal 

Schedule 
1 – 
Additional 
Land uses  

Clause 4 – Use of 
Certain Land at 461 -
495 Victoria Road, 
Gladesville 
 
(1) This clause 
applies to land at 461-
495 Victoria Road, 
Gladesville, being part 
Lot 1, DP 739556 
(Building H) 
 
(2) Development for 
the purposes of 
business premises 
and office premises 
Building H (known as 
495 Victoria Road) 
that include 48 car 
parking spaces is 
permitted with 
consent  

Clause 6 – Use of certain 
land at 461 Victoria 
Road, Gladesville  
 
(1) This clause applies to 
land at 461 Victoria 
Road, Gladesville being 
Lot 1 DP739556 
 
(2) Development for the 
purpose of bulky goods 
is permitted with consent  
 
(3) Development for the 
purpose of business 
premises and office 
premises (Building H 
only) is permitted with 
consent  

Clause 4 – Uses of 
certain land at 461-495 
Victoria Road, 
Gladesville  
 
(1) This clause applies to 
land at 495 Victoria 
Road, Gladesville being 
Lot 1 DP739556 
 
(2)Development for the 
purposes of bulky goods, 
garden centre and 
hardware and building 
supplies permitted with 
consent   
 
(3) Development for the 
purposes of business 
premises and office 
premises (Building H)  

 
Council have adopted additional land uses into the zoning land use table as part of 
Schedule 1 ‘Additional Uses’ pursuant to draft RLEP 2011. The permitted uses with 
consent in the IN Light Industrial zone under RLEP 2010 do not include hardware 
and building supplies, garden centre or bulky goods. The draft RLEP 2011 was 
adopted 2 November 2011. The draft RLEP 2011 includes the additional permitted 
uses with consent Hardware and building supplies. The adoption of hardware and 
building supplies in Clause 4 Schedule 1 RLEP 2010 is consistent with the “permitted 
land uses with consent” and the overall intention of the draft RLEP 2011.           
 
The Local Planning Study informs the City of Ryde draft RLEP 2011. During 2010 the 
City of Ryde prepared the Local Planning Study in response to the State 
Government’s Metropolitan Regional Plan and the draft Inner North Subregional 
Strategy. The study comprised a comprehensive review of the Ryde Local 
Government Area (‘LGA’), including all centres and corridors in the LGA.  
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During the Local Planning Study preparation, submissions were received from the 
public. On 20 September 2010, Council received a submission on behalf of the land 
owners of the subject site requesting Council consider the inclusion of ‘Bulky Goods 
Premises’ as a permitted land use with consent. The request was reviewed by 
Council staff and a recommendation was made in the Local Planning Study that bulky 
goods premises should be adopted as a permitted land use with consent on the 
subject site. The Study recognised the subject site as being located in the section of 
Victoria Road identified as a potential enterprise corridor and suitable for bulky goods 
premises use.  
 
On 2 November 2010 Council reviewed the recommendations set out in the Local 
Planning Study report to Council. The resolution of Council was to adopt all 
recommendations in the Local Planning Study. This resolution was inclusive of the 
recommendation that bulky goods premises should be adopted as a permitted land 
use with consent on 461-495 Victoria Road, Gladesville. The recommendations of the 
Local Planning Study were incorporated into Council’s draft RLEP 2011 and Clause 4 
Schedule 1 was subsequently amended to include bulky goods as a permitted use 
with development consent for the site (Clause 4 is referred to as Clause 6 in draft 
RLEP 2011). 
 
Council sought advice from the Department of Planning on the inclusion of bulky 
goods premises under Clause 6 Schedule 1 of the draft RLEP 2011 as a permitted 
use with development consent on the subject site. The Department advised Council 
the following on 20 June 2012:  
 

“An expansion of land uses in the industrial zones such as bulky goods is 
acceptable provided the area of land zoned for industrial does not change.  
The introduction of bulky goods into the land use table for the IN2 zone 
(therefore all areas of Ryde where the zone exists) would be acceptable subject 
to a rationale addressing the appropriateness of such a use in the zone being 
provided to DoPI. Our preference is to exclude bulky goods retail from industrial 
zones as an additional use across the zone but the inclusion of ‘bulky goods’ is 
not considered fundamentally to be a retail use that is likely to reduce the 
amount of industrial land...  
The preference now is to either: 1). cluster permissibility of these uses in a 
suitable area (close to commercial is ideal but may not be achievable) and to 
give them a B5 zoning or 2) allow the use by a Schedule 1 amendment for the 
particular site based on suitability criteria”        
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Based on the above the inclusion of bulky goods premises by a Schedule 1 
amendment in the draft RLEP 2011 is acceptable to the Department, with proper 
justification from the proponent.   
 
Conclusion 
It is recommended that the Amendment to Schedule 1 ‘Additional Uses’ RLEP 2010 
to include addition land uses of bulky goods premises, hardware a building supplies 
and garden centre is supported because Council resolve to adopt the 
recommendations of the Ryde Local Planning Study, which was inclusive of adopting 
‘bulky goods premises’ as a land use on the site, the inclusion of hardware and 
building supplies in the IN2 Light Industrial land use table pursuant to draft RLEP 
2011 and the inclusion of bulky goods premises on the site in Clause 6 in Schedule 1 
draft RLEP 2011.  
 
Maximum Building Height  

The planning proposal seeks to amend Height of Buildings Map to indicate three 
Maximum Building Heights across the subject site on Sheet HOB – 1 06. A 
comparison of the provisions included under RLEP 2010, draft RLEP 2011 and the 
planning proposed is provided below, including a draft maximum building height plan 
for the site. 
   

Provision RLEP 2010 Draft RLEP 2011 Proposed Provisions under 
the Planning Proposal 

Height of 
Building   

No Maximum 
Height of Building 
limit 

10m Maximum 
Height of Building 
limit 

RL63 (12 to 15 metres 
building height), RL52 (6 to 14 
metres building height) and 
RL42 (0 to 4 metres).  
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As a result of the topography the maximum buildings height of 10 metres in the draft 
RLEP 2011 will result in a deficient urban design outcome, especially from Victoria 
Road. The maximum building heights capable of being achieved under the proposed 
RLs will vary across the subject site and at the interface of each boundary. The 
concept plans submitted with the planning proposal outline that the principal built 
form is contained within the RL63 (coloured pink on the above draft plan) and that 
those structures that will occur in RL52 (coloured blue on the above draft plan) are 
generally ancillary built form structures, such as car parking, awnings, ramps or 
driveways. The proposed RL42 (coloured green on the above draft plan) to a depth of 
10 metres is located at the interface with adjoining residential developments and will 
act as a buffer between proposed development on the site and the residential land 
uses.  
 
A detailed outline of the maximum building height that could be achieved for each 
proposed RL point is provided following: 
 
North site boundary – College Street  
At College Street the ground level at the site boundary falls from RL 40 to RL38, the 
lowest point occurring toward the centre of the site. At the centre of the site the 
ground level falls to RL35, which sets the centre of the site below ground level at the 
site boundary fronting College Street. Any built form on the subject site will be visible 
from ground level at the site boundary to College Street (RL38 to RL40).  
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East site boundary – Residential and Commercial land uses 
At the eastern boundary of the site the ground level fall adjoining the residential 
development fronting College Street falls from RL40 to RL35. Adjoining the car wash 
at the south-eastern portion of the site boundary the ground level steeply falls from 
approximately RL49 to RL35, which represents a change of 14 metres. Due to the 
steep fall of the land majority of the built form visible from this site boundary will occur 
below ground level.     
 
South site boundary – Victoria Road  
At the southern site boundary the ground level is generally consistent at RL49 to 
RL48. The site boundary will be characterised a maximum building height to RL63. 
Along Victoria Road, RL63 represents a maximum building height above street level 
of approximately 14 – 15 metres setback between 6 - 9 metres from the site 
boundary. This maximum height of the built form is congruous built form with the 
adjoining site to the west, Kennard’s storage and south-east, Glade View Business 
Park. 
 
West site boundary – Frank Street             
At the western site boundary the ground level varies between RL49 to RL45. Due to 
the nominal change in topography along this boundary, the resultant potential built 
form will be visible to and from Frank Street. RL52 represents a maximum building 
height of approximately 3 to 7 metres from street level (RL42 to RL45) at a zero 
setback to the site boundary. RL63 represents a maximum building height of 
approximately 18 – 21 metres from ground level (RL42 to RL45) setback 33 metres 
from the site boundary.     
 
Conclusion 
It is recommended that the proposed heights for the site be supported because the 
amendment to the heights will permit a potential development above ground at 
Victoria Road, providing street activation and a building presentation to an otherwise 
blank site and the maximum height is appropriately setback from College Street and 
the residential interface through the adopted of three RL’s across the site.    
 
Access 
The site is accessed from:  

 Two access points along College Street;  
 Two access points along Frank Street. One access point provides access to 

a roof top car park and the second provides access to the building at 495 
Victoria Road, Gladesville; and  
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 Two disused access points off Victoria Road.   

 
The concept plans submitted with the planning proposal demonstrate that access to 
the site will be re-orientated around three access points following: 

 An access point at the corner of College and Frank Street;  
 An access point from Frank Street; and   
 A new access point from Victoria Road at the intersection of Victoria and 

Tennyson Roads.    
 
The new access point from Victoria Road will be created in the south-eastern corner 
of the site and adjoining the car wash. The access point will provide entry and exit 
from the site via a traffic light controlled intersection at Victoria and Tennyson Roads 
and will include, slip lane access heading east along Victoria Road, right turn access 
at the intersection heading west along Victoria Road, and straight through the 
intersection from Tennyson Road. A development application for the formation of this 
intersection to provide access to Building E on the site was lodged with Council on 2 
November 2012 (LDA2012/412).       
 
Policy and Strategic Context 
Many of the key matters applicable on a Policy and Strategic basis have been 
considered by the proponent within their Planning Proposal. In this respect, only the 
major issues have been detailed below.   
 
Metropolitan Strategy and Employment Lands for Sydney Action Plan 
In March 2007, the NSW State Government adopted the Metropolitan Strategy and 
Employment Lands for Sydney Action Plan covering the City of Ryde. The strategy 
and plan identify the need to retain employment lands (including traditional industrial 
areas such as Gladesville). The planning proposal has no adverse impacts on the 
aims and strategies of the Metropolitan Strategy.   
 
Draft Inner North Subregional Strategy  
The Inner North Subregion: Draft Subregional Strategy (Draft Subregional Strategy) 
covering the City of Ryde LGA. The Draft Subregional Strategy sets a number of 
objectives and directions for employment and centres and corridors for the subregion 
to be reached by 2031. The targets set out by the Strategy include, a jobs target for 
the city of Ryde LGA of 21,000 new jobs; the retention of the Gladesville industrial 
area for industrial purposes servicing the local population; and identification of parts 
of Victoria Road, Gladesville as an enterprise corridor. The planning proposal has no 
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adverse impacts on the aims and strategies of the Draft Subregional Strategy and will 
contribute to diverse employment opportunities within RLGA.   
 
Ministerial Directions (s.117 directions)  
Direction 1.1 – Business and Employment Zones 
The objective of the direction is to protect employment land in business and industrial 
zones and encourage employment growth in suitable locations. On the basis of 
advice received from the Department of Planning and Infrastructure dated 20 June 
2012 and as detailed throughout the report, Council is of the opinion that the 
proposed inclusion of additional land uses in the IN2 Light Industrial zone under 
RLEP 2010 does not conflict with the objectives adopted under Direction 1.1.  
 
Direction 6.3 – Site Specific Provisions  
The objective of the direction is to discourage unnecessarily restrictive site specific 
planning controls. The proposed planning proposal does not conflict with the 
objectives adopted under Direction 1.1.    
 
Ryde LEP 2010 
The planning proposal retains the IN2 Light Industrial Land Use zone. The planning 
proposal request to include the additional land uses bulky goods premises, hardware 
and building supplies and garden centre for the subject site only as an amendment to 
clause 4 Schedule 1 RLEP2010 is considered suitable due to the location of the site 
and its context in RLGA and the delays in progressing DLEP 2011 to gazettal. 
 
Development Control Plan 2010 
Council’s current Development Control Plan 2010 does not have controls that 
adequately address the uniqueness of the topography of the site, the size of the site 
the proposed development type and interface with existing surrounding development. 
In order to ensure that the future development of the subject site provides a 
reasonable built form outcome and a level of amenity for future and existing site 
occupiers and adjoining residents, a site specific addition to the Development Control 
Plan 2010 must be prepared.  
 
The draft DCP would include elements such as:  

 Street setbacks;  
 Setbacks to the adjoining residential property at 18 College Street and 

treatment of the setback area;  
 Stepped building form to the College Street frontage; 
 Façade treatment; 
 Retention of street trees along College street; 
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 Landscaping of setback areas;  
 Pedestrian entry and activation to Victoria Road;  
 Vehicle access; 
 Acoustic buffer to residential properties on College Street; and  
 Stormwater management. 

 
The preparation of a site specific addition to the Development Control Plan 2010 
would occur once the Planning Proposal has been firstly adopted by Council and 
subsequently considered by the Department of Planning. Should the Department of 
Planning support the Planning Proposal, the site specific addition to the DCP 2010 
would be prepared prior to any community consultation taking place. This has been 
included in the recommendations of this report.  
 
Local Planning Study 
The City of Ryde Local Planning Study (adopted 7 December 2010) has been 
prepared as Council’s local planning response to the Draft Inner North Subregional 
Strategy.  The proposed planning proposal does not conflict with the strategies 
adopted under the Local Planning Study. The relevance of the recommendation of 
the Local Planing Study and this site is discussed earlier in this report.  
 
Draft Ryde 2011 
Under draft LEP 2011 the land is zoned IN Light Industrial. The land use table 
permits the land use hardware and building supplies with development consent. 
Clause 6 of Schedule 1 ‘Additional Uses’ pursuant to draft RLEP 2011 permits under 
sub-clause (2) bulky good premises land use and retains sub-clause (3) development 
for the purposes of business premises and office premises (Building H). Should 
Council support the planning proposal Clause 6 of Schedule 1 would be amended to 
include garden centres into sub-clause (2) as a permitted land use.   
 
Consultation 
 
Under the gateway plan-making process, a gateway determination is required before 
community consultation (formerly known as public exhibition) on the planning 
proposal takes place.  The consultation process will be determined by the Minister 
and stipulated as part of the gateway determination. 
 
The Department of Planning’s guidelines stipulate at least 28 days community 
consultation for a major plan, and at least 14 days for a low impact plan.  The low 
impact proposals are generally those which are consistent with the current 



 
 
 
 Council Reports  Page 234 
 
ITEM 10 (continued) 

Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

predominant zoning, and do not cover a significant area.  Consultation will be 
managed by Council and will include exhibition of the draft RLEP 2010 and RDCP 
2010 amendment, notification, and a review of submissions. 
 
Critical Dates 
 
Time periods for preparation of amending LEPs apply upon issue of the Gateway 
Determinations by the Minister. There is usually a 6 to 12 month time period allowed.  
 
Financial Impact 
 
Adoption of the option(s) outlined in this report will have no financial impact. Council 
should note that the lodgement of the planning proposal has been subject to 
Council’s Fees and Charges Schedule to amend Local Environmental Plans.  
 
Policy Implications 
 
The proposal is consistent with Council’s Local Planning Study which guides 
amendments to Councils planning instrument and development control plan.   
 
Next Steps 
 
Should Council resolve to support this planning proposal for the purposes of 
community consultation and a gateway determination, the next step is to forward the 
planning proposal to the Department of Planning.  Gateway determinations are 
issued by the Minister for Planning or delegate and are required before community 
consultation (public exhibition) on the planning proposal takes place. 
 
Other Options 
 
At this stage of the process, Council has the option to decide to proceed with the 
planning proposal to the next stage (gateway determination and community 
consultation) or to decide not to proceed. 
 
Should the Minister for Planning determine that the planning proposal can proceed to 
community consultation, Council has another opportunity to decide whether to 
proceed, vary or reject the proposal, following community consultation.  
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Conclusion 
 
The planning proposal to rezone 461 – 495 Victoria Road, Gladesville to include 
additional uses in Schedule 1 RLEP 2010 and to amend the Height of Building Map 
(Sheet HOB-106) to apply maximum building heights across the subject site. The 
planning proposal is considered appropriate to proceed to the Minister for Planning 
for a gateway determination as to whether it should proceed to the consultation 
stage. The proposed amendments and the development achievable under it, is 
considered appropriate for the site given its size, context and location. This is subject 
to the inclusion of a site specific addition to the Development Control Plan 2010 prior 
to undertaking community consultation.  
 
It is therefore recommended that Council forward the subject planning proposal to the 
Department of Planning for Gateway Determination. 
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11 CIVIC PRECINCT COST ANALYSIS REPORT  

Report prepared by: Project Manager - Development 
       File No.: PM2010/37/009/3/11 - BP12/1291  
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This Report provides an itemised breakdown of costs for the Civic Precinct Project in 
accordance with the approved funding and stages of work in compliance with the 
Council Resolution of 9 October 2012 and in reference to the Draft 2011/2012 
Financial Statements. 
 
It highlights through an independent report from Council’s Quantity Surveyor that 
Council’s expenditure on the development agreement of $4,540,960 was well within 
or below industry norms for the 3 stages of the project with a better than budgeted 
overall result of $78,040. These costs would have been recovered should the project 
have progressed. 
 
The project was also delivered within the Council adopted project plans for each 
stage with a delay of 4 weeks at project end. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Civic Precinct Cost Report be received and noted. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Project Program - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER  
2  Civic Precinct Planning and Tender Program - CIRCULATED UNDER 

SEPARATE COVER 
 

3  Civic Precinct Consultation Chronology  
4  BEM GST Margin Scheme Valuation Report  
5  Ryde Civic Precinct Redevelopment - WTP Technical Advisors Report - October 

2012 - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER - CONFIDENTIAL 
 

 
Report Prepared By: 
 
Malcolm Harrild 
Project Manager - Development  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
John Neish 
General Manager  
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Background 
 
The establishment of a project team, providing skills not available from within 
Council, to progress the redevelopment of the Civic Precinct and fulfil Council’s 
planning, financial and communication obligations was an integral component of the 
appointment of the Development Director, as resolved by Council  (Council Meeting 
13/10, BP10/451 with reference to COR-RFT-05/10).  This was further detailed in the 
Report to Council concerning the appointment of the initial Consultants, dated 
14/12/2010, BP10/728, which reiterated the high level initial stages of the project and 
provided an outline of the project budget.  The appointment of other project team 
Consultants was brought to Council’s attention in Reports resolved in Council 
meetings of 18 October 2011 and 12 June 2012 in which the General Manager’s 
delegated authority for the procurement of the consultants was extended in 
accordance with Section 55 (3) of the Local Government Act 1993. 
 
The high level programme for the project consisted of 4 Phases, each was adopted 
by Council. 
 
1. Establishment (July 2010 – Dec 2010) 
 Undertake appropriate planning to inform decision making, establish the project 
 team and develop the detailed project plan. 

 Council approval for tender process for Civic Precinct 
 Selection and commissioning of the consulting team, establishment of the 

initial internal team members and governance structure 
 Review all existing documentation and identify gaps and risk assessment 
 Development of key documentation, including project plan, phase 2 budget 

and internal communication plan 
 Prepare draft project brief 

 
2. Planning and Assessment of Options (Jan 2011 – Dec 2011) 
 Identify the most appropriate model for the Civic Precinct redevelopment from a 
 commercial and community perspective. 

 Prepare indicative scope of Councils current and future facility requirement 
 Develop draft Master Plans, PPR and high level concept designs 
 Undertake commercial analysis and feasibility testing 
 Seek community/ Council approval to the Master Plan and high level concept 

designs 
 Revisit planning controls and undertake associated public exhibition period 
 Recommend Council adopt the Model for developing the site that suits the 

brief 
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3.  Tendering and Selection (Jan 2012 – Dec 2012) 
 Select a suitable tenderer through a formal Competitive Design process. 

 Obtain Planning height approval 
 Formalise Council’s requirements (staff amalgamation etc) 
 Finalise scopes for Council’s future facilities and assets (if preferred model) 
 Finalise Project briefs and project plan (depending on preferred model ) 
 Finalise additional consultants to execute the approved project model 
 Documentation of tender documents, including selection criteria 
 Competitive Tender process: call Expressions of Interest 
 Competitive Tender process: call for Tenders 
 Competitive Tender process: selection of Tenderer 
 Finalise contractual negotiations 

 
4.  Project Delivery (Jan 2013 – TBC) 
 Develop final design and undergo Development Application process ready to 
 commence construction. 
 Construction commences - 

 Appoint developer to prepare procurement strategy and program 
 Appoint Developer and commence detailed designs 
 Developer to prepare development application and lodge 
 Design Consultants to be retained for Peer review 
 Public exhibition 
 Development consent issued 
 Construction certificate obtained 
 Commence construction 

 
The purpose of the Civic Precinct Redevelopment project was to provide Council with 
a new office building, in which to consolidate its staff and a new Civic building to 
replace the Civic Hall and Argyle Centre community facilities.  The aim was to acquire 
these new assets without placing a financial burden upon ratepayers. 
 
The subsequent team of Consultants formed under the leadership of the 
Development Director provided Council with all the skills necessary to determine 
what would be feasible on the site, to seek appropriate modifications to planning 
controls, acquire adjacent Crown land to regularise the site, analyse and document 
infrastructure changes, investigate and specify requirements, assess the market 
responses to Council’s enquiries, analyse commercial risk and assist in negotiating 
an agreement with a preferred developer.  
 
The disciplines provided by the team included option modelling; land survey and 
valuation, traffic planning and management, legal advice covering the subdivision of 
land and development and contract specialties, building regulatory compliance; cost 
planning, project management, urban planning, urban design, architecture and 
workplace design, geotechnical survey, civic and construction engineering, 
community communications and engagement, financial and risk analysis, heritage 
review, and environmentally sustainable design. 
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Additionally a Probity Adviser was appointed to ensure that the project was managed 
appropriately by all parties and Council’s own Manager, Risk and Audit, maintained a 
watching brief over all procurement matters. 
 
The timescale of the high level program became subject to subsequent Council 
Resolutions, which in summary, were; 
 
 At the Council Meeting of 18 October, 2011 it was resolved to undertake an 

Expression of Interest and tendering process to produce a further report to 
Council recommending a development partner preferably by August 2012. 

 
 The City of Ryde Precinct Redevelopment Tender Report of 6 June, 2012, 

considered at the Council meeting of 12 June, 2012  identified  the two received 
tenders and with regard to clause 178 (3) of the Local Government (General) 
Regulation 2005 and pursuant to section 377(1) of the Local Government Act 
1993, recommended that a Project Development Agreement be negotiated and 
entered into with Lend Lease on terms the General Manager approves and is 
reasonably satisfied are substantially consistent with or more favourable to 
Council than the Commercial and Risk Principles established as part of the 
Tender clarification process with Lend Lease Development Pty Ltd. 

 
The effect of these Resolutions was to follow stage 2 with a two staged Phase 3 
approach breaking down the tasks involved in preferred tenderer selection, 
negotiation and contract execution. Phase 3a occurring from December 2011 to May 
2012, ending with the identification of the preferred tenderer, and Phase 3b to August 
2012 by which time it was expected that negotiations would be finalised with the 
preferred contractor in the form of a Project Delivery Agreement (PDA). 
 
Considering the complexities of the PDA, the General Manager did not enter into a 
Contract with Lend Lease before the new Council had the opportunity, to consider 
that the negotiations had resulted in an outcome substantially consistent with or more 
favourable to Council than those expressed in the Commercial and Risk Principles 
document.  To demonstrate that the General Manager could comply with all previous 
resolutions of Council that delegated him the authority to enter “Project Documents “ 
with Lend Lease, all Councillors were invited to a workshop that took place on 19 
September 2012. 
 
In this workshop the General Manager, the Development Director, Commercial 
advisor (MCA Consulting) and Legal representative (Clayton Utz) gave a two hour 
presentation that outlined the following-  
 
1. History of the Project 
2. Councils cash flow position considering full redevelopment or refurbishment 

options  
3. Councils and Lend Lease’s commercial position at Tender Stage  
4. Councils and Lend Lease’s commercial position at the completion of Contract 

Negotiation 
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5. Councils and Lend Lease’s Legal and risk position at Tender Stage  
6. Councils  and Lend Lease’s Legal and risk position at the completion of 

Contract Negotiation 
 
Also to fully inform the General Manager of all aspects of the negotiation, the General 
Manager commissioned legal and commercial comparison reports that sought to 
compare Councils commercial, legal and risk position at tender to final negotiation 
stage.  A full analysis was also undertaken by Councils Chief Financial Officer 
whereby the cash flow impact of the tendered position compared to the final 
negotiated position was considered.  A Probity Advisors report was also provided 
with a Memorandum from the Development Director highlighting key elements of the 
negotiation.  Equipped with this information, the General Manager drafted a 
Memorandum to the Mayor outlining key criteria which led him to the conclusion that 
signing the Project Documents would be in accordance with all previous resolutions 
and be in the best interests of Council. 
 
After Council had been presented with all necessary information at the afore 
mentioned workshop (which was attended by 4 of 12 Councillors) at the first meeting 
of the newly elected council (25 September 2012) Council resolved: 
 

"That Council declares that it does not intend to proceed with the Civic Precinct 
Redevelopment project and requests the General Manager to take no further 
action that would progress the project and that the Mayor immediately make the 
above declaration and request on behalf of Council" 

 
Discussion 
 
Project Team Activities and Program 
 
Stages 1 and 2 
 
Stages one and two of the project involved establishing the framework and context of 
the final project delivery. 
 
To undertake this exercise it was important to establish a “Project Brief”.  This 
document guided the project plan (program) and all inputs required to establish and 
ultimately execute this complex project. 
 
Initially it was vital to gain an insight into supply and demand factors that influence 
market land pricing and determine the preferred use for the land based on 
commercial return.  This information was supplied by Macro Plan Australia.  
 
The next stage of the project involved establishing the project budget and engaging 
the relevant expertise to input to each element of the project.  
 
The Consulting team included some of the highest regarded companies and 
individuals in the development sector.  
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At this point it was discovered that Council did not own (in title) all of the land that 
makes up the Civic Precinct. This was reported to Council.  Following meetings with 
Crown Land and considering the area’s in question had been operated and 
maintained by Council for over 100 years, Crown consented to Council Compulsory 
Acquiring the land at no cost.   
 
This complex process took over a year to complete and concluded with approval by 
the Minister for Local Government in February 2012. 
 
Once the team had been engaged in line with the project program and equipped with 
market analysis, the feasibility for the project was formed.  The feasibility was based 
around testing 20-30 scenario’s with varying usages to determine the most beneficial 
solution to meet the project brief. 
 
At this point community consultation took place to determine user groups preferences 
for the proposed facilities and input community opinion in the master planning phase. 
 
To form the complex feasibility model, Council engaged an expert modeller and 
expert peer review consultant to verify all inputs.  
 
Each scenario involved general master planning of the site considering factors such 
as good urban design, infrastructure restrictions and Councils requirement for 
buildings to house its Administration and Civic functions.  Whilst master planning 
formed the overall acceptable envelope for the site it also provided drawings to allow 
the cost planning team to input overall development cost into the various feasibility 
models . Revenue inputs were supplied through the market research undertaken and 
checked by the commercial peer review consultant. 
 
It was very important to establish the cost of the Council facilities at an early stage as 
this would ultimately guide the required value for the development rights.  The 
specification for the facilities was formed by the Urban Designer an added to the 
overall master plan to form a complete mixed use design. 
  
In accordance with the program, four options were presented to Council in July 2011.  
One option met the brief by delivering development rights value to pay for Councils 
facilities and offer a better urban design than the planning instruments offered at that 
time.  This master plan was principally driven by a residential based scheme that 
included the Civic Facilities on site and the Administration facilities located off site.  
This scheme represented the best option for Council but did require an input of $5m 
input from Council (as reported). 
 
Upon completion of the feasibility, a planning proposal was undertaken to reduce the 
overall allowable floor space from 100,000m2 to 60,000m2.  This created a far better 
urban design outcome.  Additionally to provide an appropriate Urban form the height 
was increased to 24 storey’s or RL130. 
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Extensive community consultation was undertaken and as highlighted in 
ATTACHMENT 3 – Civic Precinct Consultation Chronology.  The planning 
proposal was exhibited twice, firstly for six weeks then again for four.  Following the 
initial exhibition period, an independent planning assessment recommended the 
restriction of the maximum height for the site and also recommended other varying 
height controls.  The second exhibition period demonstrated the amendments to the 
masterplan considering the independent planners recommendations and community 
concerns.  This did however restrict the overall envelope available and limit the 
design potential of the site. 
 
The above tasks were all performed in accordance with the project program that was 
approved by Council and remained on time with expenditure below budget. 
 
Stage 3 
 
Council determined on 18 October 2011 to seek an appropriate development partner 
in accordance with an Expression of Interest (EOI) and Request for Tender process 
(RFT).  The process was exercised in accordance with Section 55 of the Local 
Government Act and Councils own procurement policies and overseen by in an 
independent Probity Advisor and Councils Manager for Risk and Audit.  The 
procurement process is further detailed below under the heading “Development 
Partner Procurement”. 
 
To form the Tender documents, the team were required to draft comprehensive legal 
documents that detailed Councils intentions and requirements.  In doing so, 
appropriate specifications for the Council assets were formed utilising a host of 
expert consultants, most of which had prior knowledge of the project. This 
comprehensive documentation lead to Council mitigating its risks and supplying 
enough detail to the tenderers so they could price the project accurately and provide 
the best Commercial and Design outcome for Council  
 
To ensure Councils risks were being managed, the panel of experts that were 
established to undertake the Procurement Assessment (evaluation panel) were some 
of the most highly regarded individuals in their field.  The process was again 
complete on time and within budget. 
 
The findings of the procurement process were reported to Council in a Civic Precinct 
workshop on the 6 June 2012 and again at the Council meeting on 12 June 2012.  
 
Council elected, on 26 June 2012 to proceed with the project and enter into 
negotiations with Lend Lease.  Negotiations were conducted by the Development 
Director and Negotiation team including Councils lawyers (Clayton Utz) and Project 
Manager (Malcolm Harrild). The negotiations utilised a negotiation protocol endorsed 
by the probity advisor who monitored all activities throughout the negotiation period. 
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The negotiations involved the drafting of number of “project documents” that formed 
the overall contractual position between Council and Lend Lease.  Throughout the 
negotiation period, the skills of an expert financial analyst were utilised (HILL PDA). 
 
The Analyst conducted the evaluation of the initial tenders and built a feasibility 
model from scratch to compare all the tenders against Councils Commercial 
requirements.  As the negotiations progressed and the commercial inputs varied, the 
feasibility model was kept up to date.  In the last two weeks of the negotiation period 
the feasibility model was reviewed by the commercial peer review consultant.  A final 
report was produced that analysed Councils commercial position at tender compared 
to the final negotiated and documented position.  This report accompanied by a 
report by Councils CFO, Legal Advisors, Probity Advisors and a Memorandum from 
the Development Director assisted the General Manger in his determination whether 
to enter  a Contract with Lend Lease or not.   
 
As highlighted above, the work carried out to bring the project to maturity where the 
Project Delivery Agreement could be signed by both Council and Lend Lease 
Development was both broad in scope and detailed in its depth of investigation and 
analysis. 
 
The work carried out by the team was accomplished in Stage 2 in accordance with 
ATTACHMENT 1 – Project Program A3 x 4 version (CIRCULATED UNDER 
SEPARATE COVER) and in Stage 3a and 3b ATTACHMENT 2 – Civic Precinct 
Planning and Tender Program Stages 3-4 detailed (CIRCULATED UNDER 
SEPARATE COVER). 
 
Whilst these two programs denote the milestones of Project Team activities, it should 
not be forgotten that prior to and in parallel with them consultation and information 
was maintained within Council and with the local community as listed in 
ATTACHMENT 3 – Civic Precinct Consultation Chronology. 
 
The programs for both Stage 2 and Stage 3 were complied with, the only minor 
variation being the closing activity of Stage 3b, “negotiate with selected tenderer”, 
which was programmed to be completed in August 2012. Legal drafting and financial 
analysis took slightly longer than expected, which, combined with the delay caused 
by a rescission motion being considered by Council from 12 June 2012 to 26 June 
2012 added a month to the finalisation of the Project Delivery Agreement 
documentation. 
 
Development Partner Procurement  
 
As has been reported to the previous Council, the procurement of the preferred 
developer was achieved through a two phase approach. 
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An Expression of Interest (EOI) was published to the open market on 22 November 
2011 and closed on 23 December 2011. The EOI was reviewed by 92 organisations 
but only 9 lodged submissions after securing the returnable schedules for a fee of 
$500.  
 
These were -  
 All Park Products 
 Billbergia Pty Ltd 
 Crown Group Pty Ltd 
 Frasers Property Australia Pty Ltd 
 Ryde Civic Consortium (J. Hutchinson Pty Ltd, Galileo Funds Management and 

Scott Carver & Associates) 
 Leighton Properties Pty Limited  
 Lend Lease Developments 
 Mirvac Projects Pty Limited, and 
 Payce Consolidated Limited 
 
With the exception of All Park Products (a non complying submission) it was 
gratifying to see that substantial and competent organisations were keen to work with 
the City of Ryde on this project 
 
Following a full evaluation of these submissions a shortlist of potential tenderers was 
compiled and upon receiving confirmation from each that they were prepared to 
tender, the Request for Tenders was issued, on 10 February 2012 -  
 
 Billbergia Pty Ltd 
 Leighton Properties Pty Limited 
 Lend Lease Development Pty Ltd, and 
 Mirvac Projects Pty Limited 
 
On the termination date for submissions, 10 April 2012, Leighton and Mirvac issued 
letters stating they were not submitting and Billbergia and Lend Lease submitted fully 
detailed tenders. 
 
An intensive analysis and clarification process was undertaken by the Evaluation 
Panel under the scrutiny of Council’s Probity Advisor and a report issued to the 
General Manager on 25 May 2012. 
 
The outcome was placed before the Civic Precinct Committee on 6 June 2012 in a 
Report by the General Manager.  Upon receipt of Council’s resolution at the following 
Council meeting held on 12 June 2012 negotiations consequently proceeded in good 
faith with the preferred tenderer, Lend Lease Development, who immediately 
allocated significant resources to the tasks. 
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Funding 
 
Ryde Town Centre includes two precincts, Precinct 1 represented by the land which 
accommodates the existing Civic Hall, Civic Centre, public car park, grassed area 
Council staff car parks; and Precinct 2, the “Town Core” which has now been 
redeveloped as Top Ryde City shopping centre. 
 
The redevelopment of Ryde Town Centre has incurred expenditure from Council from 
financial year 2007/2008.  However from 2007 until 2010 that expenditure was 
related solely to the works associated with the activities of Bevillesta Pty Ltd in 
redeveloping the Town Core.   
 
For example, during 2008/2009 and 2009/2010, Council incurred costs related to; 
 the Pubic Private Partnership with Bevillesta and the RTA for road, bridge, ramp 

and tunnel works; 
 verification of civil engineering works; 
 completion of the developers’ public domain works and provision of Council’s 

new library and office space (VPA contribution $10M); 
 modification works to the Civic Centre to provide tunnel access ramps; and 
 community liaison throughout the construction of Top Ryde City. 
 
That expenditure, which was notified to Council by the Chief Financial Officer in a 
memorandum dated 9 October 2012, as $518,724 over those two financial years was 
classified “Ryde Civic Precinct Design” but did not relate to any work proposed for the 
redevelopment of the Civic Precinct.  
 
The $518,724.00 assigned to the Civic Precinct project budget had been incurred 
prior to the Civic Precinct Redevelopment being resolved to proceed on 16 March 
2010.  Therefore this report and associated financial analysis does not include these 
previous costs as they do not relate to the Civic Precinct Project. 
 
In the Council meeting of 16 March 2010, when the process to procure a 
Development Director was approved, the Civic Precinct Reserve was reported at 
$2,577,150. 
 
Subsequently, at the Council meeting of 11 May 2010, the 2010-2014 Capital Works 
Program included a budget of $1,080,000 for the Civic Centre Precinct 
Redevelopment in FY 2010/2011.  This permitted establishment of Council’s team to 
manage the project and commence Stages 1 and 2 of the project program. 
 
A Presentation to Council on 12 April 2011 of the 2011-2015 Four Year Plan, 
included an additional budget of $940,300 for Stage 2 of the Civic Precinct 
Redevelopment.  This enabled work to continue to the commencement of Stage 3. 
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In the Extraordinary Council Meeting of 18 October 2011 Council was presented with 
a Report detailing the results of the Planning Proposal carried out during Stage 2 of 
the project and an Update of the Civic Precinct program, procurement and financial 
position including a request to approve a further budget of $2,599,500, these funds 
were approved. 
 
The overall funding for the project had therefore, in three resolutions, been allocated 
as, 
 
Stages 1 and 2, $1,080,000 and $940,000    $2,020,000 
Stage 3 (i.e. Stages 3a and 3b), $2,600,000  $2,600,000 
Total          $4,620,000 
 
The projected cost of Council’s project team for the Civic Precinct project until the 
end of Stage 4 (when the whole project would have been completed) was forecast at 
$9.49M including the $4,62M up to and including the end of Stage 3.  These costs 
were to be reimbursed by the project, the first contribution of $1.5M from Lend Lease 
was due to be paid upon approval of the Early Works DA that was expected to occur 
in March 2013. 
 
The decision not to proceed removes any opportunity for Council to retrieve its costs 
of $4.62M.  This impact upon Council’s finances was explained by Council’s Chief 
Financial Officer in his memorandum to Council dated 9 October, 2012  
 
Project Delivery Agreement – Asset Outcomes 
 
One aspect of the financial analysis of the redevelopment of the Civic Precinct site 
concerned the potential application of a GST Margin Scheme as defined by the 
Australian Taxation Office.  
 
In order to investigate this potential it was necessary, as part of the project, to obtain 
a valuation of the Civic Precinct site as at July 2000 when GST was introduced.  This 
was carried out by BEM property, specialists in this area, and provided on 20 January 
2012, see ATTACHMENT4 - BEM GST Margin Scheme Valuation Report.  
 
With due consideration of the zoning as explained in the section of the Report 
“Valuation Rationale”, BEM reported that the value of Council’s land was 
$15,000,000. Additionally BEM valued the adjacent roads with an area of 5,625m2, 
owned by Crown Land at the time prior to compulsory acquisition, at $1. 
 
Therefore the value of the Civic Precinct redevelopment site, with its existing 
buildings and adjacent Crown Land, in accordance with the GST Margin Scheme 
valuation was $15,000,001. 
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In 2006, Council resolved to rezone the Civic Precinct “Mixed Use” and this way 
gazetted by the Department of Planning as LEP 143 in 2006, confirming the site 
could accept a 100,000m2 development but restricting the height to RL90 (matching 
the existing building). 
 
In order to provide a viable and acceptable design outcome for the site (retention of 
RL90 and 100,000 square metres being incompatible and impracticable parameters) 
the redevelopment proposed   to change the planning controls for the site. Council 
resolved in 2011 through a Planning Proposal to seek a height increase to RL130 (as 
originally sought at the time of LEP 143 but rejected by State Government) and 
decrease the developable area to 60,000 square metres. The Planning Proposal 
results of extensive community consultation were reported to Council on 18 October 
2011 whereby Council resolved to exhibit the proposal for a further 28 days reflecting 
the amendment to the location of height controls on the site as recommended by an 
independent planner commissioned by Councils department of planning.  Following 
re-exhibition and subsequent gazettal of the amended Planning Proposal by the 
NSW Department of Planning and Infrastructure, the project proceeded with planning 
control parameters of RL130 (in a restrictive area) and 60,000 square meters of 
development potential. 
 
As anticipated in the report from BEM Property, the project team began negotiations 
with Crown land resulting in a resolution by Council to compulsorily acquire adjacent 
road areas, with Crown Land’s consent, at nil cost to Council.  This enabled the 
redevelopment site to be regularised and traffic routes to be aligned as originally 
anticipated in 2006 when development of both Precinct 2 and 1 were viewed as the 
combined revitalisation of Ryde Town Centre. 
 
Following an open Expression of Interest process and a consequent “invitation-only” 
Request for Tenders process, the project team was able to report to Council in June 
2012 that the potential outcome for Council, delivered by the preferred tenderer, Lend 
Lease Development, would be a fully redeveloped site including a new Council Office 
Building and a new Civic Centre for the community and public domain, in return for 
development rights for part of the site.  
 
The Lend Lease submission was fully compliant with Council’s requirements for a 
sustainable 5 Green Star Civic Development (the Council’s Office and Civic 
buildings) and 4 Green Star Commercial Developments (the residential components).  
The Lend Lease design proposal was particularly interesting in its provision of public 
open space, landscaped areas and provision of all requirements within a 48,000 
square metre area instead of the 60,000 square metres permitted by the planning 
controls. 
 
The Lend Lease proposal was reported as producing a cost  to Council at the end of 
ten years of $11.9M (Base Case) or $5.8M (Alternative Case) were Council to chose 
the option to make a fully reimbursable loan to the developer at a rate far lower than 
the developer could secure.  The value flowing to Council from this project was 
forecast at $79M. 
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At the conclusion of detailed negotiations with Lend Lease in September 2012, the 
Base Case cost to Council had been modified to $6.5M, an improvement of $5.4M 
and the Alternative Case, (due to Lend Lease’s review of its funding model) , reduced 
to a cost  to Council of $5.3M. A further consequence of the negotiations was a 
reduction of the proposed end value to Council to $73.9M, which must be considered 
in the light of the cost to Council of the base case proposal improving Councils cost 
position by $5.4M.   
 
The proposed outcome of the Civic Precinct redevelopment project was therefore to 
improve value from $15,000,001 to $73,900,000 at a cost to Council over ten years of 
$6,500,000, resulting in new buildings for community and council staff, new public 
domain and infrastructure and completion of the revitalisation of Ryde Town Centre. 
This would have represented a return of $58.9M for an expenditure of $6.5M, (906% 
gain) 
 
Project Cost Report 
 
A review of the administration cost of this project to Council indicates some features 
that would not normally be encountered in a development of this type. 
 
Planning Controls 
 
The controls relating to this site (RL90 height and 100,000 square metres) area were 
incompatible with one another. For example, about 72,000 square metres only could 
be achieved on the land in the site footprint with the RL 90 (10 storey height 
limitation) building to all boundaries and ignoring any development control plans. 
Consequently the design outcome, were it remotely viable, would have been 
unacceptable.  The project therefore had to include testing of feasibility principles 
with the local community, a planning proposal to change the Local Environment Plan, 
extensive community consultation and the provision of literature and a model to 
explain the planning proposal as fully as possible.  Achieving these changes involved 
considerable input from Council’s consultants assisting with Urban Design and 
Architecture and Urban Planning, Communications and Engagement before the new 
planning controls were gazetted by the Department of Planning and Infrastructure. 
 
Land and Titles 
 
Investigation of land holdings revealed two very unusual aspects for the 
redevelopment proposal.  In contradiction of assumed ownership it was discovered 
that land immediately adjacent to the site, for example Parkes Street and Blaxland 
Road were not owned by the Council but by The Crown.  The development required 
realignments of these areas to regularise the site and permit the traffic changes 
required by the Integrated Traffic Solution, (ITS), Stage 2 which had been 
contemplated by Council and the RTA when approving ITS Stage 1 that put in place 
traffic management methods to enable the Top Ryde shopping centre redevelopment 
to function. 
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The investigation also revealed that this ownership issue extended to land 
considered by Council as its own (part of Devlin Street) this land that had been 
leased by Council to Bevillesta Pty ltd allowing the redevelopment of Top Ryde City. 
 
In order to resolve these anomalies it became essential to acquire the adjacent land 
compulsorily from Crown Land. The Government agency was an enthusiastic partner 
to this action, recognising that Council, not Crown, had been maintaining the lands 
since 1875. The acquisition was completed amicably in a comparatively brief 
timescale but did involve Council incurring legal and survey fees.  
 
The additional costs categories outlined above must be considered when analysing 
the expenditure of the project to date and undertaking market comparison exercises. 
 
Cost Analysis  
 
The overall cost of the redevelopment of the Civic Precinct was expected to be in the 
region of $350M had the Project Delivery Agreement proceeded.  Council’s 
development and project management costs, including all external expertise from 
Stage 1 and 2 was forecast as $4.62M.  WTP, Councils cost auditor has concluded 
that this expenditure is well below the typical expenditure on a similar sized project, 
this is due to efficient program management and effective cash flow.  In addition 
projects of this size and nature regularly experience periods of down time, this was 
not the case for the Civic Precinct Project as the initial program was followed 
rigorously; see ATTACHMENT 5 – Ryde Civic Precinct Redevelopment - WTP 
Technical Advisor’s Report, October 2012  - CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE 
COVER – CONFIDENTIAL. 
 
The funding made available for Stages 1, 2 and 3 (i.e 3a and 3b) by Council amounts 
to $4.62M, but which includes work on a planning proposal and compulsory 
acquisition which would not normally form part of development expenditure, (a cost of 
$430,000).  This has been considered by WTP in their analysis leading WTP to 
conclude that Councils expenditure during stages 1 and 2 is 0.4% of total project 
costs whereby a similar project would expect to expend 1% of total project costs, 
representing a 60% reduction in expenditure.  
 
Stages 1 and 2 
 
These Stages covered the period from July 2010 until December 2011 but no 
significant expenditure occurred until January 2011. Stage 2 was shortened and 
effectively finished in October 2011 (invoices accrued to November 2011) rather than 
December 2011. 
 
Budget $2,020,000. Established through two Council Resolution of $1,080,000 and 
$940,000 respectively. 
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Actual Budget Stage 1/ 2 Expenditure = $1,864,302 
 
Under budget = $155,698 
 
7.7% under budget 
  
Stage 3 
 
For administration purposed this was divided into Stages 3a and 3b to reflect 
procurement and negotiation elements of the project. 
 
Budget $2,600,000.  Established through Council Resolution on 18 October, 2011 
 
Actual Budget Stage 3 Expenditure = 2,676,658 
 
Budget Overrun = $76,658.00 
 
2.9% Over Budget  
 
The reason the budget for this Stage was exceeded was due to the complex final 
phase of negotiating the Project Delivery Agreement with Lend Lease Development, 
a subsequent revision of the financial and risk analysis and the services of both 
Clayton Utz and Michael Collins & Associates for a Council Workshop on 19 
September.  

Conclusion 

Stage 1 & 2 and Stage 3 Expenditure and Budget Reconciliation  

The WTP reconciliation of the actual expenditure against the CoR approved budgets 
resulted in the total expenditure of $4,540,960. This represents a $79,040 under 
expenditure against approved budget which equates to approximately 1.7% to the 
total CoR approved budget of $4,620,000 for Stages 1 & 2 and 3. 

When comparing this project to other similar projects WTP have found that stages 1 
and 2 are well under the normal expenditure and Stage 3 is within the standard 
expenditure range expected for projects of this size and nature.  
 
The project tracked on program throughout stages 1-3 and incurred a very minor 
delay at the end of Stage 3. The efficient management of the program, effective 
development and project management and achieving milestones on time led to highly 
effective expenditure which is lower than other projects of this size and nature  
 
Refer to ATTACHMENT 5 – Ryde Civic Precinct Redevelopment - WTP Technical 
Advisor’s Report, October 2012 – CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER - 
CONFIDENTIAL for a full record of costs by consultant, financial year and Stage. 
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Ryde Civic Precinct Redevelopment 

Summary of Public Consultation and Council Meetings (public information) 
 

Date Vehicle Subject 

7/12/04 Committee of the 
Whole 

Commence negotiations with the Beville Group 
re MOU for CoR space in Top Ryde City 

1/3/05 Committee of the 
Whole 

Report of Top Ryde traffic and pedestrian 
Study by RTA 

June 2005 Councillor 
Workshop 

Consider future of all land in Ryde Town 
Centre as part of preparation for LEP 143 

5/7/05 Committee of the 
Whole 

Proposed sale of CoR land, subdivision and 
proceeds to Civic Precinct Reserve Account 

4/10/05 Committee of the 
Whole 

Put & Call option on CoR land sale and 
Agreement to Lease 

November 
2005 

Councillor 
Workshop 

Consider future of Civic Precinct and desire to 
redevelop in accordance with shopping centre 

October – 
November 
2005 

Public Exhibition Draft LEP 143 and supporting documents 

17/11/05 Traffic Committee Ryde Town Centre LEP Traffic Study 

December 
2005 

Submission DLEP 143 to Department of Planning (DoP) for 
gazettal 

13/12/05 Council Signing of Put & Call, Agreement to Lease, 
and associated transaction documents 

14/2/06 Council Council members appointed to PPP Project 
Control Group (PPP members = CoR, RTA 
and the Beville Group). 

21/3/06 Committee of the 
Whole 

Civic Precinct Committee Terms of Reference 

May 2006 Submission 
Response 

LEP 143 Gazetted RL130 reduced to RL91 
and 100,000m2 preserved. 

31/5/06 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Status Report 

October 
2006 

Councillor 
Workshop  

To confirm Civic Precinct Committee with new 
Councillors 

1/5/07 Committee of the 
Whole 

PPP Status Report 

5/6/07 Committee of the 
Whole 

Report on LEP 143 with 86% public support for 
RL130 and 100,000m2 on Civic Precinct Site 

19/6/07 Committee of the 
Whole 

Report for road widening to accommodate 
Integrated Traffic Solution for Top Ryde 
redevelopment 

9/12/08 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Report of proposed Civic Precinct design 
process and Draft LEP to amend height limit 
from RL91 to RL130 

23/12/08 Request Letter to DoP advising Council’s decision to 
seek amendment to change LEP height from 
RL91 to RL130 

11/5/09 Response DoP letter supporting proposed height 
amendment for LEP 143 
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Date Vehicle Subject 

17/11/09 Committee of the 
Whole 

Reports DoP support for LEP amendment and 
that material be offered to Civic Precinct 
Committee early 2010 for approval 

16/3/10 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Report  of Civic Precinct proposed project 
methodology, recruit external consultants 
starting with Development Director, provided 
funding $2.6M 

2/11/10 Committee of the 
Whole 

Sale and subdivision of CoR land to top Ryde 
City to facilitate top Ryde redevelopment and 
compliance with Integrated Traffic Solution 

14/12/10 Council Report to appoint consultants to  Civic Precinct 
project team and proceed to next project 
gateway. 

11/5/11 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Report of Communications and Engagement 
Plan for public consultation 

June 2011 Development 
Feasibility 
Consultation 

270 neighbouring residents invited by letter-
drop to Feasibility Principles workshop for site 
redevelopment. 87 groups representing 
community, business and Hall users invited to 
separate workshops 

August-Sept 
2011 (6 week 
exhibition) 

Planning Proposal 
Consultation 

39,000 brochures distributed 
270 adjacent households approached directly 
Drop-in and community day sessions held with 
development concept model available 
550 neighbouring residents and 77 groups 
invited to sessions. 
35 members of local Chambers of Commerce 
received a separate presentation. 
1800 number set up for enquiries 
Special email address published for enquiries 
Special web pages enabled on Council’s site 
Advertisements placed in local newspapers on 
10 and 17 August and 7 and 14 September. 

26/9/11 Council Report on outcomes of community consultation 
on Planning Proposal 

4/10/11 Council Report on the condition of the Argyle Centre 
and Civic Centre 

18/10/11 Extraordinary 
Council Meeting 

Planning Proposal – Results of Community 
Consultation and Civic Precinct Program, 
Procurement, Budget and Financial Position 
Update  

November 
2011 (4 week 
exhibition) 

Amended Planning 
Proposal Exhibition 

Amended Planning Proposal. 

13/12/11 Council Report of outcomes from re-exhibition of 
amended Planning Proposal reflecting 
independent planner’s recommendations 

25/1/12 Open Letter from 
Mayor in local 
paper 
 

Copy on website 
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Date Vehicle Subject 

14/2/12 Open Letter from 
Mayor in local 
paper 

Copy on website 

15/2/12 Civic Precinct 
Factsheet 

Copy of website 

21/2/12 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Redevelopment Stage 3 Status Update 
including planning/tender programs, Evaluation 
Panel members’ CVs, EOI Probity and Risk & 
Audit reports 

28/2/12 Council Report of Civic Precinct Committee Minutes  of 
21 Feb 2012 

7/3/12 Open Letter from 
Mayor in local 
paper 

Copy on website 

27/3/12 Council Probity controls for access to Civic Precinct 
Redevelopment tender documents 
 

4/4/12 Open Letter from 
Mayor in local 
paper 

Copy on website 

26/4/12 Q&A Session Q&A Session held in office of John Alexander 
MP 
Member for Bennelong 

1/5/12 Councillors 
Workshop 

Presentations on Civic Precinct legal matters 
and Argyle Centre “highest and best use” 
options 
 

1/5/12 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Stage 3 Update on EOI and RFT process and 
contract structure 

8/5/12 Council Report of the Civic Precinct Meeting held on 1 
May 2012 

6/6/12 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Presentation of Precinct Legal, Design and 
Financial outcomes from  Tender process 

6/6/12 Civic Precinct 
Committee 

Report on Civic Precinct Redevelopment 
Tender 

8/6/12 Civic Precinct 
Factsheet 

Copy of website 

12/6/12 Council Report on Civic Precinct Redevelopment 
Tender from Civic Precinct Committee meeting 
of 6 June 2012. 
Rescission Notice lodged 

16/6/12 Open Letter from 
Mayor in local 
paper 

Copy on website 

26/6/12 Council Rescission Notice – Civic Precinct 
Redevelopment Tender from 12 June, 2012 

27/6/12 Website – latest 
Civic Precinct 
update 

Contains, 
Status Update 
Project timetable 
FAQs 
Links to 
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Date Vehicle Subject 

  Civic Precinct Committee 
  Planning Proposal Facts 
  Ryde Town Centre 
 Key Documents 
  Council & Committee Reports 
  Original Planning Proposal 
  Amended Planning Proposal 
Tender Evaluation Panel recommendation 
Open letters from Mayor 
Factsheets 
Mayor’s video 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
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12 REPORTS DUE TO COUNCIL  

Report prepared by: Meeting Support Coordinator 
        File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1187  
 

 
REPORT 
 
This Report is submitted to Council to review the status of outstanding reports and 
confirm the date reports are due to be provided to Council as at 6 November 2012. 
 
Below is a status table showing the number of reports listed, the number completed 
since the last update, the number added since the last update and the percentage of 
those reports that were completed within the stated timeframe. 
 

 Volume Current reports Completed reports Performance 
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14/02/11 33   7 2 24 6 1 21% 9% 91% 

15/03/11 31 5 8 3 20 7 2 29% 16% 87% 

2/05/11 32 9 9 5 16 9 1 31% 19% 78% 

6/06/11 31 8 5 5 21 4 1 16% 19% 81% 

19/07/11 33 7 10 6 17 2 8 30% 42% 58% 

16/08/11 35 12 8 6 21 4 4 23% 29% 71% 

20/09/11 36 9 7 7 21 3 5 22% 33% 67% 

15/11/11 40 11 20 6 14 9 11 50% 43% 58% 

28/02/12 37 17 11 0 26 7 4 30% 11% 89% 

27/03/12 29 3 9 1 19 9 0 31% 3% 97% 

24/04/12 28 8 3 3 22 2 1 11% 14% 86% 

22/05/12 32 7 3 5 24 2 1 9% 19% 81% 

24/07/12 37 8 17 5 15 11 6 46% 30% 70% 

28/08/12 25 5 8 4 13 5 3 32% 28% 72% 
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13/11/12 27 10 4 7 16 3 1 15% 30% 70% 
 
ATTACHED is a graph showing the volume of outstanding reports and the number of 
completed reports over the period 14 February 2011 to present. 
 
There are currently 27 reports listed.  Following consideration of this report there will 
be seven overdue reports due to Council. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the report on Outstanding Council Reports be endorsed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Performance Data - Report to Council - 13 November 2012  
2  Outstanding Council Reports as at 6 November 2012  
 
Report Prepared By: 
 
Amanda Janvrin 
Meeting Support Coordinator  
 
Report Approved By: 
 
Shane Sullivan 
Manager - Governance 
 
Roy Newsome 
Group Manager - Corporate Services 
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Outstanding Reports to Council
Volume of outstanding reports
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PRECIS OF CORRESPONDENCE 

1 DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ON-SITE INFRASTRUCTURE AUDIT  

Report prepared by: Meeting Support Coordinator 
       File No.: GRP/12/5/5/5 - BP12/1303  
 
 

CORRESPONDENCE:  
 
Submitting correspondence from Mr Ross Woodward, Chief Executive, Division of 
Local Government dated 31 October 2012 regarding an on-site Infrastructure Audit 
and correspondence from Mr John Neish, General Manager to the Division of Local 
Government dated 2 November 2012. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the correspondence be received and noted. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Letter from the Division of Local Government regarding On-site Infrastructure 

Audit dated 31 October 2012 
 

2  Letter to the Division of Local Government regarding On-site Infrastructure Audit 
dated 2 November 2012 
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Précis of Correspondence, submitted to Council on 13 November 2012. 
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Précis of Correspondence, submitted to Council on 13 November 2012. 
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2 DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TO COUNCIL'S 
REQUEST UNDER SECTION 416 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 
1993  FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME FOR SUBMISSION OF THE 2011/12 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Report prepared by: Meeting Support Coordinator 
       File No.: CLM/12/1/4/11 - BP12/1307  
 
 

CORRESPONDENCE:  
 
Submitting correspondence from Mr Ross Woodward, Chief Executive, Division of 
Local Government dated 16 October 2012 in response to Council’s request under 
Section 416 of the Local Government Act 1993 for an extension of time for 
submission of the 2011/12 Financial Statements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the correspondence be received and noted. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1  Letter from the Division of Local Government dated 16 October 2012 in relation 

to Council's request under Section 416 of Local Government Act 1993 for an 
extension of time for submission of 2011/12 Financial Statements 
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Précis of Correspondence, submitted to Council on 13 November 2012. 
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NOTICES OF MOTION 

1 FEEDBACK FROM COUNCILLORS FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ELECTION PROCESS - Councillor Roy Maggio          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/6 - BP12/1215 
 

MOTION: 
 
That the General Manager seeks feedback from the Councillors for improvements to 
the Local Government Election process.  That this feedback then be collated, 
presented to Council for consideration of those elements which are to be included in 
a formal submission to the State Electorate Commission. 
  
 
2 STATE ELECTORAL COMMISSION - Councillor Roy Maggio          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/6 - BP12/1216 
 

MOTION: 
 
That the General Manager write to the State Electoral Commission on behalf of 
Council requesting that no fines be issued to the City of Ryde residents who failed to 
vote. 
  
 
3 FEES AND CHARGES AT WESTMINSTER OVAL, GLADESVILLE - 

Councillor Roy Maggio          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/6 - BP12/1232 
 

MOTION: 
 
That the Council immediately confirm that all associated Fees and Charges at 
Westminster Oval, Gladesville be waived for 2012/13 financial year until the oval is in 
a suitable condition and that all users of the oval be informed of the decision of 
Council. 
  
 
4 CITY OF RYDE PROCUREMENT PROCESSES - Councillor Jeff Salvestro-

Martin          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/6 - BP12/1238 
 

MOTION: 
 
That the General Manager conduct a review of City of Ryde procurement processes, 
specifically the engagement of subcontractors with specific emphasis on 
improvements to resident safety as related to that engagement. 
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5 DEVLIN STREET PEDESTRIAN BRIDGES - Councillor Denise Pendleton          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/6 - BP12/1287 
 

MOTION: 
 
Council must take immediate action to ensure pedestrians at Top Ryde have a safe, 
fully accessible and reliable means of crossing Devlin Street. 
 
1. Council to take immediate action to require the west lift (next to the old library 

building) to be properly ventilated to ensure pedestrian safety, particularly during 
instances of lift failure in summer. 

2. That Council staff provide a report by February 2013 covering: 

a. Clarification of roles, responsibilities, accountabilities and ownership of the 
pedestrian bridges:  

i. By organisation: Council, RMS and shopping centre management 

ii. Council management. 

b. The established performance and reliability standards for the pedestrian 
bridges lifts.  

c. Response time for repair crews to attend the lifts if they fail – including the 
minimum and maximum period of delay. 

d. Standard for emergency response time when a lift fails with someone 
trapped inside – including the minimum and maximum period. 

e. Report on the two pedestrian bridges’ lift performance: 

 Instances of lifts stoppage (date) and duration  

 Instances of pedestrians trapped inside lifts – number of pedestrians 
trapped and the duration they were trapped (not average time) 

 Number of complaints received by Council on lift performance and 
pedestrian safety concerns.  

 Number of complaints investigated and closed by Council staff and 
actions taken. 

 Average response times and maximum delay in response to call out to 
service lift for reactivation. 

f. What legal options does Council have if the performance of the 
infrastructure is considered unacceptable e.g. penalties, licence 
termination etc?  
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g. Options for Council’s process improvements including establishing new 
design requirements or standards to be applied to any future pedestrian 
bridges in the municipality.  

3. Council to immediately write to the local Member for Ryde requesting his 
intervention with the Minister for Roads to achieve an alternative solution for 
pedestrians at this major intersection. In particular Council to seek a meeting 
involving all interested Councillors, Council senior staff, the RMS and the centre 
management to consider options for improved risk assessment, reprioritisation of 
the pedestrian in the road sharing equation at Devlin Street, and alternative 
crossing options, including staged crossings, night time safety and timed crossing 
or other suitable alternatives. 

4. Urgent review of Ryde Council’s complaint management and risk assessment 
processes, particularly related to infrastructure and complaints where public 
safety issues are reported.  

  

6 PEDESTRIAN SAFETY THROUGHOUT THE CITY OF RYDE - Councillor 
Jeff Salvestro-Martin          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/6 - BP12/1288 
 

MOTION: 
 
That the General Manager conduct an audit of Pedestrian Safety throughout the City 
of Ryde.  That the report include examination of the adequacy of existing pedestrian 
crossings, refuges and footpaths including the adequacy of disabled and pram 
access.  Specific focus should be given to areas where there are: 
 

1. Schools or Early Childhood Centres 
2. Community Facilities 
3. Public Transport Nodes 
4. Commercial Enterprise 
5. High Pedestrian Flows 
6. An unusual incidence of pedestrian misadventure 

 
The report should inform Council of recent changes to traffic legislation and the 
obligations and responsibilities of Council to ensure it meets its obligations under the 
relevant Acts and should include consultation with relevant authorities, City of Ryde 
Advisory Committees and the Ratepayers of Ryde.  The report should specifically 
solicit input from residents about specific concerns they have with respect to their 
safety as pedestrians within the City of Ryde. 
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NOTICES OF RESCISSION 

1 NOTICE OF RESCISSION: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF 
FACILITIES TO THE MAYOR AND OTHER COUNCILLORS - Councillor 
Jeff Salvestro-Martin, Councillor Sarkis Yedelian OAM, Councillor Craig 
Chung          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/7 - BP12/1239 
 

That Council rescind the previous resolution in relation to Item 10 – PAYMENT OF 
EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO THE MAYOR AND OTHER 
COUNCILLORS, passed at the Council Meeting held on 23 October 2012, namely:- 

(a) That Council endorse the public exhibition of the revised Payment of 
Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy for a period of at least 28 days. 

 
(b) That after the exhibition period of the draft policy, a further report be 

provided to Council seeking the adoption of the draft Payment of 
Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Other Councillors 
Policy and detailing any submissions received. 

 
(c) That Council approve the appropriate disposal of the Mayoral vehicle. 
 
(d) That Clause 28 be amended to include access for meeting rooms at the 

library, as available for the purposes of Councillors meeting with the public 
during operating hours and free of charge. 

  
 
 
 

2 NOTICE OF RESCISSION: MATTER OF URGENCY - REMOVAL OF FIVE 
SHRUBS ON THE NATURE STRIP AT 163 MORRISON ROAD, PUTNEY - 
Councillor George Simon, Councillor Denise Pendleton, Councillor Terry 
Perram          

File Number: CLM/12/1/4/7 - BP12/1256 
 

That Council rescind the previous resolution in relation to Matter of Urgency – 
REMOVAL OF FIVE SHRUBS ON THE NATURE STRIP AT 163 MORRISON ROAD 
PUTNEY, passed at the Council Meeting held on 23 October 2012, namely:- 

That staff remove the five shrubs on the nature strip at 163 Morrison Road, 
Putney and replace them with low bearing shrubs, in consultation with the local 
residents. 
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Agenda of the Council Meeting No. 21/12, dated Tuesday 13 November 2012. 
 

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

13 ALLENGROVE MAJOR PROJECT - LEGAL ADVICE RECEIVED ON 
OPTIONS TO APPEAL THE APPROVAL GRANTED 

Confidential 
This item is classified CONFIDENTIAL under Section 10A(2) of the Local 
Government Act, 1993, which permits the meeting to be closed to the public for 
business relating to the following: (g) advice concerning litigation, or advice as 
comprises a discussion of this matter, that would otherwise be privileged from 
production in legal proceedings on the ground of legal professional privilege. 
  
Report prepared by: Client Manager 
File No.: MIN2010/10 - BP12/1265  
Page: 336 
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